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Strategic
report




Chairman’s statement

The last year has seen significant chaflenges for the Company. not least the
announcement in Apnl 2017 that our largest customar had informed us that it would no
jonger use our intellectual property in its products from some time in 2018 and that as
a consequeance, their royalties would cease. This was followed by our announcement in
June of the commencerment of a Formial Sale Process (FSP™ for the Company. These
matters have had a substantial impact on the Group's existing strategy and required the
Board to make decisions that it would ctherwise not have made. This is addressed later
in the repart in more detal. Meanwhile, the Group's financial performance over the last
year has been excellent and has demonstrated the success that the management team
has achigved in turmning the business around

The financial results for the year reflect decisions taken in the prior year to transform
the business and to sell or close activities that were not core to the IP licensing
strategy. The sale of Pure completed in September 2016, the closure and transfer of
the parts of IMG Systems wera spread across the financial year, whilst the transfer
of IMGworks completed in May 2017. | would like 1o thank the staff within those
areas for their continued patience and support throughout the process. The sale of
Pure and the transfer of IMGworks coupled with an operational review that was also
announced iast year, provided significant cost savings which have contricuted to the
improved financial results for 2016/17.

Significant exceptional costs and write-downs continued o be required through

the last year 1o restructure the business and position it for the future. These actions
have allowed the business to strengthen its performance and when the Board came
1o the decision, to begin a sale progess for MIPS and Ensigma, it was able to do so
knowing that those businesses would be of sufficient interest and size to appeal to
the right buyer.

Over the last year we have seen two senior Board changes with Bert Nordberg
stepping down as Chairman and the appointment of myself in February 2017 in his
place. Additicnally, Gilles Delfassy retired from the Board in March 2017 having
handed over to Nigel Tcon, who was appointed in August 20186, in his capacity as
the Board's industry and technical expert and Chairman of the Technical Advisory
Committes, thus ensurng the spread of skills required for sound leadership at Board
level. | would like to thank both Bert and Gilles for their service to the Company over
the past few years. Their contribution has been much appreciated.

twould alsa like to thank all employees for their hard work and continued support
and our sharehoiders for their patience during difficuft and unsettling times.

Peter Hill
Chairman



Business model,

strategy

“Over ten billion
units containing
our technology
have been
shipped in key
markets such as
mobile phone,
computing, home
electronics, hand
held multimedia,
automotive and
networking.”

and products

What we do

imagination’'s core IP (rtellectual property) activities. involve the creation and
licersing of semicorductor processor P for graphics, video and vision processing.
gereral purpose and embedded processing {CPU and MCU). and our broad range
of sdicon IP. supported by extensive patent protection. includes the key processing
blocks neaded by our customers to create the Systems on Chips (SoC) that
power electronic devices. We have built strong brands arcund these processing
blocks: PowerVR in graphics and multimedia; MIPS in processors: and Ensigma ir
connectraty.

Over ten billion units containing our technology have been shipped in key markets
such as mebile phone, computing. home electronics. handheld multimedia,
automotive and natworking. Our tecthnologies are also enabling new kinds of
dewvices across the intamet of Things (0T}, wearabies and other emerging markets.

We annourced 1o the market or 4 May 2017 that the MIPS and Ensigma
businesses would be actively marketed to concentrate our resources on PowerVR
and to strengthen Imagination's balance sheet. Following significant interest in
Imagination, or 22 June 2017 we announced the initiation of a formal sale process
(FSP) for the whole Group, to run alongside the MIPS and Ensigma sale processes.

Business model

Cur business model 1s simple. We invest in research and development to create
and provide physical IP, tools and software for our customers. We receive
payments whenr we ficense our technologies to customers. They then take our IP
and develop it within their products. Rovalties are then received from customers
when they ship products using our 1P Our licensees include many of the world’s
leading semiconductor manufacturers, network operators and OEMs/ODMs
(Original Equipment/Device Marnufacturers). Our current ecosystem partners
include numerpus application interface. operating system, standards and tocls
organisations. as well as many tier-one technelogy companies, game engine
providers and silicon foundries.

Strategy for the future

Prior to the announcement of the FSP, we had revised the Group's strategy.
following a full review in 2018, as set out below.

The objectives of our revised strategy are to build IP solutions of real scale with
customers. across a wide range of markets, where we can provide leading.
differertiated offerings and build defendable positions: delivering long-term vaiue
to sharsholders in the process. We will do this by focusing investment on our core
IP businesses. providing outstanding service to customers. as well as rewarding
careers to our employees.



“PowerVR cores

combine to create

optimisable IP
platforms that
can incorporate
customer IP to
create highly
differentiated,
state of the art
solutions for all
forms of visual
challenges from
the latest games
to smart loT
cameras.”

PowerVR

PowerVR's technology takes data from sensors or CPUSs to a screen, delivering
stunning images for entertainment. user interfaces and much more. It consists of a
comprehensive range of multimedia 1P, from graphics processing units (GPUs;

to GPU compute for imaging and vision processing.

These cores combine ta create optimisable 1P platformns that can incorporate
customer IP to create highiy differentiated, state-of-the-art solutions for alt forms of
visual chalienges from the latest games to smart 10T cameras.

The strategy for PowerVR focuses on consalidating Imagmination's position and retaining
technology leadership. With recent design wins we expect to gain market share in the
mobile market. We alsc see opportunities to grow the Group's existing posittons in
automotive infotainment, and in digital TV/set top boxes and buidd a strong position in
augmented reality and virtuai reality (AR/VR). We continue 1o identify opportunities in
Advanced Driver Assisted Systems (ADAS) in the automotive sector and are working to
develop solutions for broader antificial intelligence uses, particularly in vision processing
for context-aware applications such as facial and gesture recognition.

PowerVR graphics (GPU)

The PowserVR graphics processor family leads the market in technological capability,
roadmap breadth and ecosystem, setting the benchmark for mobile and embedded
GPUs. PowerVR graphics IP consists of a broad portfolio of the industry's lsading
graphics processors, supporting a large range of applications. Imagination’s
PowerVR graphics technologies are licensed by world-leading comparnies to power
iconic products delivering the best in smartphone, tablet. TV and console apps,
including the most advanced user interfaces and high performance gaming.

PowerVR uses a sophisticated and unique architecture. PowerVR achieves
efficiency through tle-based deferred rendering (TBDR) that ensures the lowest
possible bandwidth usage and the lowest amount of processing cycles per task,
This results in high performance efficiency and the lowest power consumption per
frame, outperforming other solutions.

PowerVR ray tracing

Imagination's PowerVR ray tracing technology represents the next step in graphics
technology evolution. PowerVR Wizard ray tracing graphics IP cores deliver high
levels of realism and performance at mobile power budgets for the first time. This
latest technaology development will enable more immersive games and apps with
real-life dynamic lighting medels that enable advanced lighting effects, dynamic
soft shadows, and lifelike reflections and transparencies, praviously unachievable
in a mobile form factor. PowerVR ray tracing IP is also highly scalable, reinforcing
its capability to be truly disruptive to many other markets beyond mobile, such as
game consoles and ARVR.

PowerVR vision

Qur innovative PowerVR Raptor cores are low-power, highly-configurable camera
image signal processor (ISP} cores designed for SoC integration. Vision-aware
technologies are increasingly incorporated in smartphones, loT devices, automotive,
rabotics, and other products. The re-emergence of VR and a growing interest in AR
are creating more opportunity in this space.

PowerVR vision platforms can be optimised to work with Imagination's other
PowerVR graphics and video cores, as well as still image encoders and decoders,
to form a complete, integrated vision platform that saves power and bandwidth for
toctay's camera applications. They can also be used to provide the basis for
next-generation context-aware appfications such as facial and gesture recognition.

(&3]



“The strategy for
MIPS focuses on
the embedded
processor
markets where
the business
can differentiate
and maintain/
build defendable
positions.”

MIPS

The MIPS family of CPU IP 1s a comprehensive portfolic of low-power. high-
performance 32/64-bit processor architectures and cores. ranging from the ulimate
high-performance cores for high-end applications processors down o extremely
small cores for deeply embedded microcantrellers.

The strategy for MIPS focuses on the embedded processor markets where the
business car differentiate ard maintain and build defendable positions. The aim of
the strategy is to mairtain our stranghold in networking. home gateways and the
DTV/STB markets. whilst leveraging opportunities in certain internet of Things (ioT)
growth segments.

MIPS cores come in three classes of performance and features. Warrior M-class:
entry-level ultra low power ang ultra small cores for embedded and microcontroller
appiications; Warrior I-class: highly scalable mid-range. feature-rich corss for
mainstream Linux and Android devices: Warrior P-class: high-performance cores for
demanding applications.

The MIPS architecture provides a number of differentiated features. First it is the
industry’s most efficient RISC {reduced instruction set} architecture, designed to
perform a limited set of instructions extremely quickly, As such, it can deliver the
best performance and lowest power consumption in a given silicon area. SoC
designers can use this efficiency advantage for significant cost and power savings.,
or to implement additioral cores to deliver a performance advantage in the same
power, thermal and area budget,

Secondly, MIPS is the only RISC architecture that provides multi-threading
capability; the ability to effectively perform as multiple CPU cores within just one
core. The MIPS architecture also provides hardware virtualisation throughout its
range of cores, providing for a much stronger security sclution than a single trusted
security zone within a SoC. Security is fast becoming cne of the most significant
differentiators for the future of the semi-conductor industry, where applications must
be effectively and reliably isclated from each other as weil as protected from non-
secure applications., while still meeting required levels of functionality, performance,
cost. and power consumption.

Thirdly, Imagination's OmniShield security technology is designed to provide the
industry’s most scalable and secure solutions for protection of next-generation
SaCs. Imagination is ensuring that customers’ SoCs and OEMs’ products are
designed for security, reliability and dynamic software management as use modsls
and senvices evolve across a wide range of cornected devices such as Internat of
Things (1aT), gateway routers, DTVs, STBs, mobile and automotive.



“Today’s consumers
all expectto
be connected
wherever they go
and to whatever
device they use.”

Ensigma

Today's consumers all expect to be connected wherever they go and to whatever
device they use. Ensigma blends programmable and fixed function blocks to
deliver a family of highly scalable muiti-standard connectivity platforms that offer
exceptional performance as well as cutstanding silicon efficiency.

iP licensing in connectivity ig an early-stage market today and as such is less
certain. However, we saw strong license sales in FY17 and the pipsline remains
healthy. particularly in the 10T market.

The Ensigma Explorer radio processing unit (RPU) family is focused on enabling
high-perforrmance on-chip communications with Wi-Fl and Bluetooth connectivity,
as welk as global DTV, digital radio, and FM receiver capabilities. Qur RPUs address
the ever-growing challenge of proliferating broadcast and connectivity standards
by supporting them all on a single engine, and enabling them to be integrated onto
SoCs for the lowest possible system cost.

Ensigma Whisper is a flexible ultra-low power sensor and cloud connectivity 1P
family. designed specifically to enable the integration of low power communications
in S0Cs targeting wearables, toT and othar connected devicas that require
exceptional battery life and low cost points.

IMGworks

IMGworks provided a system on chip (ScC) design service for custemers,
integrating imagination’s IP from across its core families (PowerVR, MIPS, and
Ensigra). The operational review identified the SoC Design business (IMGworks) as
non-core and was sold to Sondrel in May 2017.

IMG Systems

The previous activities associated with IMG Systems have either been soid or
closed during the past 12 months. These include Pure, Hellosoft {the voice over
internet protocol busingss) and other activities associated with consumer products
that previously supported Pure,



Chief Executive’s review

Introduction

F¥17 has been another notably challenging year for the busingss. characterised by
significant restructuring. the implementation of a refreshed strategy and a dispute
with our largest customer, Apple.

We axscuted the restructunng programme, that was announced early in 20186, to
plan and returned the business to profitability and positive cashflow. The £27.5m of
cost savings, identified in 2016, was delivered in full. with non-core activities either
sold or discontinued.

We also announced and started the implementation of our revised strategy to build
IP solutions of real scale with customers. across a wide range of markets, where we
can provide leading, differentiated offerings and build defendable positions; delivering
long-term value to shareholders in the process. Over the past year we have focused

“OVer the past year investment in our core P businesses: PowerVR, MIPS and Ensigma.

we h ave fo cu Sed This strategy has resonated well with customers. Investiment has Deen increased
. . in PowerVR with the addition of around 50 more engineers to address market
investment in our opportunities. The laurch of the mid-range PowerVR Series XE GPU has been the

: ,  most successful launch to date in terms of the number of new design wins with
core IP bu SInesses. multiple customers. The launch of the new Furiar GPU architecture and the high-

Powe rVR M | PS end Series 8XT cores also cements PowerVR's technology leadership. Both MIPS
4 and Ensigma made good progress towards profitability, with MIPS now almaost
an d E nsi g ma. breakeven. Ensigma produced a strong performance in license sales and MIPS

continued to increase its presence in the automotive market, with a number of deals,

This strate ay has as weil as cortinuad design wins in LTE medems.

reson ated We” This good work has been overtaken by events following Apple informing s that
. " it expected that the chips in it's products launched at some point in 2018 or early
with customers. 2019 would not require it to pay Imagination royalties. So far Apple has net sharad

any information to enable us to verify it's statement. Imagination has invoked a
contractual dispute rasolution procedure under the license agreement. imagination
does not accept Apple’s position and reserves all of ts rights.

The potential impact on revenues if Apple does not pay us royaities on its new
products has led the board to consider sale options. In May 2017 we announced
that we were looking to sell both our MIPS and Ensigma businesses, 1o strengthen
our balance sheet and concentrate our resources on PowerVR. Following intersst
received in both MIPS and Ensigma, and subsequently the whole Group. the Board
announced in June the initiation of a formal sale process for the Group and that the
company was engaged in preliminary discussions with potential bidders.

imagination has made excellent prograss in executing the restructuring programme
and refreshed strategy: returning the business to profitability in the process over the
past fourteen months. It is regrettabie that, after much hard work and on the verge of
realising our strategy for the business, that we are now in a positiors where we have
initiated a sale of the Group. We believe that in the face of the dispute with Apple, this
is the best way to deliver value to our shareholders and ensure Imagination can to
continue to grow and succeed in the future.



“We successfully
executed the
restructuring
programme that
was announced
early last year,
on-time and in
line with our
expectations.”

Performance in FY17

We successiully executed the restructuring programme that was announced early
last year. on-time and in line with our expectations. The main areas impacted were
non-core activities and central overheads including marketing and property. The
core |P engineering activilies have been protected.

To enable the required level of investmant in cur core businesses, we divested or
closed non-core, cash-consuming business lines. The Pure radio busingss, as well
as Hellosoft, was sold in 2016, IMGwaorks, the SoC design business, was sold in
May 2017, with the FlowRadio transaction completing in June this calendar year.
The remaining elements of IMG Systems were discontinued. I total over 500
employees (almost a third of the total) have left the Group since the restructuring
was announced. The majority of these people continue in their roles under new
ownership at Pure International, Mesami Technologies, 7digitai and Sondrsl.

Following the detailed operating raview in the first half of 2016, the Group continued
to reinforce and invest in its three core businesses: graphics and muitimedia
{PowerVR), general purpose processing (MIPS) and connectivity (Ensigma). This
strategy has resonated well with customers and investors alike.

PowerVR

PowerVR has focused on consolidating its market position and retaining technalogy
leadership. In 2017 we launched new offerings in the mid-range XE family and in the
high-~and with the debut of our Series8XT GPU cores and new Furian architecture,
which represents a significant advance over existing PowerVR designs, We expect
these technologies to further enable mass market untethered ARNR devices

and rnew classes of mabile devices such as convertibles, creating future growth
opportunity for PowerVR.

The Group's Series 8XE has been a notably successful product launch, both with
existing and new PowerVR customers. its competitiveness in the mobile segment
was proven with a multi-year subscription deal for Seres8XE with Spreadtrum,

a major Chinese fabless semi. Consequently. we are very canfident in gaining
significant share in the mid-tier mobile market through this and the successful
design wing aiready achieved with MadiaTek.

We have also seen strong traction for 8XE in the DTV/STB rnarket with design wins at
strategically important customers including Realtak. Marvell, Mstar, and Sigma. Further
automotive business was secured with long-term customers Renesas and T

With the launch of the new high-end Furian architecture and a refreshed Series8XT
offering, we fully expect to retain our technology leadership in low-power, high-
performance graphics. The market leader continues to use PowerVR GPU
tachnology in their latest products and we have a good pipeline of opportunities
which, if successfully closed. will heip close the shortfall in royaltiss that might be
created by the loss in Apple revenues. A new chipset has begun shipping from
MediaTek in 2017, the Helio X30, using a Series 7XT core, which is being used in a
range of devices from phones to Chromebooks.

PowerVR continues to retain a large share of the automotive infotainment markeat
and this position is pulling PowerVR intc ADAS applications. Denso of Japan is a
recent licensee for 8XT. Opportunities alsc exist to grow our position in the emerging
ARAR market; as well as exploiting investments madeé in vision products. We have
a roadmap in smart vision and expect these new offenngs will further drive the
PowerVR licensing pipeiine. In particular, we are seeing significant interest in our
latest vision hardware accelerated (VHA) offering.

Cur ray tracing technology is of interest in the gaming market and PowerVR 1s
continuing to develcp its ecosystam with natable games publishers and middiewares
engine providers.



MIPS

The MIPS business has beer focused on the embedded processor market, in
particular those market segments where we bave strong positions today and where
we can axplcit our differentiation capabilities 16 build long-term. defendable positions
nto the future. We continua to enjoy design wins in our traditional markets suck as
networking. routers and DTV/STB. MIPS has seen contirued support rom long-term
customers at Qualcomm, Broadcom and Cavium.

Beyond this. good progress is also being made in new markets, as the Group
targets its differentiated technology. particuiarly multi-threading and hardware
virtualization. in meeting customers’ needs.

The strength of MIPS’s differentiated technoiogy has been demonstrated through
a number of important design wins over the past year. In the autonomous systems
It market, Mabileye selected the MIPS 16500 for its tatest EyeQ5 product and Denso
M I PS haS an also became a licensee for next-generation, in-vehicle electronic systems. We are
eXCﬁ:ln g refreShed buﬂdmg on our success in automotive with the faunch of a new MIPS qorg, 16500-F,
which includes support for FuSa (Functional Safety) features. which is in high

p ro d U Ct “n e an d demand in this and broader Al segments.

roa d ma p, Wh I Ch MIPS also saw strong performance in Asta, with design wing with both current and new
. . customers in Chira including Beken, Synochip, Loongsen, and Actions and continued

Wl” d l I ow |t tO support from key customers such as AL, Novatek and MediaTek in Tawan. MediaTek

H : is a key customer for MIPS I-class in the LTE modern segment and expects to begin
bette r d 'ﬁe ren t' ate mass production of devices with MIPS-based modems durings this summer. We have
its offerin g in the also seen strong licensing in Russia with a new deal with MRI. The success of our l-class

cores proves our case that MIPS' fundamental differentiations, such as multi-threading

market as wel | as and virtualization, ara in dermand in several markets.

p rove com petltl ve Security is becoming an ever-ingreasing prionty for customers. Qur recent partnership
t 1 with Barco Silex on Trusted Elerment techinology and our security offering for Root of
O CUStom ers. Trust systems and Omnishield gives us a very competitive secunity soluton.

MIPS has an exciting refreshed product fine and roadmap. which will allow it to better
differertiate its offering in the market as well as prove competitive to customers.

Ensigma

Ensigma is now focused on IR licensing for cannectivity, offering a broader range of
complete end-to-end solutions for custemers. which differentiates it in the market.
The growth of 10T applications drove strong licensirg growth in 2017, which enabled
Ensigma to more than double revenue over the previcus year. Significant license deals
included a large American multinational semiconductor company and we also saw
strorg growth in the Wi-Fi market in China with a number of important design wins.

The Ensigma product roadmap is particularly focused on high-performance.,
tow-power applications that are well matched to the requirements of large numbers
of connected devices. Qur superiority in low-power wireless has been confirmed
with tests on customer silicon showing that we are 2x better in power efficiency
than competitors.

Apple dispute

Apple informed us at the end of March that it will ne longer use the Group’s
irtellectual property in its new products in 15 months to two years’ time. and as
such Imagination will not be eligible for royalty payments under the current license
and royalty agreement.

Apple has used Imagination’s technolegy and intellectual property for many years.
It has formed the basis of Graphics Processar Units ("GPUs" in Apple’s phones.
tablets. iPods, TVs and watches, Apple has asserted that it has been working on
a sgparate. independent graphics design in order to control its products and will



“Imagination has
great technology
that is very
meaningful and
relevant to many
customers.”

be reducing its future rellance on Imagmation’s technology. Apple has not presented
any svidence to substantiate its assertion that it will no longer require our technalogy.
withottt violating our patents, inteliectual property and confidential Information. This
evidence has been requested of Apple, but they have declined to provide it.

We helieve that it would bg extremely challenging to design a brand new GPU
architecture from basics without infringing our intellectual progerty rights and
accordingly we have not accepted Apple's assertions. We initiated the dispute
resalution procedure under the license agreement with a view to reaching an
agreement through a more structured process.

To be clear Apple made an unsubstantiated claim, which obliged us to miform the
markets, leading to a significant decrease in our share price. The claim has led us

to invoke a contractual dispute resolution procedure and has created significant
uncertainty with raspect to our business, including our employees. We do not believe
this to be acceptable business practice nor in line with Apple's own ethics statements
regarding suppliers.

At the time of writing this report, we remain in dispute. Imagination has reserved all its
rights in respect of Apple’s unauthorised use of Imagination’s confidenttal information
and Imagination's inteliectual property rights.

Customers and colleagues

Imagination has great technolagy that is very meaningful and relevant ta many customers,
We are grateful to them for their support through the changes we are going through.

We are also fortunate to have very capatie people across our engineering and business
staff. The company has them to thank for the continued development and delivery of our
strategy and roadmap during what have been very disruptive conditions,

In a complex, geographically diverse and fast moving business it is critical that we

retain and attract the skills and capabilities needed in sufficient numbers to deliver our
objectives and maintain an entreprenewrial and dynamic clture. We have dane this

by continuing to provide an exciting place to work, investing in leading and disruptive
technclogy, supported by a revised, competitive compensation and benefits strategy. A
new internal communications programime has aiso increased the frequency and quality
of communications with cur staff and further improved engagement.

Vwant to publically thank colleagues for the support they have shown 10 the business
and given to me personally over the past year. The swift return to profitability in the
business has been helped by the engagement and suppbort we enjoy with our people,
and which they carry forward in their interactions with our customers every day.

Outlook

Irmagination continues to see good demand for licenses in all three of our core
businesses. There are exciting developments and compelling products in our FY'18
roadmaps, which bodes well for the competitiveness of eacn of the business units
going forward.

The Group continués to see good demand for licensing for its IP and expects to
see further progress in license revenue in FY18, subject to uncertainty caused by
the initiation of the formal sale process. Royalty unit shipments are expected to
benefit from recent design wins. We fully expect to receive royalties from our largest
customer cver the next year.

I am confident that with the right investment our businesses and people wilk
continue to flourish.

Andrew Heath
Chief Executive

4 July 2017



[\

Financial Review

201617 has seen considerabie improvernent in Imagiration’s cortinuing operations’ results. Revenues and adjustad cperating
profit and profit before tax are up substantially and the Group's net debt has reduced despite large cash costs to sell and close
discontinuing operations.

The decision to sell IMGworks has resulted in this part of the Group being classified as discontinued aperations for the 2016,17
financial year — it was sold on 31 May 2017. We announced our intention to sell the MIPS and Ensigma businesses on 3rd May
2017 and these businesses will be classified as discontinued for the 2017/18 financiat year but not for the 2018/17 financial year
as the intention was not anncunced until after the end of the 2016/17 financial year.

Revenue

Group revenue from continuing cperations for the perod erding 30 April 2017 increased by 19% to £145.2m (2016: £121.6m).

Within this. licensing revenue increased 82% to £33.9m (2016; £18.6m;. All three business units showed good growth on
2015/16 with Ensigma performing particularty strongly with £6.0m of license revenue (2016: £2.0m). PowerVR increased license
revenue by 43% 1o £14.5m (2016: £10.2m;. MiPS increased by 12% to £7.2m {2016; £6.4m). All businesses signed up new
customers as well as getting repeat business fram existing customers and ended the year with a gocd backlog from these
orders which will be recognized over the next two years. Five contracts from the now sold IMGworks business remain with the
Group and the figures for those contracts are included in continuing operations in the corporate segment. These contracts
contributed revenues of £6.1m in 2016/17 and contributed £2.1m to adjusted operating profit, Four of the five contracts are
likely to finish in 2017/18 and one in 2018/19. No further contracts of this nature will be entered into by the Group.

Royalty revenue from continuing operations increased by 8% to £111.1m (2016: £102.7m), helped by the strength of the dollar
against sterling. Partners’ chip shipments in PowerVR were down at 422m (2018: 456m) units, primarily because of a drop

in the largest customer's volumes ir the year. MIPS partner shipments increased by 7% to 816m units (2016: 764m).Royalty
revenuas in Ensigma were up 9% year-on-year because of increasing digital radio sales - the majonty of Ensigma royalties corme
from RPU sales to chip providers for digital radios. The average royalty rate. excluding MIPS. was in line with the prior year. Total
Partner chip unit shipments rose 2% to 1.248m units (2016: 1,227m}.

Revenue from discontinued operations decreased by 86% during the year primarily due to the sale of Pure in September 2016.

The average sterling 7 dollar rate during the year improved by 14%. resulting in a similar gain in revenue. Total revenues were up
7% to £151.9m (2016: £141.4mj.

Operating expenses

Group operating expenses included in the adjusted operating profit, associated with continuing operations, increased to
£116.1m (2016: £111.0m) because of exchange losses on US dollar denominated costs. We have taken action to reduce overall
costs {continuing and discontinued operations) and £27.5m were taken out of the cost base for FY17. The cost savings are
made up of a combination of headcount reductions, as well as savings in overheads including marketing, property. third party
software and hardware rental, travef and contractors. As flagged at the 20186 results announcement, Dasides the cost savings.
we added R&D headcount in PoewerVR and introduced group bonus schemes which increased the cost base.

We have allocated all overheads to business units for the first time this year to show the standalone profitability of each of them.
PowerVR has a 40% operating margin. making £37.8m adjusted operating profit (2016: £31.0m} on revenues of £94.8m. MIPS
lost £1.2m {2018: loss £5.0m) and Ensigma £6.5m (2016: loss £11.7m). Remaining unallocated overheads relate to the cost of
the board and advisors required as a listed company, thare 15 alse a £1.4m exchange loss accounted for centrally.

Adjusted operating profit

Consistent with prior periods, adjusted profit is used by the business to measure its performance year on year by excluding
non- recurring items {items which typically do not occur every year), items relating to acquisitions. disposals ard investments,
rcn-cash based shars incentive charges and amortisation of intangible assets acquired from acguisitions. The board adjusts
for these items because it considers that doing so provides a clearer view of the operating performance of the business. This
year. adjusted operating profit” for continuing operations was £29.2m {2016: £10.5m). A recenclliation of this to the statutory
operating loss s grven in note 2. The kay adjustments made to operating losses from both cantinuing and discontinued
operations were to add hack:



» non-cash share-based incentives charge of £12.7m (2015 £7.8m} which has risen significantly due to large share option
grants in 2016/17 as retention measures;

s amortisation of intangibles from acquisitions of £6.0m (2016 £8.7my):
* gequisition related costs of £0.6m 2016: £1.1mj relating to the Posedge ard Kisel acquisitions, these have ended in FY 17,
= contingent acquisition consideration release of £1.3m (2016: £1.7m} relating to the Posedge acquisition:

* onerous contract provision of £2,1m (2016: £6.7m) — this reflects the losses that will be made on various SoC design contracts
{which are part of the contracts retained from the sale of IMGworks);

* Group restructuring costs of £1.0m (2016. £6.6m) - reflecting remaining casts to effect the cost savings made in FY17:
* josses on sale of businessas and a building of £3.4m (2016: nil}.

Adjusted operating loss® for discontinued operations was £8.9m (2016: £35.0m). most of which related to IMGworks which was
sold after the year end, although the related customer contracts have not yet left the Group.

Cn a statutory basis, the Group made an overall operating profit befors fax of £2.4m {2016: loss of £29.4m).

The Group's adjusted loss per share was 0.9p (2016: Joss of 9.2p). The Group's reported Joss per share is 10.1p (2016 loss of 28.8p).

Taxation

Net tax was a charge of £18.5m {2015: credit £3.3m} reflecting the write-off of deferred tax assets which can no longer be
recognised due to the uncertainty of timing of future profits. The charge includes overseas withholding tax the Group is required
to pay on customer remittances from various jurisdichions and taxes payable in various junsdictions outside the UK and US
where Imagination’s offices provide R&D, customer support and sales and markeating services for the Group.

There are significant losses avaitable in both the UK and the US to offset fulure year's taxable income. The IRS audit in the US
continues. and focuses on the tax position related to the group's acquisition of MIPS in 2013. A determination has been raised
by the authorities that the group is appealing and the group has recognised a provision for the anticipated settlement.

Balance sheet and cash fiow

The balance sheet at 30 April 2017 shows a rmore stable year in FY 17 following the impact of poor trading in FY 16 and of the
actions taken o improve the position going forward.

Intangible asset movement reflects amortization and the capitalization of patent acquisition costs. Property, plant and equipment
was £84.0m (2016: £69.8m) reflecting capital expenditure during the year of £2.0m (2016: £20.0m) less depreciation. The primary
elemeant of the FY16 capital expenditure was the redevelopment of the Group’s property facilities in Kings Langley which has now
concluded. FY17 capital expenditure is primarily spending on computer hardware reguired for the Group's operations.

Assets and liabilities held for resale at 30 April 2016 have now been sold and the bank facility has been reclassified botween
current and long-term liabilities at 30 April 2017 because the covenant breach at 30 April 2016 has been resolved.

Cash generated by operations was £11.0m (2018: £15.9m) despite large outflows for loss-making discontinuad operations and
restructuring costs because of tight managament of all receipts and payments. Cash generated by continuing operations was
£24.7m with an outflow of £13.7 from discontinued operations.

Net debt at the year-end was £28.4m (2016: £33.0m} and reflects close attention paid to conserving cash despite the losses
made in the year and the restructuring costs accrued in FY 16 that were paid for in FY17. Net debt at the half-year (31 October
2016) was £40.8m, higher than the year end position reflecting stronger cash flows from royalties in the second half of the year
and less losses and cosis of discontinued operations than the first half. The Group's banking facility expires in June 2018 and
future cash flows and going concern cansiglerations are discussed further in the Directors Report and note 1 to the accounts,

T Adjusted profit; loss) is used by management to measure the performance of the business year on year by excluding non-recurring itams §tems which typically
do not oecur cvery year:, toms relating to acquishons, dispesals and investments, non-cash based share incentive charges. and amorhization of infanagible assets
acaurad fror acquisitions. The reconciliation from reported rosults 1o adjusted resuits is set out in note 2.
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Key Performance

Indicators

Business Units Year to 30 April 2017 Year to 30 April 2016 Year / Year%
PowerVR MIPS Ensigma | PowerVR MIPS Ensigma | PowerVR ' MIPS Ensigma

Licensing Revenue (£m) 14.5 7.2 60 10.2 B.4 20 43% 13% 201%

Royalty Revenue {£m) 80.3 28.1 1.6 7T 235 1.5 3% 20% 9%

Ei‘i:ﬁnﬁ;gf‘thippec’ 422 816 8 456 764 ' 7 (7% E 7% 14%

@;’i‘;ff?gr:)peramg profit / 3.8 1.2) .51 2310 (6.0, a1 | 22% 6% (24%)

Group Year to 30 April 2017 Year to 30 April 2016 Year / Year%

Revenue (£m) 151.9 141.4 7%

Loss before tax {(£m) 9.5) 187.5) (B9%)

Ad}us}ed cperating profit / 203 (24.5) (183%)

{loss)™ 4£m)

Net debt (£m)*" (28.4) (33.0) (14%)

Cash outflow on Capex {£m) 4.8 20.3 (76%)

* The recorciiabion from reporied pront to adjusted proft s set out in note 2,

~ het debt s the total of group cash less loans and borrewings. ~he reconciliation 1s shown below

Year to 3¢ April 2017

Year to 30 April 2016

Cash and cash equivalents
{£m) - Note 13

interest bearing loans and
borrowings (Em) - Note 16

Net debt {Em)

17.2

45.6)

{28.4)

5.8

38.8)

(33.0)
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Principal risks
and uncertainties

The Group places great importance on the identification, assessment and effective mitigation and maonitoring of our risks.
Cur appreach to risk management helps us to deliver our objectives and maximise the returns of the Group.

The following table describes the risks that the Board considers to have a potential materfal impact on the Group. They are
specific to the nature of our business notwithstanding that there are other nisks that may occur and may impact the achievement
of the Group’s objectives.

The Board discussions on risk have focused on these items and the actions being taken to both manage and review them
regularly, The Board also recognise that the first risk listed below has potentially crystallised in that Apple, the largest customer.
has claimed it will not require the busingss' technclogy in 15 to 24 months. However, the same risk shill applies to all the
business units and remains a key concern for the Board.

Risk or uncertainty and

' potential impact

Customer Concentration

The tusiness currently has a large Strategy focused across a number of market segrments

portion of revenue related to a small

number of customers and technologies.  Develop refationships with a wider numper of customers spread across different
sectors and jurisdictions

Consalidation within the industry

could drive this further and increase Monitor trends and changes in the semiconductor industry

Imagination’s dependence on a limited

number of custormers. Develop business models that reflect the changing industry landscape

Develop sales strategies to broaden cur customer base

Increase marketing activity to highlight the breadth of markets that we
target and operate

Group Strategy

In a fast maoving business environment,  Strategy is reviewed and updated on an annual basis

the Group Strategy may become

obsolete before it has been fully Regular monitering of the group strategy with the Board and EMB through the year
executed leaving the business without a

meaningful place in the market



Competitive Position

The businass operates in a highly
competitive market and needs

to be able to respond rapidly to
competitive threats as well as custormer
requirements.

A change in the business environment
or business models employed by our
customers could have a detrimentai
impact on our financial performance.

Intellectual Property

Patent-related threats from third parties
seeking to use patents as an alternative
way of generating revenue.

Infringing others patents.

Cyber Risk

Cyber risk causes disruption to

the business or l0ss of IP following

a cyber-attack. This could cause
interruption of internal or external
facing systems, including: interruption
to the business caused by a loss of
data and reputational damage from a
loss of personal or confidential data.
The cost or effort to recenstitute data
that has been stolen or corrupted
and commercial loss from the theft of
commercially sensitive data, including IP.

Drive and deliver new product developments and enhancements which deliver
leading, disruptive technology

Establish trusted relationships with customers to ensure we fully understand their
strategic directiors

Monitor and understand our competitors

Focus on being responsive to customers and improving the quality and defivery
of our products

Adapt a flexible approach to different business models

Obtairing advice on critical underpinning technologies and developments relevant
to our core products from the Technology Advisory Committee

Build a portfolio of strategically important patents
Regularly screen relevant third party patents to avoid infringement

Track industry movements, particularty involving standardisation bodies, to predict
and avoid patent risks

Build streng relationships with external counsel to enable us to act quickly and
defend cur position

Work closely with customers to respond quickly to potential threats

File more patents in key markets like China and India

Degploying the latest generation of firewall protection

Cngoing improvement in the rigour of authentication processes including wider use
of single sign on

fmproved protection of confidential data on portable computers
Improved process of system patching to close security loopholes

Use of third party audits



Products Meeting Customer Requirements

Unable to deliver new products on time
or achieve performance that does not
meet market requirements in terms

of specification, quality or timeliness
could result in loss of market share with
a corresponding impact on financial
performance,

Macro-Economic Developments

Changes in global economic conditicns
can have a significant impact on our
partners and customers and thersfore
may affect the financial performance of
the business.

Foreign Exchange

Significant amounts of the Cormpany’s
ravenus is received in US dollars.

Effective Management of People

In a complex, gecgraphically diverse
and fast moving business it is critical
that we retain and attract the skills and
capabilities needed in sufficient numbers
to deliver our objectives and maintain an
entrepreneurial and dynamic culture.

Internal control failure such as an

employee cornmitting fraud or bribery
due to lack of integrity or awareness.

Debt Facilities

Breachss to the banking covenants.

Put in place resources to manage and maonitor customer requirements
Praject management, including using project management systems

Checks throughout the project to ensure the expected outcomes including
specification and timing will be achieved

Roadmap ptanning process including discussion with key customers

Prioritisation of R&D resources to key projects

Broad customer, enginesring and products base to balance risk

Continuous review of market forecasts

Foreign exchange hedging strategy implemented

Ensure competitive remuneration package is designed to attract, retain
and reward employees with ability and experience to execute group strategy

Invest in training
Succession planning
A clear set of values and underpinning behaviours

Increase frequency and quality of communications

Costs continue to be reduced to reduce cash out flows
Businesses are eing sold and procaeds will reduce debts

Property assets are used as security for the bank facility and could te sold to pay
back the facility if required

Cash is managed on a daily basis with detailled monitaring

Close refationship with the bank to ensure they understand our strategy and
mitigating actions being taken to reduce debt



Corporate and social
responsibility report

“The Group is
committed to

the important
principle of equal
opportunity which
is reflected in the
Group’s policies
and operational
arrangements.”

Corporate and social responsibility

Imagination has remained focused on delivering business success in a responsible
way, seeking to always maintain high environmental ard ethical standards
Recognising that we have responsibilities to all stakeholders, including the interests
of cur employees, their families and the local communities within which we operate.
the Group continues to actively seek positive business relationships with partners,
customers, suppliers and others; ait in support of our approach to dnve our overall
cerporate responsibilities agenda.

The Group remains gecgraphically spread across many globai locations, operating
irtlecal communities, being mindful of surrourding anvircnments where it operates.
Cur gicbal workforces are highly skilled. highly vaiued and are respectad, both
internaily and externally. in the way they operate the business. All of the Groups’
amployses. irrespective of location, are afforded their employment ngrts in line

with the local laws and have a platform to raise concems or issues related to their
employment without fear of redress. The Groug supports the work of cur employees
to support local charities and communities in areas where it operates.

All employees are required to act honestly, farly and with integrity and we ensure
that updates are provided regularty on their obligations.

The Group is committed to the importart principle of equal opportumity which is
reflectad in the Group's policies and operationat arrangements. The commitment

to achieving equality is continually strengthened by work undertaker 13 further
structure pay and develop more visibility and transparercy into grocessas that relate
to cur workforce.,

Environmental impact and energy use

As a Group our ervironmental impact is low. With our main busiress beirg the
development of intellectual property, our emissions come mainly from the use of
efactricity in our offices and business travel. With greater use of enhanced business
technology adopted by the Group, and tighter maragement of travel, we continue
to reduce the emissions we produce.

Redevelopment of site and

environmental impact

The Group is headquartered in Kings Langley, initially cccupying three buildings.
racently reduced to two with the third building accompanying the saie of PURE.
The buildings cccupied in Kings Langley were confirmed as achieving a BREEAM
rating of ‘Excellent’ and the maintenarce regime is such that this level of award will
e maintained.

The promaotior of cur snviccnimental responsibilities see us mamtair native boundary
structure and habitats of the canal area within the Kings Langley campus.
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“Over the last year,
we have taken
steps to ensture
that across all
our geographical
locations we
encourage and
support employees
to recycle their day
to day waste.”

Data centre

To meet the Group's considerable IT requirements, a dedicated data centre

was established and has been fully operational since 2014, To maintain the
environmental footprint, of the two data halls. the Group condensed activity 1o
one of them. The data nall is supported by a highly efficient electrical distribution
system that utilises state of the art static UPS systems that have multiple modes
of oparation to maximise energy efficiency. A low-energy cooling method has also
bezen adopted that provides both a water and air cooled solution.

PURE sale

The Group completed the sale of the PURE division during the year, handing over
the business with processes and plans to maintain and reduce the environmental

impact of its activities. The PURE division was transferred with assurances that it's
own functional activities ensured it was compliant with the folfowing:

*The EC Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (‘WEEE") through
the producer compliance scheme REPIC — this js amed at minimising the impact of
electrical and electronic goods on the environment; and

*The EG Directive on Packaging and Packing Waste {(94/62 EC) obligations through
it's mermbership of the comgpliance scheme Biffpack.

Recycling

Over the last year, we have taken steps to ensure that across all our geographical
locations we encourage and support employess to recycle their day to day waste.
We provide recycling bins for cardboard and non-corfidential materials and separate
confidentiai bags in every office. all of which are recycled. There are also recycling
bins in gach kitchen area. Energy saving measures are alse in place for recycling
components, such as printed circuit boards. toner cartridges, surplus packaging
and paper. All cardboard, wooden boxes. drink cans and plastic bottles are
currently recycled.

Greenhouse gas emissions

In accordance with the GHG emissions reporting requirements of The Compantes
Act 2006 (Strategic and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013 for GHG emissions,
Imagination is required to report the quantity of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
from activities for which the Group is responsible.

We have adopted a financial control approach ta defining our organisational
boundary and therefore the data used reflects our material global operations. The
meathodology used to compile this data is in accordance with the requirements of
the following standards: DEFRA's Environmental Reporting Guidslines: Including
mandatory greenhouse gas emissions reporting guidance (June 2013). Our
reporting period for GHG emissions is in line with our financial reporting year.

Our gross carbon emissions have decreased by 234 - CO2e from 2018, due to a
more efficient use of energy.

Qur material GHG emissions from our business activities in FY17 amounts to 4,333
tonnes of CO2e, consisting of:



Carbon emissions 2017 2016
Tonnes of CO2e Tonnes of CO2e

Scope 1;

CQO2e from the combustion of fuel 377 523

and the operation of any facilities

Scope 2:
CQO2e from the purchase of 3.962 4050
glectricity, heat, steam or cooling ! '
by the Company for its own use
Total 4,339 4,573
“Employee
Our Group chosen intensity 2017 2016
en g a g eme nt measurement is square foot Emissions intensity Emissions intensity
across the whole
scope ¥: 0.00 0.00
Group has been Tornes of CO2e per Sq, f. : :
given priority Scope 2
in the |aSt year Tonnes of CO2e per Sa. fi. €.00 .o
1
develo pl ng the Where data was incomgiete GHG emissions were axtrapolated from the availabie
. - information.
communication
channels to help The Group’s employees

The Group racognises that its reputation and success depends upon the efforts,
empl Oyees d evel 0 p integrity and commitment of its people. Employee engagement across the whole

th ei r kn OWIed ge Of Group has peen given pricrity in the last year, developing the communication
channels to help employees develop their knowledge of the business, offer ideas

the bUSineSS, Of'fer and innovate for the future.

ideaS an d lnnovate The introduction of a formal Employee Engagement Forum and “all-staff” events has
1 provided regular opportunities for the CEO and CFO to engage staff in the Group's
for the fUtu re. performance. strategy. vision and operational developments.

Employee share ownership is encouraged across the Group to align the interests of
our employees and our sharenclders and to enable our employees to share in the
success of the Company. The Group also operates discretionary employee share
plan or bonus alternative and emgployees globally are eligible to receive awards on
an anrwal basis. There are no performance conditions on share awards below the
Executive Maragement Board (EMB) and Board.

Graduate recruitment and internship

We remain focused on brirging people into engineering: the Group runs a graduate
recrutment and internship programme with universities and colieges throughout the
UK and other key locations, achisving some 40 placements through this program
agair this last year. We have developed strong relationships with a number of
urversities. including several in the UK and seek to extend that to other oversees
educational establishments where appropriate.
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“The Group has also

seen an increase
in the young
people from the
local community
undertaking the
structured annual
work experience
program, where
they learn more
about the careers
available in

our sector.”

Academic outreach and sponsorship

We have maintained our links with universities which reflect our technical skillset
and are supporting developments in specific areas where relevant to our intellectual
property. The Group continues to offer a wide range of other incentives to young
people including giving scholarship awards to students at University to promota
opportunities within the Group.

The Group has alsc seen an increase in the young people from the lecal community
undertaking the structured annual work experience program, where they learn more
about the careers available in our sactor.

Diversity

The Group acknowledges the importance and contribution of its employees and
as a global business, values people from all cultures, nationalities, religion and
ethnicities irespective of characteristics such as age. gender. marital status, sexual
origntation or physical or mertal disapility.

The Group is committed to building a diverse organisation to maximise the skills
available ta us in the jurisdictions in which we operate. We ensure that we follow all
legal requirermerts and Best practice in employment across the jurisdictions, based
on equal opportunities for all employees, through the full employee life cycle.

The Group encourages employees with disabiliies to openty seek heip and
guidance. making it clear that they will be supported in their carger. Job applicants
and employees with disabilities are encouraged and given full consideration far
employrment, promotion and training (including. if needed. retraining for alternative
work where employaes have become disabled), based on therr aptitudes and
abilities. The Group considers diversity as an important issue across the Groug, not
just at Board level.

We have marginally increased the percentage of senior fermales in the Group and
recognise that we must continue to work 1o increase the proportion of female staff
within the Group.

Board of Directors  Senior Managers Employees
Male 5 131 1,114
Female 1 25 159
Total 6 156 1,273



Approval

This Strategic raport has baen praparad salely t2 provide additioral informatior to shareholders to assess the Group's strategies
and the potential for those strategies to succeed.

The Strategic report contains certain forward-lcoking statements These statements are made by the directors in good fath
based on the information available to them up to the time of their approval of this report and such statements shotild be treated
with caution dug tc the Inhersnt tncertairties. incliuding both ecoromic and business risk factors, underlying any such forward-
looking information.

The directors. in preparing this Stratagic report, bave complied with section 414c¢ of the Companies Act 20086.

This Strategic report has been prepared for the Groug as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis to those matters which
are significant to Imagination Technologies Group pic and its subsidianes undertakings when viewed as a whole.

This report was approved by the Board of directors on 4 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Guy Millward
4 July 2017
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Board of Directors

Peter Hill

Chairman

Appcintment Data: 1 February 2017 as Chairmar. Joired the board as a non-executive
director on 1 January 2017

Nationality: British

Skills and Experience

Peter is the Chairman of Imagination having joined as a non-exgcutive director on 1 January
2017 and succeeding as Chairman or 1 February 2017 . Peter has extensive experience as
both an executive and Non-executive Director, and s currently the Non-executive Chairman of
Kelier Group plc, the world's largest gectechnical contractor, ard Volution Group plc. a leading
supplier of ventilation progucts, and is a Non-executive Director the Royal Air Foree.

Peter was the Chief Executive of Laird ple, the global provider of device management and
wirgless systems for the electranics industry, from 2002 to late 2011. He also served as an
Executive Directar of Costain Group pic and held senior management positions at BTR plc
{subsequently Invensys picl. He has praviously been Non-executive Chairman of Alent ple, a
ieading supplier of speciality chemicals to the electronics and other industries from 2012 to the
end of 2015, and has been a Non-executive Director of Cockson ple. Meggitt plc and Oxford
Instruments plc and a Non-executive Board member of UK Trade and Investment.

Other current appointments
Keller Group ple

Volution Group pic

Essentra pic

Royal Air Force

Board Committees
Nomination Committee (Chairman)

Andrew Heath

Chief Executive Officer

Appointment Date: 26 May 2016 as Chief Executive Officer. Joined the board as a
non-executive director in August 2012 and was appointed Intenm Chief Executive Officer
on 8 February 2018

Nationality: British

Skills and Experience

Andrew is the Chief Executive Cfficer of Imagination. He joined the Group’s Board in August
2012 as a non-executive director. He has a wealth of international business experience gained
through executive roles at Rolls-Royce and as Chief Executive Officer of Alent plc. He was
praviously a Non-executive Director of LG Fuel Systems Inc. and Oxford BioSignals. Andrew
has a BSc in engineering from Imperial College London and an MBA.

Board Committees
Naomination Committee
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Guy Millward

Chief Financial Officer
Appcintment Date: 21 December 20135 10 present
Nationality: Bntish

Skills and Experience

Guy has previously held a number of senior finance positions with both publicly listed and
privately held technology companies. Guy's previous roles include: Group Finance Director

at Morse Ple from 2008 to 2011 and Altenan plc from 2011 to 2012, He was also CFO at
Advanced Computer Software Group plc from 2013, until its sale to Vista Equity Partners in
mid-2015. Guy has held pesitions at Kewill plc, General Electric Inc and Emst and Young LLP.

Other current appointments
Eckoh Pic

David Anderson

Non-exesutive director and Senior indegendent Rirector
Appointment Date: November 2010 to present
Nationality: British

Skills and Experience

David has over 30 years” investment banking experience including 17 years at Lazard including
two years heading up the Lazard business in Asia and six years at JP Morgan Cazenove. He
spent two vears at Viadafone as group corporate finance director from 2000 to 2002. Since 2008
he has run his own corporate finance business, EPL Advisory LLP, and also built up a portfolio of
non-executive director roles. He has specific skills in mergers and acquisitions (both domestically
and cross- border), restructuring and capital raising, He chairs the audit commities at Bibby Line
Group Limited, He is chair of the trustees of the Lazard pension scheme and Oxford University
Press pension scheme.

Other current appointments
Bibby Line Group Limited

Hibu Group Limited

Howe Robinson Partners (UK) Limited

Board Committees
Audit Committee (Chairman)
Nomination Commitige
Remuneration Committee



Kate Rock

Non-exgcutive director
Appointment Date: August 2014 to presert
Nationality: British

Skills and Experience

Kate has many years of expenence In carperats communications, She was a partrer at College
Hill for 12 years from 1896, where she provided strategic counsel and business communication
strategies to both public and private companies. includirg several technology businesses.

Kate was previously Vice-Chairman of the Conservative Party with resporsibility for business
engagement from 2015 to July 2018, From 2012 to January 2017. Kate also served as a non-
executive director at education company. First News (UK} Limited.

Kata s chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Nominaticn
Committee.

Other current appointments

Member of the House of Lords

Member of the Managemeant Team for The Red Tape Initiative
Senior Adviser to Boden

Visiting Parliamentary Fellow at St Antony's College, Oxford
Wrackleford Farms Limited

Board Committees

Audit Committea

Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee (Chairman)

Nigel Toon

Non-executive director
Appointment Date10 August 2016
MNationality: British

Skills and Experience

Nigel was appoirted to the Board as a Non-Bxecutive Director in August 2016, Nigel has a strong
background in slectronics and technology marketing, and brngs significant experience and understanding
of the semiconductor industry. He 1s cumently the Chairman and CEQ ofGraphcore. Prior to joining
Grapneoreg, he was Chairman of XMOS Ltd, the premier provider of voice and music processing and
control 1Cs. Nigel was Prasident and CEQ at Picochip Inc. a fabless semiconductor business. Previousty
he was a co-founder of Icera Inc., a leading 3G cellular baseband semiconductor company where he
was a member of the Beard of Director and led Sales and Marketing. Nigel is Chairman of the Techricai
Adviscry Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Audit Committee.

Other current appointments
AMOS Ltd

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

Technical Advisory Committee {Chairman)

Changes to the board

Bert Nordberg resigned as Chairman with effect from 31 January 2017.

The appointments of Petar Hill and Nigel Toon are disclesed in this section. Gilles Delfassy
resigned on 24 March 2017,

The role of Company Secretary saw varnous change throughout the year. ulbmately Guy Millward,
who took the role or In June 2018, was re-appointed in July 2017.

There wera no other changes to the board during the financial year and up until the date of this
annual report.
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Directors’ report

The Diractors present their report and audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 Apnl 2017, The following
additioral disclosures ars made in compliance with the Companies Act 2008, the Disclosures and Transparency Rules and the
2014 UK Corporata Governance Code.

The Board has prepared a Strategic Report. including the Chairman's staterment {page 3) and the CEO's raview {page 8), which
provides an overview of the developrnent and performance of the Company's business to 30 Aprii 2017, Certain information required
to be included in the Directors report can be found in other sections of the Annual Report as described below. All information
presented in these sectiors is incorporated by raference into this Directors’ report and is deemed to form part of this report:

Review of the performance and future development of the Group, Strategic Report, pages 310 22.
Principal risks and uncertainties, Strategic report, pages 1510 17,

Disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions, Strategic Report. page 19 to 20.

Employment matters, Strategic report, pages 20 to 21.

The Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 33 to 38, Audit Committse Report, pages 39 o 43, Nominations Committes
Report, pages 44 to 45 and the Remuneration Committee Report, pages 46 o 64 form part of this report.

Significant events since the balance sheet date are disclosed in note 27 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Research and development

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure and advanced technology projects charged directly ta the income
statement was £70.580,000 (2016: £62.411,000). An indication of likely future developments in the business of the Group and
details of research and developrment activities are included in the Strategic repart.

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year. imagination has an established policy of nat making donations to any palitical
party, representative or candidate in any part of the world.

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out within note 22 to the financial statements along
with details of the Groups exposure to market risk, credit and liquidity risk.

Share capital

Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Group's issued share capital during the year arg
shown in note 19, which is incorporated and deemed to be part of this report. The Group has a single class of ordinary shares
which carry no right to fixed income, Each share carmes the right to one vote at general mestings of the Group. As at 30 Aprit 2017.
there were 283,941 363 ordinary sharas in issue listed on the London Stock Exchange of which 978.312 (2016: 1,867.924) were
held in trust, No person has any special rights of control over the Group’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provision of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislanon. The directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of
the Group's shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the Group is governed by its Articles of Association. the UK
Corporate Governance Gode, the Companies Act and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be amended by special
resoiution of the shareholders.



Authority to allot

At the Anrual General Mesting In Septamber 2016, shareholders approved a resciution 1o give dirsctors the authority to allot
ordinary shares up to ar aggregate nominal amount of £9.298.498. i addition. shareholders provided approval to directors to
allot up 1o an aggregate nominal amount of £18.596.993 In connection with an offer by way of a rights 1ssue in accordance with
Investment Management Association guidelires The directors have no present intertion to make use of the authority sought under
this resolution except t¢ satisfy share awards under employee share schemes. The authority will expire on the earfier of the 31
Decermbear 2017 or at the conclusion of the AGM in 2017 and will be proposed for renewal again at this years AGM.

Purchase of own shares

At the Annual General Meeting in September 2016, authorty was granted to the Company 10 purchase its own shares in the

market up to a maximum aggregate number of 27,895,498 shares, being approximately 1G% of the issued share capital as at
8 August 2016. The current authority will expire the sarlier of the 31 December 2017 or at the conclusion of the AGM in 2017
The Group would like to retain the flexibility offered by this resclution and it will therafore be proposed again at this vear's AGM.

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors

The membership of the Board and bicgraghic details of the Directors are provided on pages 24 to 26 and are incorporated into this
report by reference.

Peter Hill was appeinted as Chairman of the Company in February 2017 when Bert Nordberg stepped down from that role. Peter
will seek glection ag Chairman at the 2017 AGM. Gilles Deifassy retired from the Board in March 2017, with Nigel Toon having been
appointed 1 August 2016, Nigel will seek election as a non-executive diractor of the Gompany at the 2017 AGM alsa.

The ruigs for the appointment and replacement of directors are set out In the Company’s Articles of Association. Each new
appointes to the Board is required to stand for election and the next Annual General Meeting fallowing their appointment. In
addition, the Company's articles of association require each director to stand for re-election at feast once every three years.
However, in accordance with the UK Corperate Governance Code, all directors wishing o serve again will submit themsalves for
re-election at the next Annual General Meeting and are recommended for re-election.

The Company maintains directors” and officers’ labifity insurance and ali directors of the Company benefit from qualifying third
party provisions which were in place during the financial year, Article 130 of the Group's Articles of Association provides for the
indemnification of directors of the Group against liability incurred by them in certain situations, and is a ‘qualifying indemnity
provision® within the meaning of section 236 of the Companies Act 2006. The qualifying indemnity was in force during the financiat
year and up to the date of signing the annual report.

Directors’ interests

Interests of the directors in Group shares and share options are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 46 1o 64,
togethar with details of diractors’ remuneration ard service contracts.

Change of control

The Group's share based incentive plans contain provisions relating to a change of control. The Long-Term Incentive Plans, share
awards and performance share awards for the CEO and CFO would vest and become exercisable on a change of control of the
Group. subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions and any discretior: applied by the Bemuneration Committee.

There are no significant agreements to which the Group is a party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 30 April 2017, the Group has been notifiad under Rule 5 of the FCA's Disclosure and Transparancy Rules, of the following
voting rights as a shareholder of the Company.

Bailie Gifford & Co Ltd
Standard Lre Investments (Holdings) Limited

Apple Inc.

MA&G investment Management Ltd
Majedie Asset Management
Black Rock

Ordinary Shares Percentage of issued
of 10p ordinary share capital (%}
41,840,516 14.72
26,955,411 9.43
23,047 770 3.1
21,094,407 7.43
12,593,577 3.64
10,049,795 319

Save for the above, the Group has not been notified, as at 30 June 2017 of any interest exceeding 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Essential contracts

There are a large number of agreements in place with the Group's customers and partners. There are ne parfies with whom the Group
has cartractual or other arangements which are essentiat to the business of the Group except the contract with Apple Inc.

information presented in other sections

For the purposes of compliance with LR 9.8 4C R, the information required ta be disclosed by LR 8.8.4 R can be found in the
following locations:

o = S
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Interest capitafised

Publication of unaudited financial information

Details of long-term incentive schemes

Waiver of emoluments by a director

Waiver of future emcluments by a director

Non pre-emptive issues of equity for cash

Non pre-emptive issues by a major subsidiary undertakings
Parent participation in a placing by a listed subsidiary
Contracts of significance

Provision of saervices by a contraling shareholder
Shareholder waivers of dividends

Sharehoider waivers of future dividends

Agreements with controliing sharehclders

Not applicable

Not applicable
Remuneration Report, pages 46 to 64
Nat applicable

Nat applicabte

Not applicabie

Not applicabie

Not applicable

Directors Report, page 29
Not appiicabie

Not appiicable

Not applicable

Not appiicable



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with appiicable law and regulations.

Company law requrres the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements In accordance with UK Accounting
Standards. including FRS 101 Reduced Disclesure Framework,

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
group and parent company financial statements. the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting poficies and then apply them consistently:
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudert;
* for the group financial statements. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

= for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements: and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the group and the
parant company will continue in business.

The directors ara respansible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008. They have general responsipility for
taking such steps as ars reasonatly open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Under applicable faw ard regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that complies with that law and those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company's website, Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staternents may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

s the financial statements, prepared In accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards. gve a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; angd

« the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

We consider the annual report and accourts, taken as a whaie. is far, balanced and understandabie and provides the
information necessary far shareholders to assess the group's position and perforrmance, busiress modei and strategy.

Basis of preparation

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required o consider whether the
Group can continue in cperational existance for the foreseeable future.

At the date of this report. the group has drawn down bank facilities of £45.6m which are scheduled to expire dunng June 2018,

On 3 April 2017, the Group anrcunced that Apple Inc. "Apple”) has asserted that it will no longer use the Group's intellectual
property ir its rew products in 15 monrths to 2 years' time. Apple revenuas constitute 45.2% of the group's revenue from
continuing activities for the year ended 30 Apnrl 2017, The group is in dispute with Apple ard has reserved its rights. While the
Directors’ have no reascn to believe that Apple will withhold or delay payments during this process. should this occour. the group
would likely need to seek additional funding beyond the faciibes that are currently avalable to it
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As announced on 4 May 2017, the Directors are undertaking a review of the group’s operations. This includes, but is not
limited to. a sale of its MIPS and Ensigma businesses. On 22 June 2017, the group announced it had received intarast from a
number of parties for a potential acquisition of the whole Group. The Board therefore decided to initiate a formal sale process
for the Group and is engaged in praliminary discussions with potentiat bidders. The Dirsctors have deterrmined that, should the
sales process not be concluded as planned. the Group will need to take decisive measures to improve profitability and cash
generation,

The Directors have reviewed the Group's business and capital structure and developed the Business Plan ("the Plan™) in order
to consider the measures that would need to be undertaken. In the absence of significant procaeds being generated by the
planned disposal of its MIPS and Ensigma businesses. the Plan assurnes a significant reduction of fixed cost expenses while
preserving the ability of the husiness to continue to defiver on existing customer contracts and continue targeted develcpment
of its core intellectual property. The plan sees debt paid down in full before the end of FY18. There is further opportunity to seli
certain property assets to accelerate cash generation and/or mitigate risk.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period in excess of 12 months. Various scenarios have been considered
to test the Group's resilience against operational risks including:

* Adverse movements in US Dallar exchange rate;
* Delays in executing the reduction in costs should the disposals not proceed as planned: and
s Delays in cash receipts from significant customers.

The potential impact of changes in assumptions arising from matters outside the Group's control, or the unlikely event of a
culmination of events. may rasult in the group requiring additional working capital beyond the group s existing facilities. This
represents a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group's abiiity to continue as a going concern such
that the Group may be unable te realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Nevertheless, based on the Group's assessment of the Plan, the Directors' believe that the Group will continue to have
accepiable financial resources to meet obligations as they fall due and comply with its financial covenants and accordingly have
formed a judgement that is appropriate to prepare the financiat statements on a going concern basis. Therefore, these financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result if the going concern bagis of praparation 1s inappropriate.

Viability statement

The Directars have had detailed and ongoing discussions as a Board regarding the longer term viability of the group. As
discussed in the going concern section above there are 2 number of contingent events that have the poiential to significantly
impact both the scale of the group's operations and its areas of sirategic fecus. In particular, the Directors’ are mindful that
the conclusion of current negotiations for the sale of the group or certain of its divisions will significantly influence the Board's
plans for the fonger term. With this is mind, the Directors’ have concluded that it is appropriate to perform the group's viabiiity
assessment over the period to April 2018 and have performed a robust assessment of potential scenarios that may sterm from
the uncertainties cutlined above.

While the Directors remain confident of a satistactory outcome to the sales process, there are combinations of events that would
require the company to sesk additional funding heyond the existing term of the group's current committed arrangements. In
making this assessment, downside sensitivities have been performed on certain key assumptions that underpin the forecasts. in
particular, the Directors have considered the mpact of delays in executing the planned reduction in costs should the disposals
not proceed as planned and the ability to take mitigating action, including further divestment of assets such as the group's
freehold property, to ensure the group's liabilities are met pver the assessment penod.

Based an the groups' expectation that a satisfactory outcome will be found to the uncertainties described, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able tc continue in operation for this pericd and meaet its liabilities as they fall due.

Disclosure of information to auditors

£ach director confirms that, at the date this Annual Report and Accounts was approved, so far as the director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware: and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director in order 1o make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Group's auditor is awars of that information.



Independent auditor

The Group's independent auditor. KPMG LLP (KPMG) have exprassed their willingness to continue in office and resolutions for
therr reappointment ard to authorised the directors to determine its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

KPMG has beenr the Group's extarnal auditor since 1994, Whilst the Group has rot formally tendered the audit since then, the
Audit Committee undertakes an annual review of the independence, obiectivity and effectiveness of the audit firm in considering
whether to recommend the reappointment of the extarnal auditors at the AGM. The current pariner at KPMG was appointed

as Group Audit Partner in 2015 after completion of the 3G April 2015 financial year audit engagement. in compliance with the
requirement to rotate this position every 5 years, Further information on the Group's approach to audit tendering can be found ir
the Audit Committes report on page 43.

For and on behalf of the Board

Guy Millward

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
4 July 2C17

Company number: 2920061
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Corporate governance
report

Chairman’s introduction

Dear Shareholder.

As Chairrman of the Board, | am pleased to present our Corporate Governance statermnent on behalf of the Board. Having joined
as Chairman in January of this year, | have been extremely satisfied with the commitrment shown by all Board members to the
Company and to ensuring that an effective governance framework operates at the core of the business.

My appeintment process was conducted in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, having been led by the
Senior Independent Director, David Anderson. My predecessor, Bert Nordberg, provided sound stewardship of the Company,
and the Board and | thank him for this.

| stepped into the business at a challenging time. The relationship with Apple has been well docurmented and that is addressed
in the CEO Report. That situation has howsaver, highlighted the need for the Board to continue the work it had already started
which focused on delivering an effective business plan that would allow the business to grow and to be supported by a
comprehensive governance framework,

In ensuring the business and the Board is supported by an appropriate governance framework, over the past year the

Board reviewed the composition of the committees and how the Board used its time. This was also conducted in light of the
farthcoming retirement of one of our non-executive directors, Gilles Delfagsy, who stepped down in March 2017, having spent
close to five years as a director. Gilles had in depth technical expertise of the industry that has always been greatly appreciated.
in preparation for Gilles’ retirement, Nigel Toon was appointed to the Board on 10 August 2016. Nigel brings a wealth of industry
and technical expersnce to replaca that lost with Gilles retirement. Nigel superseded Gilles as the Chairman of the Technical
Advisory Committee.

We agreed that all board members would be invited to attend all committes meetings. This provides the most constructive

use of our time and ensures that matters are discussed in an open and transparent anvironment whereby all directors have
unrestricted access to information and managsment. The Board is committed 1o working in accordance with the UK Cerporate
Goverrance Code and has sought to ensure full compliance with the Code. However. there was one area where the Board
decidad it would be a better use of its time and resources to defer. This was in respect of canrying out a beard effsctiveness
review. As | had been newly appainted, and Andrew Heath only in place for a short time himself, the Board agreed that a revigw
waould oty serve to identify potential areas that the Board already wanted to improve such as the risk management process,
board planning and nevitably as a board with new members. ieaming to work together cohesvely to form a strong leadershio
team to support the business. it is the Board's intanition to camy out the review during 201718 when the output from the review
is likely to be more meaningful. The findings will be reported to shareholders within the various sections of the Annual Report
next year.

The Board believes in the importance of a diverse Board and has always been actively supportive of measures to achigve this
without putting quotas in place. The Board notes the publication of Lord Davies' Review intc Women on Boards in February
2011 and the proposals published by the Furopean Commission in November 2012, and recognises there is a gender
imbalance among the Group's employees, as there are with many crganisations in the science. engineenng and technology
sectors. Diversity is important for a successful Board and we seek to attract the right talent and skills irrespective of gender or
ethnicity whilst considering all appointments on merit. We believe that diversity should be considered broadly and should not just
focus on gender, We will continue 10 select candidatas hased on theair relevant skiils, experence and knowledge and in keeping
with the business’ needs. The Board will continue to monitor diversity and take such steps as it considers appropriate to reflect
our meritocratic and diverse business. Further mformation on the Group's diversity can be found on page 21.

The Group's significant financial and business matters were considered by the Audit Committee. This included a robust
assessment of the principal risks, as set out in the table on pages 15 to 17, with input from the Executive Management Board
(EMB) as well as the requirements to prepare a viability statement.

Reports from the vanous Board committees and details of their current composition ares also covered ir more detail in their
respective section of this report. The Board 1s satisfied that the committees are working effectively to deliver strong oversight and
governance over their respective areas of rasponsibility, and are reporting appropnately to the Board, i accordance with their
terms of reference.



During 2016 17 the Board ravised three policies to ensure they remairsd up to date ard relevart to bow the business operated
as well as implementirg the requirements of the Modern Slavery Act. The ravised policies included Anti-Bnbery. Corruption

and Fraud, Whistieblowing and Business Ethics. These policies undering the importance placed by the Board on our business
corduct, and ersuring that all our staff work with the highest levals of integrity and honesty at the foreront of all their actions,
whilst ensurirg that no cne individual should be afraid to speak cut if they become concerred about any activitiss.

The challenges presentad by the situation with Apple have required the Board to evolve its existing plans and strategy 3o that

it was announced in May 2017, that MIPS and Ensigma were to be sold. This was a difficult decision for the Board 1o take as it
was a departure from its planred strategy for those two busingss units to be partnered with a suitable business. The decision
was balanced agairst the need to ensure the continued viability of the business and so it was agraed that the business was best
served by their sale. The sale ailows resources to be concentrated into PowerVR.

The next year will again, be a penod of significant transformation and change for the business. 1 believe the business is served
wall by a strong, expenenced and knowledgeable Board.

Peter Hill

Chairman

4 July 2017
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Corporate governance
compliance

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Group has complied with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code. both the main principles and the
supporting principles, throughout the year and to the date of this report, other than in relahon to rule B.6 on Evaluation. as
outlined in the letter from the Chairman on page 33. We explain in the reports below how we applied the provisions and
principles of the Financial Conduct Authority Listing Rules, the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, and the UK Corporate
Governance Code. Further explanation on how the main principles have been applied is set out below and in the Audit
Coammittee Report and the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The role of the Board

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the proper conduct of the business and ensunng its Jong-term success. It has
ultimate responsibllity for the activities of the Group including its overall direction, strategy, risk management, governance and
performance. |n order to meet that responsibiity it ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are in place, and
that it is supportad in its activities by its various Committees, EMB and senior managers. The authority delegated by the Board
to the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees to carry out certain tasks, are defined in each Commitiees’ Terms of
Reference. Further information on the responsibiliies of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are set out in their
respective reports on pagss 44 to 64,

Matters specifically reserved for the Board to make decisions on include, but are nat fimited to. the following:
* Group long-term strategy:

* (Group major busingss dec‘egions;

« Group-wide business and financial review mcludiné annual budget.

* major capita! expenditure, acquisitions, disposals and investments, significant property leases,

= review of the internal financiai control and nsk management systems;

* recommendations of the sub-committees of the Board;

¢ the approval of interim andg annual financial statements; and

* freasury management.

The Board delegates other operational matters to the EMB for 13 review with other senior managers of the business 1o enable
them to make appropriate divisional decisions.

The composition of the Board

The Board currently consists of sixk members; the non-executive Chairman, the CEO, the CFO and three non-executive dirsctors.



Board and Committee meeting attendance

Peter Hill 3 3/3 2/ /2 N/A N/A
Bert Nordberg’ 3 6/6 2" 1 11 IN/A
Andrew Heath N/A 8/8 4/4” 3/3" 272 2/2
Guy Miliward N/A 5/8 4/4” 2/2* N/A IN/A
Gilles Delfassy? 3 6/6 3/3 3/3 2/2 2/2
DBavid Anderson 3 8/8 4/4 4/4 2/2 N/A
Kate Rock 3 8/8 4/4 4/4 2/2 N/A
Nigel Toon® 3 B/6 3/3 3/3 2r2 2/2
* Derotes attendance by a director, whe s net 2 rerber of the Comrmittce. at a Corrmittze maeting. as requested by the Charran of the Cormmittes

Resignad on 31 January 2017
Rusigned on 24 March 2817

Appointad on 0 August 2016

Activities of the Board

The Board holds regular scheduted meetings throughout the year which are supplemented by unscheduled meetings which are
held when urgent business decisions are requirad, such as relating to acquisition activity. At each meeting certain regular reports
are presented, During a meeting the:

* CEQ delivers a full Lusiness update with focus on the semiconductor market, a tusingss summary for each division, the
Group's relaticnships with current and potential partners, licensing updates, royalties, potential acquisitions and key business
issues and actions:

» CFQ gives the year to dale financial results, latest financial projections including cash flows and funding requirements, investor
relations activity and market forecasts:

» Board reviews the status of the Group's long-term strategy: and

» Company Secretary provides updates covering governance, share price data, share schemes management, risk manragement
reporting and shareholder analysis.

The CEC and CFO attend weekly and monthiy meetings of the EMB, where each member provides an up to date operatonal
report in which progress against plan is reviewed to ensure that this is in line with the Group's strategic and business targets.
They wili then provide feedback to the Board at the next scheduled meeting on any areas of significant interest.

Activities during the year

During the year in addition to the above the Board discussad the following:

* an operational review o assess efficiency. cost allocation and the portfolio strategy of the Group:

s oversight of the financial position of the Group and its performance against budget, forecast and market expectations;

* the key issues affecting the busingss and industry trends which includes the ongoing situation with Apple and the subsequent
decision to market MIPS and Ensigma for sale;

e restructuring initiatives which in ight of recent events has included the future strategy for PowerVR;
¢ the Group risk management process. nsk tracking and mitigation:

e the recruitment of a new Chairmar and non-executive directar;

¢ the output from the Technology Advisory Committee:

* discussed and considerad the requirsments and content of the wiability statement and reviewed the prircipal risks
identified by the Group; and

s the re-negotiation of ficensing ard services contracts.



Division of responsibilities and Board Committees

In accordance with the Code there is a clear division of responsibilities between the Charmar and the CEO. which have been
set aut m writing and agraed by the Board. The written roles are available to view on the Group's website.

The Group has a traditional Board structure with a unitary Board comprising the non-executive Chairman. executive and non-
sxecutive diractors. The Audit and Remuneration Committess are made up of independent non-executive directors and they,
together with the Nomination Cormmittee. report to the Board. During the year the newly formed Technology Advisory Committee
{TAC) met. The TAC was established to provide independent and impartial advice to the Board on the appropriateness of
current technology roadmaps, to identify any gaps in technology readmaps and confirm required technology and engineering
capabilities for the future. The EMB reports to the CEO and the divisions and functions report to the EMB.

Role of Chairman

Peter Hill 1s the non-executive Chairman, having been appointed in January 2017. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board and ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role. Peter sets the agenda for the Board and ensures that the
Board receives accurate, imely and clear information, giving sufficient ime 1o review all agenda items thoroughly including
strategic issues. He promoetes a culture of openness. debate and facilitates constructive relations batween executive and non-
exacutive directors. He is aiso responsible for ensuring that the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board as a
whole. In order for him 1o effectively discharge his duties he works closely with the Company Secretary. He is Chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Chairman's other professional commitments are listed on page 24 and the Board are satisfied that
they do not interfere with the performance of his duties for the Group.

Role of Chief Executive Officer

Andrew Heath is the Chief Exacutive Officer. He is responsible for proposing, developing and implementing the Group s strategy
and commercial targets as agreed by the Board. He is responsibie for the day-to-day management of the business. He carries
out his duties in consultation with the Ghairman, the Board and EMB which in turn are responsible for the cormmercial and
operational activities of the Group. He holds weekly meetings with the CFQ and EMB to ensure the Group is actively managing
the overall strategy of the business. He regularty holds meetings with the Group's customers, patential customers and partners
for executive discussions on current and future business. He is also responsible, with the EMB, for implementing the decisions of
the Beoard and its Committees.

Role of the Senior-Independent Director (‘SID’)

Davia Anderseon acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the other directors when
necessary. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committzes.
David took on the role of Chairman of the Nomination Committee. in place of Bert, whilst the appointment process for recruiting
a new Chairman was conducted. He aiso makes himself avaifable to shareholders if they have concerns where contact through
the normal channeis of Chairman, CEO or CFO has failed to find a resoilution, or wherg such contact is inappropriate. During the
year he met with some of the larger institutional shareholders of the business.

Role of the Company Secretary

During the year, the Company has been served for the most part by Guy Millward, as the Company Secretary, with the role
now having been returned to Guy Millward once more at the start of July 2017, The Company Secretary is under the direction
of the Chairman and ensures a good flow of information within the Board and its Committees and to senior management. The
Company Secretary has also been responsibie for advising the Board on all governance matters and is on hand to offer advice
and services should any diractor require it. The Company Secretary attends all Board and Committee mestings. The Board as a
whole decides on the appointment or removal of the Company Secretary.

Role of Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors have a wealth of experience, business knowledge and are appointed to constructively challenge
senior management and provide input to meet agreed goals, objectives and to ensure the integrity of financial information. The
role is described in moere detail within the Financial Reperting Council Code.

The Board has considered the irdepenclence of the non-executive directors and agrees that the non-executives meet the
independence ariteria specified in the Code. Furthermore, no institutional investor has raised concerns over their ndependence.



Development, information and support

Formmal board meetings are held dunrg the year ard the Chaiman and the Company Secretary ensure that. prior to each meeting. the
directors receive accurate. Clear ard timely information which heips them to discharge therr duties. The diractors receive their board
papers through an glectronic portal and ars able to referance and mark the electronic papers in the Doard mesting.

All rewly appointed directors participata in a formal interral induction programme that is designed to enhance the directors’
knowledge of the industry in general and their urderstanding of the Group’s operations and performance. ard importantly the
Group culture,

The induction pregramme censists of the following:

¢ one-to-one meetings with the Chairman, CEO and CFO and meetings with the remaning Board members:
+ meetings with EMB and seror maragermert to discuss Group operations:

* meeting with shareholders. where apprepriate; and

¢ attendance at strategy meetings.

In agcordance with the Code the Chairman regularly reviews ard discusses the development needs with each director. Each
director 1s fully aware that they should take rasponsibility for therr own individual development needs and take the necessary
steps to ensure thay are wholly informed of regulatory and business developments.

Appointment to the Board

There is a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors 1o the Board. More detall is given In
the Namiration Committee Report on page 44.

Commitment

During the ysar, the directors committed sufficient time to the Group to discharge therr responsibilities effectively.

Board evaluation

The directors accept that the Board evaluation process is ar important opportunity to review the practices and performance

of the Beard, its committees and its individual directors, and implement actions to improve the board's focus, effactiveness

and ability to contribute to the Company’'s success on an ongoing basis. An extarnally faciitated performance gvaluation of the
Board was due to have been conductad dunng the year. however. the Board agreed 1o postpane this so as to ensure their focus
remained on the situation with Apple and the sale of MIPS and Ensigma.

The SID is responsible for performance appraisal of the chairman.

Conflicts of interest

All directars have a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a situation in which they have, or can have. a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Group. The Group has put in place procedures for the
disclosure and review of any conflicts or potential conflicts of interest which the directors may have and for the authorisation of
such conflict matters by the Board. In deciding whether to autherise a conflict, or potential confiict, the directors have regard to
their general duties under the Companies Act 2006. The authorisation of any conflict matter. and the terms of authorisation, may
be raviewed at any time and are reviewed formally by the Group on an annual basis. Thera have been no conflicts of interest
raised in the ysar.

38



Audit Committee report

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to prasent the report for the Audit Commuittae for 2016/17. The Audit Committes is appointed by the Board and
rnonitors the integrity of financial information and provides assurance to the Board that the Group's internal financial conifrofs and
risk management systems are approbriate and ragularly reviewed. Its lerms of reference are agreed annually by the Board and
are set out on the website www.imgtec.com.

The Audit Committee continues to focus on ensuring that the Group's systems and controls are opsrating effectively and
are evolving in line with the Group's changing structure. A fuller insight into the role. activities and composition of the Audit
Committee is provided below.

David Anderson
Chairman of the Audit Committes

4 July 2017

Role of the Audit Committee

The The main duties of the Audit Committee inciude but are not fimited to the following:

* reviewing the Group's internal financial controls and risk management systems:

e monitoring the integrity of the financial statements;

= ensuring that the financial statements of the Group are fair, balanced and understandable;
* assessing the completeness and accuracy of the going concern and viability staterments;
* developing and implementing the policy on the engagement of the external auditor:

* making recommendations to the Board in relation to the external auditors regarding approvat of their remuneration, terms of
engagement, appointment, re-appointment or removal;

* reviewing and monitoring the external auditors' independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process:

* monitoring the Group’s whistleblowing procedures to ensure that appropnate arrangements are in place for employees to be
able 1o raise in confidence matters of possitle impropristy, with suitable subsequent follow-up action,

* considenng annually whather thers is a nead for an internal audit function;
= ensuring director’s expenses are of a reasonable busiress nature and authorised appropriately; and
* reporting to the Board on how it has discharged its respansibifities.

In the financial year, the Audit Committee fulfilled its duties under its terms of reference and discharged its
rasponsibilities primarity by:

* reviewing the Groups draft haif-yearly and full year results prior to Board approval:
* reviewing the draft trading updates during the year;
* assessing the external auditors’ independence and objectivity;

= reviewing the external auditors' plan for the audit of the Group's financial staternents, which included key areas of scope of
work, terms of engagement and fees;

* reviewing the external auditors’ report on the results of their year-end audit;

s reviewing the Group's arrangements for the security and patent protection of its inteltectual proparty:
» reviewing the Group's system to igentify and manage risk;

= raviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal risks over financial reporting:

» reviewing directors” expenses; and

« reviewing the Audit Committee's terms of reference. Following the review in 2017, the terms of reference were amended so
that the committee meets three times. rather thar four times a year but can still meet more if required and all non-executive
directors are entitled to attend the committee meetings.
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Committee composition

The composition of the Augit Committee changed during the year followirg Gilles Delfassy's resignation. Nigel Toon was
appeinted to the committee in Gilles' place. The committes consists exclusively of independent non-executive directors with the
Charman and executive directors invited to attend each meeting.

The Audit Committee comprised the following directors:

* David Arnderson (Chairman)
* Kate Rock
* Nigel Toon

The Audit Committee met four times in 2016/7. The primary purpose of sach of the meetings was to plar the annual audit
process. to discuss the changes required in financial reporting. to review the haif-year accounts and to review the full year
accounts. Other matters were dealt with as necessary. Attendance at meetings is shown on page 36. The external auditors
KPMG and key members of the Group finance team are also invited to attend meetings.

In agcordance with UK Corporate Governance Code provision C.3.1 the Board should satisfy itself that at least one member of
the Audit Committse has recent and relevant financial experience. The Board has considered this requirement and. taking into
account the financial background and other roles of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, it is satisfied that this reguirement has
been met and that the Audit Committee has sufficient experience to fulfil its obligations in an effective manner.

Significant issues that the Audit Committee considered in
relation to the financial statements

The Audit Committee considerad the key accounting judgerments undertying the preparation of the financial statements focusing

specifically on:

Significant Issues

Licence revenue recognition

Viability and going concern

| Description

The method used for licence revenue
recognition involves a number of judgements
including an assessment of the extent of

prograss towards completion of the contract.

The Board is required o consider and report
on the longer-term viability of the business,
as well as assess the appropriateness of
applying the going concern assumption.

W’orlc pedormed by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal
procedurss performed by management to
ensure revenue is recognised appropriately
and in accordance with applicable standards.

The Audit Gommittee considered
management’s conclusion that there was a
material uncertainty refated to going concern
and the completeness and accuracy of the
disclosure provided in the Annual Report. The
Cemmittee also assessed the conclusions
concerning the group’s lenger viability

in particular the assessment peariod, the
mitigating actions that could be taken, and
the conclusions reachesd.



Other Issues

Accounting for share based
payments

Valuation of investments

Recoverability of debtors

Presentation of discontinued
operations

Valuation of geodwill and
fixed assets

Recoverability of defarred tax
assets and tax debtors

Royalty revenue recognition

e

Calculating the share based payments
requires estimation in determining the fair
value of the awards.

The Group holds investments in privatety
owned companias for which fair value is
based on limited private information and ts
therefore subjective.

The nature of the Group’s business means
that the Group continues to held significant
debtors at any point.

Cetermining whether the criteria for classifying
businesses as discontinued have been met.

Goodwill balances are material. Financial
statements and impairment reviews are
regularly performed.

The Group's deferred tax assets and tax
debtors require review for recoverability.

Royalty revenue recognition requires
estimation where a statement has not been
received.

| Work porformed by Aucit Committes

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
findings of the specialists engaged to perform
the current year share based payment work,

The Audit Committee has considered the
method used for deriving the valuations
as well as considering alternatives such as
forecast financial performance.

The Audit Committee has satisfied itseif
with management's regular assessment of
outstanding debtors and how they manage
the relationship with those outstanding
debtors,

The Audit Committee have reviewed the
classification of businesses in the financial
statements.

The Audit Caommittee has reviewed the
forecast and the assumptions used in the
impairment review when considering the need
for impairment.

The Audit committee has satisfied itself that
management’s write-down of tax assets isin
line with the uncertainty conclusions reached.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
procedures used by management for
reaching estimates.
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Risk management and internal control

Tre Board assumes ovarall responsibility for ensuring that the Group mairtairs an effective system of internal controls to provide
it with reasonable assurance regarding management of risk across the busingss. and that éach business area implements
appreprate internal controls. The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsioiities i this regard. The

risk management pracess and system of internal cantral are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and the Board
racogrises that this system of internal control can only provide reasonabia and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss. The Board is not aware of any significant failings or weaknesses in the system of internal control.

The Group has a clearly defined organisational structure. Managers assume resgonsibility for running day-to-day operational
activities, with performance regularly reviewead, and emplayeges are reguired to follow procedures and policies.

The Group's assessment of its principal risks and uncertainties is set out on page 15 to 17.

The Board 1s responsible for identifying, evaluating and managirg all major businass risks facing the Group. To facilitate the
assessment of rigks, monthly reports on non-financial matters are compiled by all business units covering such matters as sales
perfarmance, project progress. compliance. health and safety, environment. product quality. custemer support metrics and
human resource issues.

The Group has a comprehensive system for reporting financial results to the Board. Monthly accounts for each business unit,
with a financial commentary comparing current year performance with budget and forecast, together with key performance
metrics, are preparad N accordance with the Group accounting policies and principles for Board consideration.

The Board monitors the Group's funding requirements, treasury function, banking facilities and FX exposure and approves
capital and significant investment expenditure.

The Board considers that there have been no substantial weaknesses in internai financial controls that have resulted in
material loss.

The Audit Committes considered the Group's risk management and internal control systems. as well as internal financial
controls. The findings were then prasented to the Board for further consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the
Group's systemns. risk identification and mitigating actions complied with the relevant regulations and allowad the Board to
reasonably estimate residual risk as acceptable and within normal parameters for a company operating in Imagination's sphere
of business.

Internal audit

In addition under the Code the Audit Committee is required to monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit activities.
During the year 2015/16 the Audit Committee decidad that a separate internal audit function was required and appoeinted Grant
Thornton to provide this outscurced internal audit service.

External audit process

At the start of the audit cycle, KPFMG presented their audit strategy, identifying their assessment of the Key risks for the purposes
of the audit and the propased scope of their wark.

KPMG reports to the Audit Committee at both the half and full-year setting out therr assessment of the Group's judgements
and estimates in respect of these risks and the adequacy of the reporting. The Audit Committee meets with KPMG without the
axecutive being prasent at least once a year and the Audit Partner and the Audit Committee Chairman, David Anderson, have
discussions throughout the year as becomes appropriate.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the scope of the audit is appropnrate, all significant accounting judgements have been
challenged robustly and the audit has been effective.

Tre ALdit Committee 1s responsible for oversesing the Group's relatiors with the exterral auditar. During the year the Audit
Cemmittee approved the terms of engagement and remureration to be paid to the external auditcr and agreed the scope and
approach of the audit.



Non-audit services and maintaining auditor independence

The Group currertly has a policy Ih place for the provision of non-audit services prowided by the external auditor. The policy
highlights the importance of independence and objectivity and states that non-audit senvices can only be provided whera these
are guaranteed, KPMG provided additonal services in respect of the sale of Pure, ard this has been disclosed on page 59,
The value of this wark was such that it has not impacted the independence of KPMG to act as external auditor.

To {ulfil ts responsitiity regarding the ndependence of the external auditor. the Audit Committee considered the auditor's overall work,
plar including the role of the senior statutory auditor and key audit staff and the overall extent of non-audit services. in order to assess
effectiveness the Audit Committee considered the arrangements to maintain auditor independence and the auditor's fulfiment of the
agreed audit plan including that the proposed resources to execute the plar were consistent with the scope of the audit engagement.
The Audit Commiites is satisfied with the effectiveness and independence of the external auditor.

Audit tendering and proposed re-appointment of auditor

KPMG has been the Group's external auditor since 1994, Whilst the Group has not formalty tendered the audit since then, the
Audit Committee undertakes an annual review of the independence, obiectivity and effectiveness of the audit firm n considering
whether to racommend the reappointment of the external auditors at the AGM

The Audit Committee is mindful of changes and guidelnes on external audit tendering and has noted the changes to the UK
Corporate Governance Code introduced by the FRC in September 2012 and. in particular, the rgquirement contained in the
Guidance on Audit Committees to put the external audit contract out to tender at least every ten years.

Aside from the UK Competition Commiissicn and European Commission ruies that would require KPMG to stand down in 2020,
there are no contractual cbiigations currently restricting the current or future cheoice of external audit firm. The Group Audit

Partner is rotated every five years, with the current partner, John Bennett, being first appointed for the year ended 30 April 2018.

The Audit Committee will keep the situation with regards to tendering for an external audit under close review with a view to
meeting these guidelines within the foreseeable future.

Having corsidered all these matters the Audit Committee concluded that it would recommend to the Board that KPMG should
be re-appointed as auditors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Nomination Committee
report

Dear Shareholder

This financial year has been a period of transition for the Board. The Committee has ensurad that a review of the skills,
experience and attributas of the current diractors was given robust consideration wher determining the qualities to be sought
when making director appointments in the year.

During 2016 the Committee had identified the need for a greater degree of technclegy expertise amongst the independent
non-executive directors and a process for a replacement non-executive with the requisite skills. knowledge and expenence
to maximise effactiveness in discharging the duties of the Beoard resulted in our recommendatior to the Board that Nigel Toon
be appointed to the Board. The role of this ror-executive was to also contribute to the now established Technical Advisory
Committee, which Nigel subsequently chairs. The search was supported by Zygos Partnership.

During the year, we concluded the appointment of a new Chairman and a Non-Executive Director. In late 2018. the search for
a replacement for Bert Nordberg commenced led by the Senior Independent Directer, David Anderson. Zygos Partnership had
been used praviously 1o lead the search for the replacement appeintment of the CFO & CEO and having proved successful,
ware appointad agan to search for our new Charman. Following a ngorous search process the Nomination Committes
recommended the appointment of Peter Hill to the Board. Peter’s extensive experience as both a chairman and ron-executive
director, coupled with his engineering backgreund, meant he was well placed to lead the Company.,

There is no connection between the Group or any individual director and Zygos Partnership.

Roles and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

The role of the Nomiration Committee is to lead the process for new appointments to the Board, to ensure thers is a formal
procadure for the appointment and induction of new directors for the Group.

During the year, the Committee continued o develop its succession plans for executives and non-executive directors. The
Committee initiated the recruitment process for the two appointments, mentioned above. As part of this process we have taken
into account the respective tenures of office. analysing the skills which were either missing or could be missing in future and how
different personalities would fit the Board.

The Nomination Committee has. during the year, reviewed and confirmed to the Board that it remains satisfied, that all of the
non-executive directors are independeant in that they have no business or other relationship with the Group that might influence
their independence or judgrment.

The main duties of the Committee include but are not limited to the following:
» Raview the size, composition and structure of the Board and the Board commitiees:

* Review succession planning for the Board and senior levels within the Group and ensure an appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge. experience and diversity:

* Oversee induction plans for directors:
* Evaluate the balance of skills. experience, independence and krowledge of the Board: and
e Consider diversity issues.

Composition of the Committee
Peter Hill — Chairman

Ardrew Heath

Dawvid Anderson

Nigel Togn

Kate Rock



The Committes bad bro mestings duing the year. the attendance of which 1s given on page 36.

The Committee contirLes to support the Group's management and leadership development programme for the exacutives and
senior managemenrt. it 1g considered essantial in support of the Group's strategy and continued development. Andrew Heath s a
Cornmittee member In order to ensure that the Nominations Commitieg is fully aware of relevant views of the executive directors.

We are satisfied with the current composition of the Board and ensure we will continue to assess that the Board has the
requisite skills and experience as our markets develop.

Peter Hill

Chairman of the Nomination Committae

4 July 2017
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Directors’ remuneration
report

Dear Shareholder

On behal of the Board. | am pleased to present the Dirsctors’ remuneration report for 2017,
The Director's remuneration policy was approved at the 2018 AGM with a strong vote in favour of 93.82%.

The remuneration report1s divided irto tavo sections. A policy report which sets out the approach to remuneration and a
rermuneration report which details what have been paid to the directors during 2016/17. When considerirg remuneratior for our
serior exscutives, the Remuneration Commuittze (the Committee) has used the palicy framewoark approved by sharsholders at
the AGM In Septemicer 2016.

We cortinue to listern ard take into consideration shareholders” ard institutional views regarding cur Policy, maintaining an open
and transparent application of the policy not only in the true reflection of the policy, but alsc In terms of the underlying principles.
The Palicy, designed to comply with the prirciples of the LUK Cerporate Governance Code and amendments to the Companies
Act 2006 regarding remuneration, remains compliant. Witk a further year of change during 201617, the Committee agreed

that the current Remuneration Policy remained fit for purpose but will continue to monitor the market competitiveness of the
remuneration policy, in order to ensure we are able to attract and retain the best talent.

Leadership changes

Durirg the year. Bert Nordberg resigned as Chairman and Petear Hill was appointad. Peter joined the Company on 1 January
2017 and his fee is fixed at £150,000 per annum for three years.

Executive director salaries

The Committee agreed that, with reviews of the CEO and CFO salaries having taken piace last year, it was not necessary

to perform a wholescale review again, and given the chaillenges the business faced, the CEO and CFC requested not to be
considerad for any salary increase in the circumstances. The CEQ ard CFO salaries have therefore remained at the same levels
as last year and it should be noted that they have remained at this level since the FY15/18 year. The Committee has ensured
that total remuneration is aligned to strategy through setting cijectives for the CEO and CFO that are clearly linked with the
Group's Business Strategy, or the delivery thereof,

Annual bonus outcome

The Group's performance for FY16/17 has resultad in the bonus targets being achieved in respect of both the CEQ and CFO.
with payments being made under the under the scheme in line with the rules. With the audited resuits completed the CEQ and
CFO will be paid a bonus ir line with the bonus scheme rules. However. given recent events, payment of 75% of the payments
will be deferred.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) outcome

The LTiP takes into consideration the perfarmance of both the Group and its shars price, and 1s designed to act as an ircentive
to motivate executives to achieve the long-term growth plans of the Group. Under the LTIP the performance perod 15 three
years and executives are required o retain a percertage of shares after vesting ir order to bulld up a shareholding value worth
more than ther annual salanes. The LTIP will be tested on the third anniversary of grant. No payments were made to the
executives under the LTIP in this financial year,

n light of the Group position at the time options would usually be grarted under the LTIR, it has beer agreed that awards to
both the CEC and CFO of further shares under the LTIP will be delayed until later ir the year or an appropriate time in ling with
Regulatory compliance,



Activities of the Remuneration Committee during 2016/17

DCuring the last financial year. amongst other things, the Committee:
* appointed Deloitte as remuneratior consultarts to advise the Comimittee;
* reviewed the on-going approprateness of the Remuneration Policy in line with the market;

* considered and agreed the potential outcome for the cash bonus for 2016/17 financial year, confirming a bonus is 1 be paid
and preposing a payment process that is reflective of the unfolding Gusiness position;

* established 2016/17 and 2017/18 annual bonus targets reflective of the revised strategic direction;
» considered the remuneration of executive and non-exscutive members and how their salary packages are remunerated:
» advised on salary adjustments, share awards and LTIP options for the senior management reporting to the Executive Directors;

» reviewed the findings of an engineering market review, ensuring the guiding principles were aligned to the overall
reward strategy:

* reviewsd executive directors’ bage salary levels, confirming that not adjustment should be made for this coming year:
« agreed the remuneration terms for the appointment of Peter Hill as Chairman;

* reviewed appropriatenass of all current employee share schernes. in particular share dilution limits under all plans:

» recommended the approval of the 2016/17 Bermuneraticn Report to the Board; and

* reviewed its own terms of reference.

Ve balieve our currgnt remunéaration practices are set out in fine with the current reporting reguiations and we welcome the
structure and transparency this brings. Overall we believe that our remuneration policy is aligned with delivering the Group's
strategy and retaing value for shareholders and | ook forward to the on-going support from Imagination shareholders.

Yours sincergly

Kate Rock

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

4 Jjuly 2017



Remuneration Policy

Tra Dirsctors’ Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in September 2016 which
applies for three years from that date. The Remuneration Policy agreed at the AGM 1r 2016 aligned executive remuneration with
the interests of sharergiders and outlined in the table below. The Poiicy applies to the executive directors.

Remuneration Policy Table

The Directors” Remuneration Policy is laid out below.

Performance framework

Base salary

Recognises experience,
responsibility and
performance. Supports
recruitment and retention
to deliver the Group's
strateqy.

Pension

To provide pension
contributions to enable
directors to plan for
retirement.

Salaries are reviewed annually.
Salary levels on appointment and
paid during this year are set out on
page 60.

Increases historically have been
applied from April each year.

To fallin line with reparting and
employees, this is to move ta July
of sach year,

In its annual review the Commiittee
considers the following:

+ Pay leveis at companies of a
comparative size and technology
sector by reference to market
capitalization and revenue) an a
geographical basis;

+ External markat conditions;
* Market media salaries:

* Pay increases for alt employees in
the Groug;

+ Individual performance, skills
expertise and potential; and

* Corporate performance on sogial,
environmental and corporate
governance matters.

Defined contribution plan (with
Company contributiocns set as a
percentage of base salary) or cash
equivalent allowance.

There are no special arangements
for executives.

Base salarnes are set at an
appropriate level for sach role
taking into account the factors
itustrated in this table. Generally
salaries are no higher than market
median, although higher salaries
may be paid, if necessary to
recruit externally or to retain key
exacutives.

In normal circurmnstances base
salary increases will be ne mors
than the average increases for
employees across the Group.

Greater increases may be approved
it there is a substantial change in

a directors’ role or responsibiiities
ar if the salary is sigrificantly below
the current market rate. In such
circumstances, increases may be
phased over a number of years and
be conditional on perfermance.

The Company will make & pension
contribution of up t© a maximum
of 7.5% of base salary which may
require an equivalent executive
contribution.

Alternatively a cash eguivalent
allowance can be pad in heu of
the market.

The overall performance of each
executive director is considered by
the Committee when reviewing
base salaries.

No recovery provisions apply.

None.

No recovery provisions apply.



Other benefits

To provide competitive
benefits in line with market
practice to enable the
Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre
executive directors,

Annual bonus plan

Delivery of in-year financial
performance and key
business imperatives.

COther benefits are provided as
appropriate 1o the location of the
axecutive director and include

car allowance, or car and fuel
allowance, long-term sickness and
disability insurance, death in service
benefit, and private heaith and
travel insurance for the executives
and family.

Bonus, if earned, is paid wholly
in cash after the post year-end
Preliminary Announcement.

Bonus payments are not
pensionabie.

Inclividual performance measures
are focused on objectives that are
specific to each executive director,
and relate to clear strategic,
operational, or relationship
impsratives.

Reasonable market cost of
providing cost.

The Cormmittee reserves it discretion
o provide such situation-specific
benefits as may be required in the
interests of the Group's business,
such as relocation.

The target award level is 100%
of salary for the CEQ and 75% of
salary for the CFO.

Far performance in excess of target
a maximum banus of target can
be paid.

The bonus is self-funding.

No bonus is paid if the Group does
not achieve 85% of the adjusted
cperating profit target.

None.

NG recovery provisions apply.

Performance is assessed by the
Committeg using financial and non-
financial measures;

The targets arex

1. Group revenue budget (25%);

2. Adjusted aperating profit (50%); and
3. Individual performance {25%;).

The measures | 1) and (2) have the
following linear calibration:

% of budget
achieved

% of target
bonus payable !

25% '

50%

|

The Committee will apply judgment
in assessing individual performance
based on quantitative and gualitative
results.

The Cammittee retains discretion

to adjust bonus targets to reflect
intervening events, such as
acquisitions or disposals. These will be
disciosed accordingly.

The Committee has the discretion

to apply the malus pravision on an
individual or group basis and amend
or withdraw the bonus before payment
if the Company can demanstrate that
individuals have acted in an improper
manner. Malus and/or clawback
pravisions may apply in exceotional
cases such as: material misstatement
of results: a material failure of rigk
management; serious reputational
damage; sencus ndividual wrongdoing
such as gross miscanduct.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

To incentrvise exacutive LTIP awards may take the form of
cirectors to achieve nil-cast options, conditional share
performance cbyectives awards, or restricted shares at
directly linked to the the discretion of the Committee.
Group's long-term financial  Additional shares may be accrued
and strategic goals. in lieu of dividends and awarded on

any shares which vest.
To align exscutive 4

directors” interests wrth Awards vest on the third

those of our shareholders  anniversary of grant subject to
through the performance the performance conditions and
conditions and share provided the Director remains i
retention cbligation. office with the Company.

The maximum award level is 250%
of salary for the CEO and 175% of
safary for the CFQ.

In exceptional crcumstances the
mamum opportunity is 800%.
This was put in piace in case
there 1s a need to recruit & highly
experienced executive.

Performance framework

The vesting of share awards under the
LTIP will depend on three performance
conditions:

1. Adiusted sarnings per share {50%};

2. Total Shareholder Return {TSR)
growth relative to the FTSE All World
Technology Index constituents (25%;;
and

3. TSR growth relatve to FTSE 350
Index constituents (25%).

The Committee retains discretion to
adjust LTTP targets to reflect intervening
events, such as acquisitions or
disposais. These will be disclosed
accordingly.

The AGM resciution of 20186.

provides discretion on the part of the
Remureration Committee to allow
awards granted under the LTIP to

vast in the vent of a takeover, scheme

of arrangerment or winding up of the
Company without reference to the fength
of time for which the award was held
prior to the relevant corperate event.

Malus: The Committes has discretion
to reduce a share award, including

0 zero, prior to vesting where thers

are exceptional circumstances, which
inciude a material mis-statement in

the Company's publishsed rasults,
misconduct by the executive director
that is deemed to have initiated or
contrbuted to a material loss as a a result
of reckless. neglgent or wilful actions, or
inappropriate values or behaviour.

Clawhack:The Committee has
discretion to clawback shares and
executive directors have an obligation
under the rules of the LTIP to transfer
share or pay over the proceeds of a
share sale in exceptional circumstances
{as described above). If soid at less than
market value, the cbligation is to pay
market value at the date of disposal.
Clawback would be less any income tax
and national insurance paid or due to be
paid. The Committee has discretion to
set the length of the clawback period,
which wouid normally be two years from
acquisition of the shares.



Save As You Earn (SAYE)

7o encourage share
ownership across the
broader employee
poputation.

Executive directors may participate
on the same terms as other
employees, The option price may
De discounted by up to 20%.

The maximum savings amount
is currently £250 per month over
a three year pericd. This may be
increased it accordance with

No performance conditions are
permitted by UK legisiation for this type
of plan.

No rec i ly.
changes to UK legisiation as FECOVENY ProviSIons apply

applied to all particpants in the
plan.

Accumulated savings may be used
to exercise an option to acquire
shares.

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

To encourage share
ownership across the
broader employes
population.

Executive directors will be subject
to the same maximums in place
for all employees participating

in the SIP. The above limits may
be increased in accordance

with changes to UK legistation.

in addition the Cormpany at its
discretion may choose to award
matching shares n any ratio of up
to 2:1.

No performance conditions are
permitted by UK legislation for this type
of plan.

Executive directors may participate
on the same terms as other
amployees.

No recovery provisions apply.

Selection of performance measures and the target
setting process

Annual bonus plan

Performance measures for the Arnual Bonus Plan are set annually. Each year the Committee considers the most appropriate
metrics to apply for the following financial year. These metrics are currently Group revenue budget and adjusted operating profit.

A performance multiplier is then applied refated to the achievenent of the financial glements. The annual bonus also includes a 25%
elerment based on personal performiance. Sach executive directar is set a number of personal objectives in retation to Clear strategic,
operational, or refationship imperatives aligned to the Group's overall strategy. The Committee is of the cpinion that the financial targets
and personal objectives for the Annual Bonus Plan are commercially sensitive and as such it would te detrimental to the Group to
disclose them in advance of or during the relevant performance period. Business targets are set as predefined ranges around budget
and individual targets are set taking account of strategic priorities under the control of the executive.

Long-term incentive plan

Performance measures for the LTIP were selected after careful consideration and following consultation with larger shareholders
and advisory bodies. The Committee believes that the use of both TSR and EPS (Earnings Per Sharg) measures provides the
best measure of the success of the execution of the Group's strategy and encaurages. reinforces and rewards the delivery of
sustainable shareholder value.

The TSR elsment (which accounts for 50% of awards} considers the Group's performance against twa relevant comparator
groups {sector and size-based) to reward sustainable shareholder value creation relative to alternatva investment opportunities
for our sharehalders, Targets are in line with typical market practice, requiring ranking at median to dsliver threshold vesting
Increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for ranking within the upper quartile.

The nomalised EPS growth perfanmance condition fwhich accounts for 50°: of awards). has been set following independent analysis
by the Group's advisors and brokers. The Committee reviewed the performance targets and best practice guidelines and agreed i
was not appropriate to make any changes. The compound annual growth in EPS targets were set for 201617 as follows:

* 0% pay out below EPS of less than 5.8 pence:

» 25% pay out for ERS of 5.8 pence;

* 100% pay out for BPS of 7.4 pence; and

* Lirear progression between 25°% and 100% thresholds for an EPS over 5.8 pence and less than 7.4 perce.
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Given the currart orcumstances arsund the sale of MIPS and Ensigma, announced on 4 May 2017 and the subsaqguert
initiation of a farmal sale process anrcunced for the whole group on 22 Jung., the committee decided to set targets on a
guarterly basis untit there is sufficient clarity to set long term targets. Any targets set will be linked to a deferred share award.

lllustration of the remuneration policy for 2017/18

The graph below ilustrates the leval of remuneration: that couid be achieved by the CEC and CFO through the cperation of our
remuneration palicy for 2017/2018. The graph show the proportion of total remuneration made up of fixed pay (salary. pension
and other benefits). annuat bonus and the LTIP and the pay cutcomes for three performance scenarios.,

Chief Executive Officer

£2,500,000

£2,000,000

£1,500,000

£1,000,000

£500,000

£0
Minimum Target Maximum
& LTIP 20 £578.440 £1.156,880
M Annual Bonus £0 £274.313 £548,625
H Total Fixed Pay £519.472 £519.472 £519.472

Chief Financial Officer

£1,200,000
£1,000,000
£800,000
£600,000
£400,000
£200,000
£0
Minimum Target Maximum
LTIP 20 £236.250 £472,500
B Annual Bonus 0 £120,235 £240,469
BB Total Fixed Pay £301.250 £301 250 £301.250

The following assumptions have been used:

Minimum: this represents fixad remuneration consisting of current annualised salary. pension and an estimate of other benefits
based on the 2016/17 disclosed value.

Target: this represents fixed remuneration as detailed above. plus 50% of the maximum bonus opportunity and vesting of 50%
of the maximum LTiP award.

Maximum: this represents fixed remuneration together with the maximum annual bonus opportunity and vesting of 100% of
LTIP award.



in accordance with the reguiations, share price appreciation and dividend accrual arg not taken Nto accourt and neither the
CEO or CFO have any awards under the SAYE scheme as regulation and policy restncted ther participation.

As seer in the charts above. at target levels of performance. around 62% of the CEO's total pay. and around 54% of the CFC's
total pay, arises from performance-related elements, rising to over 70% at 'stretch’ levels, at which peint total pay is capped.

The Commiittee is satisfied that there is a strong incentive for the prudent managemsent of risk. and that there are no perverse
incentives created by the remuneration policy.

Andrew Heath's base salary is C462.725, his car allowance is £15,000 and he has opted to receive cash in lieu of his pension
entitlerment of £34.704. He is also entitied to private medical insurance, life assurance, critical iliness and income protection. For
the first year of the permanent appointment to CEQ, a single relocation allowance of £8,000 was awarded aligned to the tax
arrangements, with a further a one off accommodation allowance of £36,000.

Guy Millward's base salary is £270.000. his car allowance is £11,000 and he has opted to receive cash in lieu of his pension
entiiement of £20.250. He is entitled to private medical insurance, life assurance, critical llness and income protection,

Development of the Group remuneration policy

Consideration of executive remuneration with the wider Group

When making remuneration decisions for the executive dirsctars the Committee conrsiders the wider economic environment and
conditions within the Group. [N particular, the Committee considers pay and employment conditions across the wider workforce
and carefully considers the broader employee salary increase budget when making reward decisions for executive directors.

As part of the considerations this year. the Commitiee reviewsd the market analysis for employses to align the thinking and
approach of the business and rermuneration of the exacutives.

The Cemmittee considers wider industry benchmarking rnaterial iIn the context of menitoring its overall position on director and
employee pay.

Consideration of shareholders views

The Committee welcomes an open and transparent dialogue with sharsholders and seeks the views of significant sharehclders
when any major changes are being made to remuneration arrangements. The Committaa will continue 1o engage with
shareholders going forward and will am to comsult on any material changes to the application of the approved remuneration
poficy or proposed ¢changes to the policy itself,

Recruitment remuneration arrangements

In the event of hirng a new Executive Director, the Cammittee will align the remuneration package with the Remuneration Policy.
and will take into account all factors it considers relevant, including their experience and caliber, current total remuneration,
tevels of remuneration for companies in the Committee’s chasen peer group. and the remuneration required to attract the best
candidate for the Company. The Committee will seek to ansure that the arrangement is in the best interests of the Company and
1ts shareholders withcut paying more than is necessary.

Should future appointments be necessary the Cornrmittee will continue to give consideration to any relevant factors when
determining the value of any "buy-out’ awards needed o secure a candidate, inciuding the form of the award {e.9. cash or
shares}. the proportion of the performance/vesting period outstanding and the potentiat value of the forfeited remuneration,
including performance conditions attached to the awards. the likelihood of those conditions being met, and the timing of any
potential payments. it is the irtention that such buy-out awards will be made through use of the exceptional LTIP imit. The
Gommittee has, and may continue to rely on, the relevant Listing Rule exemption if necessary for the purpose of making a
buy-cut award in the event that the Group hires an executive director and need to match or pay-off shares they held with their
previous company. For clarity, where an executive director is appointed from within the organisation, the Commitiee hag the
power 1o honour legacy arrangernents in line with the original terms and conditions.

The policy on the recruitment of rew Non-Executive Directors is 1o apply the same remuneration elements as for the existing
Non-Executive Directors.

Element of remuneration Maximum percentage of salary
Maxirmum variable pay, normally comprising: CEC CFO
Annual bonus plan 100% 5%

LTIPe 250% 175%

T the event that a highly expennnced cxecutve director Nneeds to be recrtenh. an award of up te 80072 may Lo awarded
s was partally wewnd on the appentrent of Andrew Feath as ntense CEQ when he was awarded 3009, of s salarny under tha LTIP
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Service contracts

Qur policy for rotica penods for executive directors was amended at the AGM 1n September 2016 from six months 1o twelve
morths on a recipraeal basis. This also applies to restrictive covenants for periods of tweive months foliowing termination

of empioyment relating to non-competitior. non-sclicitation of the Group's customers. no-dealing with customers, and ron-
solicitation of the Group's suppliers and empicyees. In addition, each service contract has an express obligation of confidentiality
in respect of the Group's trade secrets and confidential information and provides for the Group to own any intellectual property
rights created by the directors in the course of their smployment.

The dates of the service contracts of each person who served as an executive director during the financial year are as follows:

Contract Date Notice period
Andraw Heath 8 February 2016 12 months’ notice by director or Company
Guy Mithward 1 December 2015 12 months’ notice by director or Gompany
Peter Hill 1 January 2017 & months’ notice by director or Company

Andrew Heath's service as CEQ began on 8 Feoruary 20186, initially as interim, moving to a permanent position on the 26 May
2016 with continuity of services recognised.

The non-executive directors. with the exception of the Chairman, de not have service contracts and all are not eligible to
participate in bonus or share incentive arrangements. Their service does not qualify for pension purposes or other benefits, and
no element of their fees is performance related. No payments are due on joss of office. The committee Chairmen role and the
Seniar Independent Director role is eligibie to receive an additional annual fee for their services.

Service contracts for the executive directors and Chairman, and appointment letters for the non-executive directors are available
to view at the office of the Company Secretary at the registered office address,

it is the Group's palicy to allow execltive directors to hold non-exscutive positions at other companries and to receve
remunearation for their services. The Board believas that experience of the operatiors of other companies and therr Boards and
Committees is valuable to the development of the axecutive directors,

Termination of employment

The Committee maintains a discretionary approach to the treatment of leavers, on the basis that the facts and circumstances
of each case are unique. When considering a departure event, there are a number of factors which the Committee takes into
account in determining appropriate treatment for cutstanding incentive awards. These include;

» the position under the relevant plan documentation:

* the individual circumstances of the departure:

s any mitigating factors that might be relevant;

s the appropriate statutory and contractual position;

» the performance of the Company/individual dunng the year 10 date:
* the nature of the handover process; and

* the requirements of the business for speed of change.

In some cases, the treatment 1s formally prescnbed under the rules of the relevant plan, Where there are ‘good-leaver’
circurmstances, awards which would otherwise lapse by default, will vest sither on the normal vesting date or on cessation of
employment. These circumstances include death, injury, il-health. disability, redundancy or sale of the Company or business.

If the executive dies or leaves due to ill health or injury. awards which have less than 12 manths of the performarce period
remaining or LTIP awards which have less than 12 months of the deferred penod to run. vest automatically on teaving. In other
leaver circumstances the Committee has discration to determine when, and to what extent, awards vest. The Committes
considers the leaver crcumstances along a continuum, ranging from "bad leaver’ scenarios such as termination of employment
for gross misconduct or resignation. through to the 'goed leaver’ scenarios cutired above. Accordingly the Cormmittee

may apply (or dis-apply} such performance conditions or time pro-rating awards vesting in these circumstances. as it
considers approprats.



Annual bonus

In a departure event, the Committee will typically consider whether any slement of annual bonus should be paid for the financiat
year. Any bonus, if paid, will be limited to the peried served during the financial year in which the departure occurs.

Long-Term incentive plans

The default position is that an unvested ESF or LTIP award fapses on cessation of esmployment. uniess the Committee appiies
discretion to preserve some or all of the awards. This provides the Committee with the maximum flexibility to review the facts
and circumstances of each case. allowing differentiation between good and bad leavers and avoiding payment for falure.

Use of discretion

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan. LTIP and, where relavant, the SIP and SAYE scheme. according to their
respective rules and In accordance with the Uisting Rules. The Comimittee retains discretion, consistent with market practice, as
to the operation and administration of these plans. This includes, but is not imited to, the following:

» selection of participants;

» deciding the amount of annual bonus or share awards, as well as the proportion of an award vesting or paying out:

s reviewing performance measures, the timing of assessment. their weighting and targets;

= the modification of performance maasures;

& determining the timing of an annual bonus plan or share grant:

» deciding how to treat leavers, depending on their leaving circumstancas;

» deciding the adjustments required in certain major corporate events such as rights issues, share buybacks, or corporate
restructurings; and

» faking the necessary decisions in the event of a change of control.
The use of discretion in relation to the Company’s SAYE and SIP will be as permitted under relevant legislation, HMRG guidance
and the Listing Rules.

Compensation for loss of office and past director payments (audited)
Na compensation was paid to either Bert Nordberg or Gilles Delfassy upon their resignations.

Relative importance of pay spend
The following table summarises the major distributions dunng the year (reductions of reserves) compared to the total pay spend
for the Group.

2016/2017 2015/2016
£°00G £000
Total pay spend 97.922 94,808
Retained Earnings and other reserves {(16,089) (74,435

Dividends and share buybacks
The Company has not paid any dividends or performed any share buybacks in either financial year.
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The remuneration report

Composition

Kate Rock chairs the Remuneration Committee which cortirues to be made up of independent non-executive directors. Over
the last year they bave met four times ard had intervenirg calls as recessary. The membership and mesting attendance for

this past year are set out below. In addition to the Commitiee members, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer may be invited (o attend meetings, except in instances where thewr own remuneration or package arrangements
werg discussed. or other circumstances where ther attendarce would not be appropriate.

Committee members

Meetings
Eligible to attend Attended
Kate Rock (Chair 4 4
David Ancerson 4 4
Gilles Delfassy” 3 3
Nigel Toon 3 3

" Gilles Detfassy resigned as a diractor on 24 March 2617 ard ceased o e 2 merper 2f the For-uncration Committee at the sare date
Gilles was replaced by Nigel Toon,

Andrew Fzath 3ttended each Remuneraticn Comeittee masting
Guy Millward attended two Remuneration Comrittce msetings

Pater kil attended two Romuneration Committae moetngs.

Given their diverse business axperience, the indeperdent nron-executive directors who made up the Committee in 2016/17 offer
a fair and talanced view in relation 1o remuneration matters for the Group and acted with due diligence and balanced actions in
responding to the departure arrangements and appcirtments during this pericd.

Responsibility

The Committze determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the executive directars and, in their absence. the Chairman.
The Committae also reviews the remuneration packages cf those at the next most serior level of management and has regard
to levels of pay across the Group.

Salaries and fees

Qur policy is to set salaries in line with market median. when comparing similarfy sized companies, and individual performance.
The Committee 1s of the view that the salaries of the CEQ and CFO are consistent with this policy and propose not to increase
pay this year in lire with the request from both the CEO and CFO to not receive a salary increase.

External Committee advisers

The Committee has access 10 Independent professicnal advice on remuneration matters, reviewing and appointed Deloitte LLP
for this purpose In 2018, prior 1o which Willis Towers Watser: had served in this role since 2012, Work undertaken by Deloitte

in 2016/17 inciuded an independent analysis of the Remuneration Palicy. evaluating options and market benchmarking for the
CEQ and CFO roles, helping estabiish a range of options for future consideration.

Total fees paid to Deloitte were £25.117 and to Willis Towers Watson £31.835 during the 201817 year.

Voting at the 2016 Annual General Meeting
The key activities of the Committes during the year ars set out in the letter to shareholders or pages 46 to 47 of this report.

As praviously rotad. shareholder support at the 2016 AGM was strong. with 95.74%¢ of shareholders voting in favour of the
Remunaraton Repart. The following table summarises the details of votes cast in respect of Directors’ remureration; the binding
vota on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the advisory vota on the Directors” Remuneration Report at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting:



. Votes for Votes against Proportion of share Votes which were
Resolution

{and % of votes cast) {and % of votes cast) capital voting withheld
Remuneration o) ssess8  93.82% 11499508  6.18% 66.45% 788,844
Poticy
R i
Ri’:‘;:e'a N 172928054  95.74% 7700756 4.26% 84.54% 6,124,120

Performance graphs

The performance graphs show the Group's one year and gight year TSR togsther with the TSRs for the FTSE All-World
Tachnology Index from 1 May 2009 is shown below. The Total Shareholder Return of the Company was -35.31% over the
financial year compared with +44,73% for the FTSE All-World technology Index for the same pericd.

The Committee considers the FTSE All-World Technalogy Index to be an appropnate choice as the index contains companies rom the
US. Asia and Eurcpe and therefore reflects the global environment n which the Group operates. In addition, the index includes many
companies that are currently the Group's customers. as well as companies that use Imagination technology in their products.
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Share price

The share price of Imagination Technologies Group ple shares an 28 Apnl 2017 was 101.75p The highest ard lowest closing

market share price of the crdinary share in the year was 291.5p and 99.5p respectively.

Remuneration in 2016/17
CEO’s pay for the last eight financial years

Year Single figure of Annual bonus as a % of
remuneration {£'000) maximum opportunity

201617 Andrew Heath 1,019 83%
2015/16 Andrew Heath 117 0%
2015716 Sir Hossein Yassaie 509 0%
201415 Sir Hossein Yassaie 746 43%
201314 Sir Hessein Yassaie 935 0%
201213 Sir Hossein Yassaie 3,639 60%
2011412 Sir Hossein Yassaie 301 0%
2010/11 Sir Hossein Yassaie 395 45.8%
2009/10 Sir Hossein Yassaie 248 0%

Percentage change in remuneration of the CEQ

Increase in pay and benefits from 2016 to 2017 for the CEC compared to employees:

CEQ Employees
Base Salary 0% 6.7%
Benefits and pensicn 0% 0%
Bonus 0% iy

LTIP vesting as a % of
maximum opportunity

n/a
n/a
0%
0%
37%
100%
0%
0%

0%

*a staff bonus scheme has been introduced in 2016/17 but the payout will not be detarmined until Novernber 2017,



Share dilution

it is proposed that the Group will continue to manage dilution within the contaxt of maintaining award levels within a
10% limit over 5 years. the imit that has applied since 2015, We are aware that this 1s higher than the limit of 5% over
ten years in respect of discretionary awards and 10% over ten years in respect of all schemes adogted by many UK
companies ang preferred by many institutional investors.

This higher Timit which was approved by shareholders reflects the Company's atypical remuneration package. but
believe that share awards to all employees aligns their interest with that of shareholders and the Company’s continued
success. It also addresses the need to compete particularly against US companies when attracting high-calibre
engineers and talent. This is under review and subject to change going forward with a plan to introduce a cash bonus
scheme and be more selective with share allocations. The Group has issued share awards in the five years totaling
10.6% and with lapsed shares returning, the dilution is currently 8.51% of issued share capital as at 30 April 2017.

Employee Share Plan {‘ESP’)

The ESP is the primary Long-Term Incentive Pian that is offered to all employees. The Schema rules that were approved
at the 2016 AGM will exclude directors from this Plan, It is noted that with the impact of changes to the Market Abuse
Regulations, both the CEQ and CFC have not been in a position to elect to participate in this Plan - this will nat change in
the foreseeable future.

For Employeses participating in the ESP, the performance conditions were related to the annual cumulative growth in
the Group's share price over the third, fourth and fifth year from the date of grant. If the annual cumulative growth
of the Group's share price is less than 7.5%, no part of the award will vest, if the annual cumulative growth of the
Group's share price is more than 7.5% and less than 15% the performance target will be satisfied pro-rata on a
straight line basis and if the annual cumulative growth of the Group’s share price is 15% or more, 100% will vest.

The price of a share in the Group for these purposes will be the average mid-market closing price as derived from the
Official List of the London Stock Exchange for each business day in the period of three manths preceding the grant

date and the third anniversary of the grant date. The value of the index will be the average value of the Index for each
business day in the three months preceding the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant date as appropriate.

The higheast and lowest share prices in the ysar are set out on page 58
Tax Efficient Employee Share Scheme (‘TEESP’}
Neithar Andrew Heath or Guy Millward have been granted share options under the TEESP.,

Vesting of the share awards for employees is based 100% on the percentage growth in the price of a share in the
Group compared to the percentage growth of the FTSE techMARK All-Share Index {the ‘Index’) over the 3-year
period commencing on the date of grant. The Company share price neaded to exceed the Index by over 125% for the
award ta vest. The price of a share in the Company for these purposes will be the average mid-market closing price
as derived from the Official List of the London Stock Exchange for each business day in the period of three months
precading the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant date. The value of the index will be the average value
of the Index for each business day in the thres months preceding the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant
date as appropriate.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Executive single figure table (audited)
The following table summarises the remuneration recelved by the executive directors in respect of the financial years ended
30 April 2016 and 30 April 2017.

Total amount  All pension- All taxable Annual Long-term Total single
of salary and related benefits incentive incentive figure £'000
Executive fees £'000 benefits £'000 £°000 payments payments
£'000 £°000

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Anrdrew Heath 483 106 35 8 54- 3 467 - - 1,019 117
Guy Millward 270 113 20 8 13 5 204 - - 507 126
Total 733 219 55 16 67 8 671 - - - 1,526 243

Pensicn benefits includes ©7,920 as an allowance caid in leu of penson contributors at the oction of the direstor,
Pension benefits includes £3,438 as an allowance paid in keu of pension conlroutions at the option of the director.
This redatss 1o the romuneraticn rocaved by Andraw 0 his capacity as Intanire Chicf Exccutive from 8 February 2074
Andraw Heatr recered a cne G retfocatior allowancs of £35,000 during 2017, The other taxabls benefts relate ‘o car allowance, privats medical irsurarce e
assurance. crtica illness cover and Income proteciion. Thesa taxable benefits are avalable to both the SEO and CFO.
Durirg the year there have been no exearcises of share options by either the CEC or CFQO. accordingly no gain was made by
etther director and is not shown within the above table.

Chairman and Non-Executive fees (audited}

Total amount of salary and All taxable benefits Total Single Figure
Non-executive fees

2017 (£) 2016 () 2017 {£) 2016 (£) 2017 (£) 2016 (%)
Bert Nordberg® 97,500 130,000 N/A N/A 97.500 130.000
Peter Hill” 50.0C0 - N/A N/A 50,600 -
Andrew Heath - 35,250 N7A N/A - 35.200
Gilles Delfassy 48,416 42.000 N/A N/A 48,416 42.00G
David Anderson’ 61,000 47,600 N/A N/A 61,000 47.000
Niget Toon 49.000 - 48,000 -
Kate Rock 43,000 42,000 N/A N/A 48,000 42,000
lan Pearson’ 3,500 42,000 3,500 42,000
Total 358,416 338,250 - - 358,416 338,250

“lan Prarsen stepped down as a non-axecutive thrector in May 2018,
Poter Hill was apponted Charsan in ganuar, 2017 ke racaras an annual salary of £150.000 ger annure
David Angarson recewes an addtonal fee of 011,000 as S0 and this ‘ee was backdated resuting a higher total fee paio durirg the fnancial year of £61 GO0,

Bert Noniberg. as Charman, raceved an annual saiary of £ 30.00C per annum.
The Chairman and ron-executive dirgctors did not receive any other payments.

The ron-executive directors’ remureration 1s based at £42.000 per annum. The committee Chainmen roie also receives an
additional annual feg of £7.000 for thar services.



The following table compares salary increases given each year to the executives to those given to Imagination’s employees
The changes are effective from 1 April each year:

Executive With effect from Increase 2016/17
Director 1 April 2016 £'000
£'000
Andrew Heath 463 0% 463
Guy Millward 270 0% 270
Average employae 47 6.7%" 50

‘Employee salary incroases have been deferrad

Pensions {audited)

The Group does not operate its own pension scheme but makes payments into a group personal pension pian with defined
contributions. For executive directors, the Group matches the executive contribution {maximum 4.5%) and contributes an
extra 1.2% and after two years of memiership the 1.2% is ingreased by another 1.8% (to a maximum cf 7.5%;). If an executive
reaches their annual or life time pension allowance, the Group will consider whether to pay an allowance in ieu of pansion
contributions as a taxable benefit.

Annual Bonus Plan

Performance measures for the Annual Bonus Plan are set annually, BEach year the Committee considers the most appropriate
metrics to apply for the following financial year. These metrics are currently a Group revenue budget and adjusted operating
profit. A performance multiplier is then applied related to the achievement of the financial elements. The annual bonus also
inciudes a 25% element based on personal perfarmancs. Each executive director is set a number of personal objectives in
relation to clear strategic. operaticnal, or relationship imperatives aligned to the Group's overall strategy. The Committee is of
the opinion that the numerical values of targets for the current year Annual Bonus Plan are commercially senaitive because they
include budgeted numbers within the range of outcomes and it would be detnmental o the Group to disclose them in advance
of or during the relevant performance pertod.

The Committes retains discretion to adjust bonus targets for any financial year 1o reflect intervening events including acquisitions
or disposals. Targets were set for the executive directors in June 2016. The parameters have been meat and a bonus payment is
due to be paid.

Annual Bonus Plan for 2016/17

Performance measure and weighting Performance Range (of budget) Bonus earned (% of target bonus)

Performance conditions:

Group Revenug Budget (25°%) 85% 25% paid
100% 53% paid
115% 125% paid
Adjustad Operating Profit (AP} (50%) 85% 25% paid
100% 50% pad
1153, 125% paid
Personal performance (25%) No bonus wifi be paid if the

Group does not achieve 85% of the
Adjusted Operating Profit targat.

Target bonus achievement:
CEO 100% of salary

CFO 75% of salary

Payment:
Annual assessment of performance conditions 100% of the bonus Paid i cash
Executive directors are ehgible for an annual banus, as described in the table above, based on adjusted cperating profit, group

revenue budget and individual performance. The annual bonus 1g paid in cash and subjgct to the terms outlired in the relevant
sections above.



Bonus calculation

Target Areas  Weighting Maximum achievable - Achievements Earn Out
before on base pay FY20t7 -asa
outperm {non-pensionable} % of salary
uplifts
AH Target GM Target AH GM AH GM
100% 75%
of salary of salary
Adjusted 50%; 125% 125% £2.5% 46.8% T289.220.00 £125562.50
1 Operatirg 162.5% {46.87 % (Max '} Max'd;
Profit of salary) of salary)
Group 25%, 1257 125% 77.A% 77.4% £89,542.51 £39,184
2 Revenue {31.25% (23.44 %% of 1=14.55% (=14.55%
Budgst of salary) salary} of salary) of salary)
individual 25% 25% of salary 25% 75% oftarget  75% oftarget £87922.88 £37,968.75
3 Performance (18.75% of {equate fequate to
Objectives salary) to 19% 14.06%
of salary) of salary)
Totals 118.75% of 89% of 75.4% of 75.4% of £466,685.39 £203,715.25
total base total base base salary base salary
salary salary
Individual Included:
Performance
Objectives

* winning new business

« mplementation of the ravised business strategy announced in July 2017

+ ensuring the identified restructuring was delivered including the sale or closure of non-core activities

* achievement of targeted cost savings

* mproving operatioral performance of the business and cash generation

= strengthening the organisaticn and employee engagemernt

The following provides an overview of key achievements during the year for each Executive Director:

Andrew Heath

* Licence wins with new customers

* Strong progress in implementation of the strategy

e Completion of the restructuring programme

* Strengthening of the leadership tzam through internal

prometion and external hires

¢ Implementation of a business employee engagement forum
amongst other engagement initiatives

Guy Millward

» Achigvernent of the cost reductior and cash targets

* L ed sale of Pure sold September 2016 and the sale or
closure of IMG Systems

» Strengthened finance organisation including the
impiementation of new finance systems

* Improved investor relations



Share Incentive Plans

Awards under the LTIP were made to the CEO and CFO during the year equal to 100% and 175% of salary respectively,
For 2016/17 there wera four kay ircertvs schemas in operations across the workforce as a whole. They are as follows:
For executives:

| TIP

* SAYE

For all other employees:
* Employee Share Plan
. SiP

* SAYE

Shares earned are satisfied through the issue of new shares while some shares have been purchased to satisfy share awards
made under the new L_TIF for executives.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP - audited)
The LTIP is subject to performance conditions,

Date of Share Atstartof Granted Exercised Lapsed At end of Vesting tapsa date
Name grant price on year during during during year date
grant (p) year year year

Aridrew 11/02/2016 131.80 1,228,505 - - - 1,228,505 11/02/2019 11/02/26
Heath”

Andraw 22/0v/18 212.67 - 271,974 - - 271.974 22/07/19 22/07/26
Heath

Guy 18/12/20015 13320 354,836 - - - 354,836 18/12/2018  1812/25
Mitward 200716 212.67 - 202,175 - - 222175 22/07/10  22/07/26

Total 1,583,341 494,149 - - 2,077,490

The above share awards are subject to the fellowing performance conditions:

Performance conditions for the awards made in FY15/16:

(i) The normalised EPS growth performance conditions (which accounts for 50% of awards), has been set following independent
analysis by the Group's advisors and brokers. The compound annual growth in EPS targets were set for 2015/16 as follows:
* 0% pay out balow 10% growin:
* 25°% pay out at 10% growth;
= 100% pay out at 20% growth or greater; and
* | inear progression betwean 25% and 100%, thresholds.

fiy TSR growth relative to the World Technology Index constituents (25%) 25% pay-out for median performance 100%
and the FTSE 350 Index constituents (25%;): pay-out for achieving upper gquartile or better
Maximum Value:

CEO 250% of salary CFO 175% of salary 600% exceptionat circumstances
Performance conditions for the awards made in FY16/17 are set out on page 51.

Payment:
On vesting 507 Shares car. be sald on thirdd anniversary

50% Shares 1o be compulsorily deferred until fourth
{259 and fifth {Z5%) anniversary of grant date
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Actual award levels will be determined by the Committee on an arrual basis taking into account a range of factars including
performarce and sharg price, howsever it is interded that anrual awards to the value of 250% and 175% of salary will be made
to the CEO and CFO respectively. The reason for these percentage limits is largely due to the Group operating and competing
for high calibre axecutives and to act as an ircertive to retair executives to achieve the iong-term growth plans of the Group.
In exceptional circumstances the Committee wanrts to be able to make share awards of 600%; of base salary. This faciity was
astablished primarily to facilitate global recruitment of executives, and especially to aftract key exscutives from the US,

Linkage of Long-Term Incentive Plan targets to business strategy
The new Long-Term Incentive Plan has a rumber of targets, as described above. which are relevant to the long term strategy
of the Group.

Our intention is to raview these targets on ar annual basis, taking into account market conditions and any other reievant
factors to ensuirs that they ramain appropriate in the cortext of the factors set out above. The Committee will review their
applicability on an annual basis, so that in the event that exceptional circumstances arise. such as materal corporate activity
ar substantial changes in market corditions, therr impact can be considered aganst subsequent annual awards. If changes
are to be proposed for any prospective LTIP award. it would be the Committee’s intention to confirm any such change to
sharehocidars in advance.

Former share option schemes
The executives have no legacy share options.
Shareholding requirements

Under the LTIP executives are required to build up and retain shares 1o a specified percentage of salary, 250% for the CEG
and 175% for the CFO. Until these targets have been reached. the executives must retain at lsast balf of any shares acquired
under the new LTIP (but not taking nto account, for these purposes, any shares sold to meet any tax liabiities ansing in
connection with the new LTIP).

Directors’ interests (audited)

The beneficial interest as of 30 Apni 2017 of the directors in the ordinary shares of Imagination Technologies Group plc (in
additicr to interest in share cptions and awards) are shown below:

Unvested Nil-cost

Director Beneficial Interests options with Totat Interests
performance conditions
Peter Hill - - _
Andrew Heath 58,387 1,500.479 1,558,866
Guy Millward 1696 577,011 578,707
David Anderson 8,175 - 8,175

Gilles Delfassy* - - -
Nigel Toon - - -
Kate Rock 10.000 - 10,000

'Gilies Delfassy resigned as a dirgctor on 24 March 20°7
Thera have been no further changes in the above interasts between 30 April 2017 and 4 July 2017,

In addition to the interests disclosed above, the executive diractors have intarast in shares that could be awarded under the
LTIP. the amourt of which wili be confirmed once the performance conditions are satisfied.

Thers is no requirement in the Articles of Association for directors to hold shares in the Group.

The Directars” Remuneraticn Report was approvad by a duly authonsed Committee of the Board and sigred or its behalf by:
Kate Rock
Rernureration Committee Chairman

4 July 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Imagination Technologies Group plc

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified
We have audited the financial statements of imagmation Technologies Group plc for the year ended 30 April 2017 set out on
pages 7110 113, in our opinior:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company's affars as at
30 Apnl 2017 ard of the Group's loss for the year then ended:

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EUY,

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards,
incluging FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Emphasis of matter - going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not maodified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure
made in note 1 to the financial statements concerning the Group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern, in particutar the substantial achievement of forecasts {including cash collection from customers, the timing and amount
af proceeds of planned disposals and, if necessary, the successful execution of planned cost restructuring), the avaiability

of such additicnal faclities as may be needed if forecasts are not substantially achieved. and the availability of appropriate
barnking faciiities to replace existing facilities when they expire In June 2018, These conditions. along with the other matters
explained m note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty. which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concarn. The financial statements do not include the
adijustments that would resuit it the Group and the parent company were unable to continue as a going concern.

2. Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arriving at our audit opinicn akove on the financial statements the risks of material misstatement, in decreasing order of
audit significance that had the greatest effect on our aucit were as follows:

Risks of material misstatement vs 2016
New risk Going concern assumption A
Recurring risks Licensing and development 4)»

revenue recognition

Downgraded risks Valuation of trade investments v
Ine longer significant)
We no longer consider this a significant risk, due to the

reduction in the company's portfoiio in the previous year and
reduced compiexity in the judgement in the valuation.



Going concern

Refer to the Report of the
Auciit Commmittee and Note
1. Statement of accounting
oolcres

The risk

Accounting basis and
disclosure quality

The accounts are prepared on a goirg
concern basis

On 3 Apdl 2017, Apple Inc ("Apple™
announced that it plans to discontinue
the use of the group’s intellectual

property in the next 15-24 manths. For
the year ended 30 April 2017, revenues
from Apple constituted ¢.45.2% of the
group's total revenue. In respanse ta this
announcement, the Directors conducted a
strategic review of the group’s operations
and, on 4 May 2017, announced an
intention to dispose of its MIPS and
Ensigma division {together "the divisions”).

Az part of their review, the Directors

have considered the Group's business
and capital structure which included the
development of a Business Plan. While the
Dirsctors’ are actively pursuing the sale of
the divisions. the ability to compiete these
disposals remains uncertain. Conseguently,
the Business Plan includes a restructuring
of the business that incorperates a
significant reduction in the group’s fixed
cost base.

The Business Plan contains cash flows
that contain key inputs which are volatile
and outside the control of management,
thereby requiring judgement in their
selection, which could have a significant
impact on future cash flows. In particular
the substantial achievement of forecasts
includes assumptions over cash collechon
from custamers, the timing and amount

of proceeds of planned dispasals and, if
necessary. the successful execution of
planned cost restructuring. The Busingss
plan also makes assumptions about the
reguirement for additional facilities that may
be needed if forecasts are not substantially
achigved.

The financial statements explain how the
Directors have formed their judgement

that there is a reasonable expectation that
the going concern basis is appropriate in
preparing the financial statements of the
Company ard the Group. However the
Directors have concluded that, when taken
together, the level of forecasting uncertainty
represented a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt regarding the Group's
ablity to continue as a going concerm. As
this assessment involves consideration

of future events there is a nisk that the
judgement is inappropriate and also that
the required disclosure is inapprogriate or
insufficient,

Our response

Our pracedures included:
Key dependency assessment

Reviewing management’s cash flow model
("the model’} to identify the key inputs for
further assessment. Key inputs included:
forecast foreign exchange rates. operating
costs, rovalty revenues, and ths timing of the
sale of the MIPS and Ensigma business units.

Historical comparisons

Comparing royalty revenug forecasts for the
group's key customers 1o histonical royalty
volume and revenue trends. assessing the timmg
of the group's key customer’s receipts aganst
historical iInformation and assessing the forecast
aperating costs against historical trends.

Benchmarking assumptions

Comparing the forecast exchange rates to
externally derived data.

Funding assessment

Reviewing the terms of the Facility agreement
and challenging management's assassment
of the group's ability to comply with the
associated financial covenants based on the
outputs from the model

Sensitivity testing

Performing sensitivity analysis of the cash flow
forecasts considering the impact that foreign
exchange movements. a delay in the payments
from key customers or a delay in cost
reduction would have on the availabie working
capital headroom against committed facilities.

Tesis of details

* Assessing the completeness of cash flows
by revigwing the year-end balance shest for
expected realisation of assets or fiabilities
as well as against cur knowladge obtained
through other audit procedures:

-

Agsessing the collectability of autstanding
customer payments by analysing the
payment history of larger customers

and challenging the expectations of
management regarding the coliection of
overdue amounts. This included, where
avaiiable, corroboration of the explaratiors
given to customer correspondence:

s Assessing estimates used in the
restructuring costs against an expectation
we determined based onintermal
management plans and comparisan to
previous redundancy payments made by
the Group.

Assessing transparency

We considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in respect of going concern,



Licensing and
development revenue
recognition

£34.134.000
{2016: £18,573.000;

Refer to page 40 (Audit
Committee staternent),
page 78 fAccounting Polcyi
and page 83 (financial
disclosurel

The risk

Trere are several areas of judgement

in determinirng the appropriate revenug
racognition of license contracts, the man
ores being:

Accounting treatment

Determining whether license contracts
should be separated into individual
components or whether the contract is
to be treated as a single component for
revenue recognition purposes;

Subjective estimate:

+ determining the fair value of the
components in order to allocate revenue
to these components; and

= determining the percentage of completion
of the undelivered components of the
contract

Our response

Cur proceduras included:
Personnel interviews

Obtaining ar understanding of the nature of
gach deliverable through discussions with the
project managers ard business management
team to assess the Group’s Judgements as to
whether there were elements that should be
accounted for separately:

Our sector experience

Analyzing the terms of the contract to
determine whether the contract specifically
identified separate deliverabies and assessing
other contract terms, In particular any specific
terms related to acceptances by the customer
that might impact the tming of revenue
recognition.

Benchmarking assumptions

Assessing the fair values allocated to
separatety identified components agamnst the
fair values as demonstrated by saies to other
customers.

Control design

Assessing the Group's controls over
monitoring progress of license development
and forecasting costs by discussion with the
business management team and reviewing
the Executive Management Board meeting
minutes at which performance of individual
contracts is discussed.

Test of detail

Challenging the Group's percentage of
completicn estimates by comparing the costs
assumptions to payroll records and external
invoices and service agreements. For costs
to complete, we corroborated estimates by
discussions with project level staff,

Reperformance

Recalcutating revenue recognition based on
the costs to complete and forecast costs
recorded by the Group.

Assessing transparency

Assessing the Group’s disclosures about the
sigrificant judgements and estimates made
in respect of the revenue generated from
license contracts.
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3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The materiality for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £800,000 (2016: £850,000). determined with
refarence to a benchmark of revenue from continuing operations, of which it represants 0.6% (2016: 0.7%). We consider
revenue from continuing operations to be the most appropriate berchmark as it provices a more stable measure year on
vear than group 1oss before tax from continuing operations.

We reported 1o the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £40k (2016: £50k), in
addition to other identified misstatements that we believe warranted reporting on gualitative grounas.

Full scope audits for group reporting purposes were performed at the UK, US and parent components by the same audit
team. These audit procedures covered §9% (2018: 99%; of total Group revenue; 94% (2016: 81%j} of the total profits and
losses that made up Group loss bafore tax and 99% (2018: 98%) of total Group assets.

The audits undertaken for group reporting purposes were perfarmed to a materiality level of £533.000 (2016: £8G60.0001 far
the UK component; £400,000 (2016: £600,000) for the US component; and £533,000 for the parent component (2016:
£800,000).

4 Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
N cur opinion:

* the part of the Directors’ Remunaration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006; and

s the information given in the Strategic Beport and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Based solely on the work reguired to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading
the Strategic report and the Directors’ report: ‘
* we have not 1dentified material misstatements in those reports; and

* in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

5 We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in reiation to:

« the dirgctors’ statement on Viability on page 31, cencerning the principal risks. their management. and, based on that, the
directors’ assessment and expectations of the group’s continuing in cperation over the period to Aprl 2019; or

+ the disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting.

6 We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required '
to report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Irafand) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we

have identified other information in the annual report that containg a material Inconsistency with either that knowledge or the

financial statements, a material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular. we are required ta report to you if:

» we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the directors’
statement that they consider that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the group's pesition and performance.
business model and strategy: or

¢ the Audit Cormmittee Report on page 39 does not aporopriately address matters communicated by us to the audit
committee.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opIrion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not In
agreement with the accounting recorcdls and retums; or

s certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
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Under the Listirg Rules we are required 10 review:

» the directors’ statemerts. set out on pages 30 and 31 ir relation to going concern and longar-term viability: and

¢ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 35 relating to the company's compliance with the slever
provisions of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above resporsibilities.
Scope and responsibilities

As explained mare fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 30, the directors are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. A description

of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc_org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body and is

subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at
www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014a. which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read
to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report. the work we have undertaken and the basis of our cpimons.

John Bennett {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Landon

E14 5GL.

4 July 2017
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Consolidated income statement

Revenue

Operating expenses

Operating profit / (loss) from continuing operations

Financial income

Financial expanses

Net financing expense
Profit / (loss) before tax

Taxation {charge) / credd

Loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations {net of tax)
Loss for the financial year attributable
to equity holders of the parent

Loss per share

Loss per share (continuing activities only)

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements.

Basic
Dhluted
Basic
Duuted

1.2

2.3

m

Year to 30 April 2017

Year to 30 April 2016

Total Total
Continuing Continuing
£000 £'000
145,213 121,553
{(137,417) (148,320)
7,796 (26,767)

&5 37
{5,491) (2,667)
(5,426) (2,630)
2,370 (29,397)
(18,450) 3,294
{16,080) {26,103)
{11,828) (54,756)
(27,908) (80,859)
(10.1)p (29.8)p
(10.1)p (29.8)p
5.8p 9.8)p
{5.8)p 19 B1p




Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Year to

30 April 2017

htei I £'000
Loss for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent (27,908} 80,858
Other comprehensive income:
Items that are or maybe reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on transiation of the balance sheets of foreign cperations (4,898) 11.6301
Exchange differences on transiation of part of the net wvestment i foreign operations 4,392 1.711
Change in fair value nf assets classified as available for sale 10 580 12899
Tax on items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income / {expense} for the financial year, 74 418)
net of income tax
Total comprehensive expense for the financial year attributable to equity (27,834) 81.277)

holders of the parent

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements.

et
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Consolidated statement
of financial position

Moty
MNon-current assets
Cther intangible assets 7
Goodwill 7
Praperty, plant and squipment &
Investment property 9
Investments 10
Deferred tax 5]
Carporation tax 5
Cther deitors
Current assets
Inventorias 11
Trade and other recavabies 12
Accruad Income 12
Corporation tax 5
Assets held for resale 18
Cash and cash equivalents 13
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabies 14
Provigions 15
Liabilities held for resale 18
interest bearing loans and borrowings 16
Corporation tax payatle 5
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 17
Provisions 15
Intarast bearing loans and borrowings 16
Deferred tax liability 5
Corporation tax 5
Total iiabilities
Net assets
Equity
Cafled up share capitai 19
Share premum account 12
Other capital raserve 19
Merger reserve 8
Revaluation reserve 19
Translation reserve 19
Retained earnings 19

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements,

At 30 April 2017

At 30 Aprit 2016
£'000

£000
38,411 42 679
48,716 487753
63,982 69,752
- 5,475
5,097 4606
28 12.923
1,280 889
199 3,238
157,783 188.355
76 220
31,471 24,421
28,423 29.685
1,014 952
- 5,255
17,171 5.820
78,155 66,383
235,938 254,718
(39,175) 39,812)
{7,118) (8.936)
(244) 6,312)
(3.961) (38,789)
{6,058) {1.480)
(56,456) (95,331)
5,572) 7,168
(400} (1.893)
{41,742) -
{10,840) (12.912)
{1,547} {4,583}
160,101} {26,548)
(116,557} (121,877}
119,381 132.841
28,394 27,663
105,027 103.277
1,423 1423
2,402 2402
1.088 508
570 1076
(19,523) 13,508)
119,381 132,841

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Diractors on 4 July 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Guy Millward / A
Directar 7" / o

Registered Number 2820061




Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

Share Share Other capital Merger Revaluation Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserye reserve eamings Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 May 2015 27182  101.8976 1623 2.402 1.007 995 70.509 205474
l_ass for the year - - - - - - 1808590 1B0.8R%G
Other comprehensive Income for the year:
Exchange differances on translation of the
palance sheets of foreign ocperations - - - - - 1.830) {1.830)
Exchange aifferences on translation of part of
the net :nvestment in faraign operations - - - - - 1,711 - 1,711
Change in far vaiue of assets
classified as available for sale - - - - 1499 - - 1499
Total other corrprahensive income
for the year - - - - 1499 i81) - {418)
Transactions with cwners:
Share based rermuneration 7.750 7.750
Tax charge n respect of share-based incentres - - - - - - 287 1487)
Issue of shares for SIP 101 - - - - - 101 -
lssue of shares at ni cost 320 - - - - - 320y -
Issue of new shares 80 1.201 - - - - - 1,381
At 30 Aprii 2016 27663 103.277 1,423 2.402 308 1,078 3.508) 132.841
At 1 May 2018 27,663 103,277 1,423 2,402 s08 1,076 {3,508) 132,841
Loss for the year - - - - - - (27,908) (27,908)
Cither comprehensivae iIncome for the year:
Exchange differences oan transtaticn of the
Lalance sheets of foreign operatons - - - - - (4,898} - {4,898)
Cxchange differences on translation of part of
tha net investmeant in foreign operations - - - - - 4,392 - 4,392
Change in fair value of assets
classified as available for saie - - - - 580 - - 580
Totai other comprehensive incoms _ _ - _ 580 {506) _ 74
for the year
Transactions with owners:
Share basged remuneration = = = - - - 12682 12682
Tax cradit in respect of shara-based ncentives _ _ _ _ _ _ {150) (150)
Issue of sharas for SIP 79 _ _ _ _ _ (79) _
Iss f sharss | cost
sue of shares at nil cosl 560 _ _ _ _ _ {560} _
'ssue of new shares 92 1,750 _ _ _ _ _ 1,842
At 30 April 2017 28,304 105,027 1,423 2,402 1,088 570 (19,523} 119,381

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financiat statements.

4



Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss after tax

Tax charge / {credit)

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization and impairment
Loss on disposal of fixad assets

Net financing charge

Share-baged remungration

Release from contract obligation
Impairment of investrments

{Gamy} - loss on disposal of busmness units
Contingent acquisition consideration release
Acquisition costs

Exchangs difference

statement of cash flows

10

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Change n working capitai:
{Increase) / decreasa in inventories
{increase) / decrease in receivables
{Decraase) / increase in payables

Cash generated / {utilised) by operations

Interest paid
Taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Invastmients made in the yesar

Disposal of iInvestments in the year

Disposal of business units

Disposal of Invastment properties

Acquisition of Intangible assets

Acouisition of property, plant and eguipment
Interest received

Payment af deferredt acquisition consideration

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from the issue of share capital
Draw down of faciities

Repayment of borrowings

Finance lease payments

Net cash from financing activities

1Q

12

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rale fluctuation

Cash and cash equivaients at the start of the period

Cash and cash equivailents at the end of the period 13

Year 1o Year 10
30 April 2017 30 April 2016
£'000 £p00
(27,908) {80.859)
18,450 6.621)
{9,458) {87,500
15,703 34,603
29 293
5,239 1717
12,682 7.750
2 11,387
{424) .
{1,280) (1.726)
590 1,125

56 1,225
23,139 (31,126)
{812} 5,148
{7,.209) 23,706
(4,161) 18172
10,957 15,900
(1,751} (335
{2,405) 3025
6,801 12,040
- {523)

108 4410
2,550 -
4,500 -
{2,864) (3.727)
{1,949) {16,571}
65 37
(763) -
1,647 (16,374
426 184
23,750 30.000
(19,715) (22.298)
{1,862} {639
2,599 7187
11,047 2,853
204 318
5820 2,651
17,171 3.820

During the year, discontinued operations absorbed £13.7m of the group's net operating cash flows, paid £0.0m in respect of
investing activities and paid £0.0m in respect of financing activities. The disposal of Pure gensrated a £2.6m cash receipt.

The comparative cash fiow has been restated to reclassify certain items, including representing cash flows on finance lease
payments and forgign exchange movements. This is explained in Note 1,

The notes to the accounts form an integral

part of these financial statements.



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1 Accounting policies

General
Imaginaticn Technologies Group plc is a company incorporated in the UK. The Group financial statements consalidate those
of the Companry and its subsidiaries {together referrad to as the Group).

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The Group financial staternents have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU {Adopted IFRSs). The Group has elected to prepare its parent company financial
statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework 'FRS 1017 these are
presented on pages 1150 119,

Basis of preparation
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements,

The followirg additional accounting standards, amendments, and interprstations have been adopted in the penod:
* clarification of Acceptable Methads of Depreciation and Amortisation — Amendments to |IAS 16 and 1AS 38

* 2quity Method in Separate Financial Statements — Amendments to 1AS 27

» disclosure Initiative - Amendments to 1AS 1

* Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2012-2014 Cycle

This cycle of improvements contains amendments to the following four standards.

* IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Hald for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Changes in method for disposal

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

+ |AS 19 Fmployse Benefits — Discount rate in a regional market sharing the same currency — e.g. the Eurczone

¢ |AS 34 Interim Financtal Reporting — Disclosure of information ‘elsewhers in the intenm financial report’

The adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations have not had a material effect on the financial statements.

Judgements made by the directers in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed below under
‘Significant accounting judgements and estimates’.

Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investments which have teen stated at fair
value in accordance with 1AS 39.

Going concern
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required 1o consider whether
the Group car cortinug in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

At the date of this report, the group has drawn down bank facilities of £45.6m which are scheduled to expire durng
Jure 2018.

On 3 April 2017. the Group announced that Apple inc. ("Appie” has asserted that it will no torger use the Group's intellectual
property int its new products in 12 maonths to 2 years' time. Apple revenues constitute 45.2% of the group's raverue from
continuing activities for the year erded 30 Apnl 2017. The group is in dispute with Apple and has reserved its rights. While
the Diractors” have ng raascn to believe that Apple will withhald or delay paymenrts durning this process. should this ccour. the
group would likely need to seek additional furding beyond the faciliies that are currertly available to it.

As arrnounced an 4 May 2017, the Oirectors are undertaking a review of the group's operations, This includes, but s rot
Iirited to, a sale of its MIPS and Ensigma businesses. On 22 June 2017, the group anncunced it had received interest
from a rumber of parties for a potential acqguisition of the whole Group. The Beard thersfore decided to imtiate a formal sale
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process for the Graup and is engaged in praliminary discussicns with potential bidders. The Directors have determined that,
should the sales procass not be concluded as planned, the Group will need to take decisive measures to improve profitability
and cash generation.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's business and capital structure arnd developed the Business Plan ("the Plan™) in
order to consider the measures that would need to be undertaken. In the absence of significant proceeds being generated
by the planned disposal of its MIPS and Ensigma businesses. the Flan assumes a significant reduction of fixed cost
expenses while praserving the ability of the business to continue to deliver on existing customer contracts and continue
targeted development of its core intellectual property. The plan sees debt paid down in full before the end of FY18. There is
further opportunity to sell certain property assets to accelerate cash generation and/or mitigate risk.

The Directors have preparad cash fiow forecasts for a period in excess of 12 months. Various scenarios have baen
considered to test the Group's resilience against operational risks including:

» adverse movements in US Dollar exchange rate;
» delays in executing the reduction in costs should the disposals not procesd as planned; and
» dalays in cash receipts from sigmificant customers

The potential impact of changes in assumptions arising from matters outside the Group’s control, or the unlikely event of a
culmination of events, may result in the group requiring additional working capital beyond the group's existing facilities. This
represents a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
such that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its lisbifities in the normal course of business.

Nevertheless, based on the Group's assessment of the Plan, the Directors’ believe that the Group will continue to have
acceptable financial rescurces to meet opligations as they fall due and comply with its financial covenants and accordingly
have formed a judgement that is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. Therefore,
these financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result if the going concern basis of preparation is
inaprroprate.

Basis of consolidation - subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are thase entities controlled by the Group. Cantrol exists when an investor is exposed. or has rights, 1o variabla
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the abiiity to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
In assessing control. potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Restatement of Consolidated Statement of Cashflows

The comparative cash flow has been restated to reclassify certain items, including representing cash flows on finance

lease payments and foreign exchange movements. The net impact is to reduce net cashflows from operating activities by
£805,000 and increasea effect of exchange rate fluctuations by the same amount, Similarly, the adjustment relating to finance
lease payments has decreased net cash used in investing activities by £699,000 and increased net cash from financing
activities by the same armount.

Business combinations
The Group has applied IFRS 3 Business Comiinations (revised 2008} In accounting for busingss combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acguisition methad at the acquisinon date, which is the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefit from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently
are exercisable, as well as other factors including board representation. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consclidated financial statements from the date that control passes.

The Group measures goodwill as the fair value of the consideration paid or payable less the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities assumead and contingent liagilities acquired, all measured as of the acquisiton date.

The consideration transfarrad does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts
are generally recognised in the income statement, Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the
issue of equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurrad.

Any contingent cansideration payable is recognised at fair vaiue at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it 1s not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise. subsequent changes ¢
the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the income statement.



Revenue

Raverue comprises of. the value of cornsideration received for sales of licerses to the Group's techrology. rovaities ansing
from the resuitirg sale of licensees’ products embedded with the Group's technology. development income, support.
mamntenance, training. ard the sale of goods.

The Group foilcws the prirciples of IAS 18 Revenue recogrition. Bevenua associated with the sales of goods 1s recognised
when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

« the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of ownership to the buyer,

» the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvernent to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effactive
control over the goods sold:

+ the amounrt of revarue can be measured refiably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow into the Group: and

® the costs incurred and or to be incurred can be measurad reliably.

Revenue asscciated with the provision of services is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
= the amount of revenue can be measurad raiiably:

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will fiow into the Group;

« the stage of completion of the transaction as at the end of the reparting period can be measured refiably: and
* the costs incurred, or to be incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably.

Therefore, revenue from standard licenses is recognised on delivery to the cusiomer. which is when it is considered the
above conditions are met. Revenue on licence agreements for Intellectual property which are either not finished or which
need to be modified to meet specific customer requirements is recognised on a percentage-of-completion basis over the
period from starting development of the Intellectual property to delivery. The percentage-of-completion is measured by
menitoring progress compared with the total estimated project requirement. Progress is measured by an assessment of
performance against key development milestones.

Revenue associated with rights in license agreements to unspecified current and future Intellectual property 1s recegnised
urder a subscription accounting basis, on a straight-line basis over the term of the arrangement.

Revenue on development work is recognisad on a percentage-of-completion basis over the pencd from the start of the
development to delivery. Development work is normally invoiced as milestones are achieved.

Where invoicing milestones on licence or development arrangements are such that the proportion of work performed is
greater than the proportion of the total contract value which has been invoiced, the Group evaluates whether it has obtaired.
through its performance to date. the right to the un-inveiced consideration and therefore whether revenue should be
recognised. In particutar it considers whether there is sufficient certainty that the invoice milestones will be achieved in the
expected tmeframe. that the customer considers that the Group's contractual obligations have been. or will be. fulfilled and
that only those costs budgeted to be incurred will be incurred. Where the Group considers that there 1s insufficient evidence
that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow into the Group, taking into account
these criteria, revenue is not recegnised until there is sufficient evidence that 1t is probable that the econemic benefits
associataed with the transaction will flow into the Group.

Where an agreement involves several components, the total fee is allocated to individual components based on the fair
value of the componants. The far value 1s assessed by reference to prices regularly charged for the compenents when sold
separately, or if this carrot be used, then other factors may be considered. such as the excess of similar agreements over
the charges of separately identifiable components. If the fair value of a2 component is not determinable, then the total fee is
deferred urtil the farr value is determinable. or the component has been delivered to the customer. Where, in effect. two or
more components of an agreement are linked and fair values cannot be allocated to the indimvidual compenents. the revenue
recognition criteria are applied to the components as if they were a single component.

Reverue for maintenance 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the period for which maintenarce 1s contractually agreed
with the licensee,
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The axcess of licence fees. devedlopment income and maintenance invoiced over revenue recognised is recorted as deferred income.

Royalty revenues are earned on the sale by licensees of products containing the Group's technclogy. Revenues are recognised
ag they are eamed 10 the extent that the Group has sufficient evidence of sales of products containing the Group's technology by
licensees. Notification is generally received in the quarter following the shipment of the customer's products.

Revenues from the sale of goods are recognised upon delivery.

Ravenue is accaunted for net of VAT, discounts and returns. Returns are recogrised at the point at which the Group has
adeqguate knowledge that Intellectual property products are likely to be returned by a customer.

The above revenue recogmition policy 1s applied consistently irespective of whether or not the consideration received is in
the fornm of cash or non-cash (for exarmple equity).

As disclosed above, in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors. the Group makes
significant estimates in applying its revenue recognition policies. Estimates are made in particular, in regards to the percentage-of-
completion accounting method, which requiras that the extent of progress towards completion ¢f contracts may be anticipated
with reasonable certainty. The use of this method is based on the assumption that. at the outset of licence agreements. there is an
insignificant risk that custormer acceptance will not be obtained. The Group also makes assessments, based on prior experience,
of the extent to which future milestone receipts represent a prabable future sconomic benefit to the Group. The complexity of

the estimation process and issues related to the assumptions, risks and uncertainties inherent with the appiication of the revenue
recognition policies affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. [f different assumptions were used, it is possible that
different amounts would be reported in the financial statements.

The above revenue recognition policy is applied consistently irrespective of whether or not the consideration received is in
the form of cash or non-cash {for example equity). Where non-cash consideration is received for the group's Iniellectual
property products or senvices, revenue is only recognised where there is objective evidence of fair value established using the
methodologies described in the trade investments note below.

Research and development costs
Costs of basic and applied research, and all development costs, are wiitten off in the pericd in which they are iIncurred by the Group.

Where an intellectual property product is technically feasible. production and sale are intended, an end market for the
Intellectual property product exists, costs can be measured refiably, and sufficient resources are available 1o complete the
project, then research and development costs are capitalised and amcrtised on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the Intellectual property product. The Group believes these requirements are only satisfied in their entirety once
the inteliectual property product is near to. or essentially complete. by which point the level of deveiopment casts remaining
to be incurred are not significant. Therefare, no costs have been capitalised to date.

Employee benefits
The Group contributes to a defined contribution pension plan. Payments are charged to the income statement in the period
to which they relate.

Investment properties

Investrent properties are frashold and leasehold properties held to earn rental income, for capital aporeciation and/or for
undetermined future use. They are statad at cost less accumuiated depreciation and lass accumulated imparment losses.
Indicators of impairment may arise from market evidence, as assessed by independent qualified external vaiuers. Any surplus
or deficit arising is recognised in the income statement for the period.

Investment properties are not depreciated.

Share-based payment transactions

The share option programmes and the share incentive arrangements aliow employees to acquire shares of the Company.
The fair vaiue of share incentives is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair vaiue is
measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the employee becomes unconditionally entitfed to the share
incentives. The fair value of the share incentives granted is measured using the Black-Schales or Mante Carlo Simulation
models. The amount recognised as an expeanse is adiusted to reflect the actual number of share incentives that vest except
where forfeiturg is due anly to market-based performance conditions not meeting the threshold for vasting.

Transactions of the Company-sponsored Employee Benefit Trust are included in the Group's conaclidated financial
statements. In particular. the Trust's purchase of shares in the Company is debited directly in equity to retained earnings.



Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the penod comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to itams recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance shest date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet hability method on any temporary differences between the carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences on goodwill are not provided for as are not
deductible for tax purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is protable that future taxable profits will be avalable against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer possible that the related tax
benefit wili be realised.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the rates of
exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translatad to the functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses ars
taken to the income statement.

Cn consclidation, results of foreign subsidiary undertakings are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year. The
assets and liabilities are translated at rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from retranslation
have been recognised directly in the staterment of other comprehensive income. The presentational currency is GBR.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. Al
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of directors to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets containing a non-current asset (a disposal group) is classified as held for sale if its
carmying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use, # is availabie for immediate
sale and sale is highly probable within ane year.

On initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the fower of previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell with any adjustments taken to profit or loss. The same applies to gains
and losses on subsequent remeasurement aithough gaing are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment 10ss.
Any impairment loss on a disposat group first is allocated to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on pro
rata basts, except that no loss is allocated 1o inventories. financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and
investment property, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distribution are not amortisaed or depreciated.

In accordance with IFRS 5, the abave policy is effective from 1 May 2015; no reclassifications are made in prior periods.

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view G resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for saie, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income
statament is restated as if the operation has teen discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Intangible assets

intangible assets are stated at cost of acguisition and amortised on a straight line basis over their estmated useful economic
lives. The residual vaiues of intangible assets are assumed to be nil. Useful economic lives ars reviewed on an annual basis.
Whep the Group makes an acquisitior, managerment review the business and assets acquired to determine whether any
ntangible assets should be recognised separatety from goodwil. Fair value of the intangible assets is assessed assuming

a hypotheticat market. The Group utilises the income based approach when reliable future cash flows are available,
Altermatively, the cost approach or markat approach are utilised.
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The amortization rates applied arz:

Deveioped technology 51010 years
Customer reiationships 10 years

Trade names 15 years

In process R&D 2 years once complata
Software, patents & trademarks 210 15 years

During the year, Imagination changed the useful economic life of patents from 5 to 10 years and trademarks from
5 to 15 years. The impact of this change i estimate was to reduce the amortization charge in the consoiidated income
statement by £783,000.

Trade investments

Trade investments are classified as available for sale and are stated on ihe balance sheet at the far value al the balance
sheet date, with any gain or ioss being recognised directly in the staternent of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
and gains or fosses on Initial recognition are recognised in the income statement. When these investments are derecognised.
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is récognised in the income statement. Where there

has been more than one investment made in the same company, each tranche is assessed in isolation to calculate the
movernents in fair value.

Impairrment analysis is performed with reference to the initial cost or far value of each shareholding.
The fair value of unquoted investments is made by reference to recent funding rounds.

The Group is exposed to equity sacurities price risk on available for sale financial assets. As there can be rio guarantee
that there will be a future market for securities or that the value of such investiments will rise, the directors evaluate each
investment oppartunity on its merits before committing the Group's funds. The directors review holdings in such companies
on a regular basis to determine wheather comtinued investment is i the Dest interests of the Group. Funds for such ventures
are limited in order that the financial effect of any potential decline of the value of investments will not be substantial in the
context of the Group's financial results,

Further details of these investments and the valuation basis are detailed in note 10 and nots 22.

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill reprasenting the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid or payable over the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired) arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions is
capitalised. Goodwil is allocated to cash generating units expected to benefit from the acquisition and is not amortised
but tested annually for impairment. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income staternent and may not be
subsequently reversed. [mpairmant testing is based on assets grouped at the iowest possible level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal managemeant purposas

On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the aftributable goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
Goodwill is stated on the baiance shaet at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 April 2004 have not been re-stated and goodwill represents the amount
recognised under the Group's previous accounting framework.

Property, plant and equipment
Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and imgairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to write down thair cost using the straight line method to their estimated
residual valuas over the pericd of their estimated useful economic lives. Periodic reviews are made of estimated remaining
useful economic lives and residual valugs, and the depreciation rates applied are:

Freshold land No depreciation

Freghold buildings 50 years

Leasehoid improvements Equally over the penad of the leass
Plant and equipment 31010 years

Motor vehicles 4 years



Impairment

a) Non-financial assets

Goodwill has an indefinite useful #ife, is not subject to amortization and is tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amartization or depreciation are reviewed for impairmment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes

Ir circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be recoverable If any such candition exists. the recoverable
amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extert. if any, of the impairment loss. Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, estimates are made of the cashflows of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to seil. and value in use. In assessing value in use, estimated future
cashflows are discounted 1o their present value using a discount rate appropriate to the specific asset or cash generating unit.

if the recoverable amount of an assat or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount. the carrying
value of the assst or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recogrised
immediately in the Income staternent.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o

detarmine the racoverable amount. Ar impairment l0ss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does

riot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortization. if no mpairment 1055
had been recognised. iImpairment iosses in respect of goodwill are not reversed.

b) Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Animpairment ioss in respsect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
An impairment toss in respect of an avalable-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impaiment on an individual basis. The remaining financiat assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit nsk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Any cumuiative gain or loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset recognised previously in equity is transferred to the income statement.

An impairment loss is raversed if the reversal can be related cbiectively to an event occurnng after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financiai assets measured at amortised cost and avalabie-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities,
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is
recognised directly in eqguity.

Derivative financial instruments

Currency exchange contracts are utilised to manage the exchangs risk on actual transactions related to accounts recevable,
denominated in a currency cther than the functional currency of the business. These currency exchange contracts do not
subject the Group to risk from exchange rate movements because the gains and lesses on such contracts offset losses and
gains, respectively, on the transactions being hedged. The currency exchange contracts and related accounts receivable are
recorded at fair value at each period end. The fair value of forward exchange cortracts is determined using quoted forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The fair value of foreign currency options is based upon valuations performed by
management and the respective banks holding the currency instruments. All recognised gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of the contracts are recorded within finance expenses in the ncome statement. The Group does not enter into
currengy exchange contracts for the purpose of hedging anticipated transactions.

Inventories
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net reaiisable value. The cost of inventary 15 calculated using the FIFO method.
Finished goods include direct costs and atinbutable overheads based or the normal level of activity,

Cash and equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and call deposits with ar original maturity of less thar or equal to three
moenths. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demard and form an integral part of the Group's cash management ara
ircluded as a component of cash and cash eguivalents for the purpose anly of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are infrally measured at fair value plus any drectly attnbutable transaction costs. Subseguent to initial
recognition, laans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obfigation
arising from past events, it 1s probabie cash will be paid to settle it and the amount can be estimatad reliably. Prowisions are
determined by discounting the expacted future cash flows by a rate that reflects current market assessmants of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a financing cost in the
income statement. The value of the provision s determined based on assumphions and estimates in relation to the amount
and timing of actual cash flows which are dependent on future events.

Long term borrowing

Long term borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subseguent to initial recognition.
iong term borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value beirg recognised
in the income staternent over the period of the borrowings on an effective intersst basis.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantiafly all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
tessor are classified as operating leases. For property leases, the fand and building elements are treated separately to
determing the appropriate lease classification, Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives receivad from
the lessar} are charged to the incorme statement an @ straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Assets funded through finance isases are capitalised either as property, plant and equipment, or intangible assets. as
appropriate, and are depreciated/amortised over their estimated useful lives or the lsase term. whichever is shorter. The
amount capitalised is the lowar of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments during
the lease term at the inception of the isase. The resulting lease obligations are included in liabilities net of finance charges.
Finance costs on finance leases are charged directly to the income statement on an effective interest rate basis.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
in applying the Group's accounting policies described above, management has made the foliowing judgements and
estimates that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition

Judgement is invalved in determining how many components are in a licence agreement and how to allocate fair value to
the components. Revenue recagnition on undelivered components is determined by percentage of completion. The Group
has made estimates on the percentage-to-completion for licensing and development work which affect the amount of
revenue recognised in the period. These astimates involve the Group assessing the esiimated resource and time required to
complete development projects, Please refer to the final paragraph of the Revenue accounting policy disciosed above.

Ihvestments
The Group has stated trade investments at fair value. Please refer to “Trade investments” above for management's
application of accounting for trade investments.

Share based payments

The fair value of the share incentives is mseasured at grant date ang spread over the period during which the employee
hecomes unconditionally entitled to the incentives. The fair value of the share incentives is measured using the Black-
Scholes or Monte Cario Simulation models which take into account the terms and conditions upon which the award was
made. in determining the appropriate expense. the Group has made estimates on the likelihood that internal performance
targets will be achieved and on the number of employeas that will be employed on vesting. Details of share-based payments
and the assumptions applied are disclosed in note 24.

Taxation
A deferred tax asset (ncte 5) is recognised only to the extent that i is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avalable 1o utlise
the termporary difference. The Group has made estimates on the likefinood that fulure taxable profit will utlise these tax losses.

impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impairad at a mirimum on an annual basis. This requires an astimation of the
value in use of the cash genearating units to which the goodwill rélates. Estirmating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit that holds the goodwilt at a determined
discount rate and an appropriate growth rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Detaills of assumptions used
are set out innote 7.



Adopted IFRS not yet applied
The followirg accounting standards, amendments and intarpratations had been issued but they are not yet effective for the
Group and have not been early adopted. Their adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements:

Effective for periods
commencing after

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses - Amendments to 1AS 12 1 January 2017
Disclosure Intiative — Amendments to IAS 7 1 January 2017
iIFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS g Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The annual financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU.

With the exception of IFRS15 and IFRS16 it is considered that the above standards and amendments will nct have a significant
effect on the corsolidated or Company results or net assets. IFRS15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2018, with early adoption permitted. It establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue should be recognised and it replaces existing revenue recognition guidance. including [AS 18 Revenue.
Under IFRS15, revenue earned from contracts with customers will be recognised based on a five-step model which requires,
for each contract, the transaction price to e apportioned to the separate performance obligations arising under the contract
on a relative standalone salling price basis, and recognised as revenue at the point at which control of goods or services

is transferred to the customer. The transaction price will be the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitied in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer. The incremental costs of obtaining a contract
and contract fulfiment costs will be recognised as an expensa consistent with the transfer of the related geods or services to
the customer. Depending on the particular contractual arrangements in place, application of the new standard may change
the amount of revenue recognised on a contract and/or its timing compared with curent accounting pelicies. The Group is
currently performing a detailed assessment of the impact resulting from the application of IFRS15 and will disclose additional
information before it adopts IFRS15.

IFRS16 was pubiished in January 2016 and will become effective in January 2013, IFRS16 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet tease acccunting model for lossess, A lesses recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional axemptions for
short-term leases and lsases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard, The Group has
not started G assess the potential impact of the adoption of IFRS15 on its consolidated financial statements.

2 Segment reporting and separately disclosable items

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the way that financial information is presented to the
Board of Directors, which is the Group’s chief opsrating decision maker. The Group sub divides the Technology segrment
into five smaller segments or business units ('8U's) — PowerVR, MIPS, Ensgima, IMGworks and IMG Systems. Whilst these
BU's are similar in: that they all develop technologies for licensing to semi-conductor companies for incorporation inte silicon
davices. they offer different technologies and, In the case of IMGworks, a design service and are managed separately. The
Pure business unit remains & separate business unit, the same as it was in previous years. Included within the Corporate
segment are costs associated with maintaining the Groug's head office function. In addition, this segment includes revenue
and costs asseciated with Ccertain contracts relating to IMGworks which currently remain with the Group, even though the
IMGworks business was sold after the year end. There is no inter-segment trading and no significant seasonality in the
Group's operations.

Information regarding the operations of each reportable segment 13 included below. Note that during the year management
reassessed the method by which certan overhead costs were allocated across the BU's. The April 2016 comparatives have

been restated to refiect this change in methodology.

Performance is measured based on adjusted operating prefit as shown in the table at the end of this note.
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Revarue is reported by geographical arsa of sales as follows:

2017 e

£000 <

LSA 99,405 92.177
Asla 27,778 30.008
United Kingdom 2,759 1.096
Rest of Europe 11,694 2.625
Rast of North America 1,160 2.164
Rest of the world 2,417 11,263
145,213 121,553

Discontinuing 6,691 19.821
151,904 141.374

The basis for attributing external customers to individual countries 1s the customer’s country of domiciie.

Revenue from individual customers that represent morg than 10% of the Group's total revenue for the period have values of
approximately £65 350.000. The customer's country of domicile is USA. and these revenues are included in the PowerVR

division business unit.
All revenue is from external customers. and originatas materially from the United Kingdom.

The operating profit, net assets and capital expenditure of the Group materially refate to the United Kingdom.
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3 Expenses

Operating loss is stated after charging / (crediting):

Staff costs - salanes

Staff costs - social security
Staff costs - pensions

Staff costs - Share incentives
Staff costs - indirect averhigads

Total staft costs

Subcontractors

Depreciation, amortization and mparment
of tangible and intangible assets
Impairmeant of goodwil

Impairment of investment property

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Foreign exchange loss / (gain)

Operating lease rentals:

Praperty

Other

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Auditor's remuneration
Audit of these financial staternents

Amounts recevable by the company's auditor and its
associates in respect of;

Audit of financial statements of subsdiaries of the cormpany
Audit-related assurance services

Taxation compliance services

Other tax advisory services

Corgorate finance services

All other sarvices

3 ntinuing Dhseontisued z Al

20417 2017 20" G restated’ 2017 DA rastatedt
£'000 £'000 £ o £'000 2000
73,314 61.950 2,170 16,077 75,484 78.027
5,433 4,109 864 1.310 6,297 H.413
3,112 2.944 347 669 3,459 3613
10,980 5,761 1,702 1,989 12,682 7,750
4,517 6,218 (229} 885 4,288 7103
97,356 80.982 4,854 20,930 102,210 101.912
3,972 4,488 417 991 4,389 5.479
17.084
13,641 15,277 - 1807 13,641 11,461
- - - 11,081 - 6,458
- 5.458 - - - 293
29 293 - 29 -
1414 2,030 - - 1,414 2,030
2,436 3.674 - 9 2,436 3,683
8,003 2.753 - 50 8,003 3.803
10,566 25,365 13,248 43.075 23,814 68,440
137,417 148.320 18,519 77,923 155,936 226,243

25 25

181 213

12 12

- 7

580 25

798 282

Not included in the auditor's remuneration above are expenses incurred by the guditor for which they are reimbursed by the

company of £14,000 (2016; £16,000).



4 Employees

The average number of persons employed
by the Group {including directors] was:

Research and development
Production

Administration

Sales and marketing

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were:

Wages and salaries
Social secunty Costs
Other pension costs
Share-pased payments

Continuing Discontinued Totat
2017 A 2017 207 et 2017 IUTE rgrare
1,042 1.006 152 373 1,194 1.384
- 8 27 8 27
136 156 1 < 137 160
55 82 9 35 64 97
1,233 1,222 170 424 1,403 1.668
Continuing Discontinued Total
M7 PR (e ] 2017 2077 restaed 2017 2T A reEtata
73,314 51.950 2,170 16,077 75,484 738,027
5,433 4,109 864 1.310 6,297 5419
3,112 2.843 347 669 3,459 3.612
10,980 5.761 1,702 1,889 12,682 7.750
92,339 74,763 5,083 203045 97,922 94.808

Details of the share-based payments are set out in note 24, Complete information on the share incentives and shares held by

directors is set out in the Diractor's remuneration repart on pages 46 to 64

In addition to the above employee costs, redundancy costs of £474,0006 were incurred during the year.

5 Taxation

Analysis of tax charge in the year
Current tax charge

UK carporation tax
Foreign tax

Total current tax charge

Deferred tax

Ongnation and reversal of temporary dfferences
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances
Adjustments in respect of pricr periods

Reversal of tax assets

Total deferred tax charge / (credit)

Total income tax charge / {credit)

2017 2019
£'000 TG

- 202
3,206 3.980
3,296 4,182
{609) (12.180)
576 1200
{119) 158
15,306 -
15,154 (10.822)
18,450 (6.540)

The total tax charge for the year of £18.450,000 (2016: £6.640,000 tax cracht s higher (2018: higher} than the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19.92% (2016: 20.00%;}. The differance is explained below:
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N

2017
£'000

Loss befare faxahon {9,458} 187,500
Naotional tax weredity &t UK standard rate of 19.92% 12016, 20.007%) (1,884) (17,500
Tax effect of non-deductible impairment of goodwill - 2.212
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes

iprimanty impairment of mvestment property and loss an mvestments; 1,902 2783
Utilzation of previously unrecognised tax assets 14 239
Tax assets not recognised {primarily refates to US tax losses) - 3.655
Reverzal of deferred and corporate tax assets 16,955 -
Effect of tax rate change - 489)
Adjustments in respect of prior pencds (448) {1.852)
Withholding tax 2,337 Q02
increase IN uncertain tax positions 468 3,430
Different tax rates on overseas earnings {662) -
Effect of R&D tax rafist {232) -
Total income tax {credit) / charge 18,450 {8.640)

Tax on items charged / (credited) to equity:

Deferred tax 150 637
Current tax - 1202)

Current tax

The Group receives significant government tax incentives including, in the UK, Research and Development Expenditure credits
{("RDEC"y which is shown as an "above the ling’ relief. This has the impact of a "credit’ being recorded in operating expenditure
of £7,397.000 — of which £1,164,000 reflected a true up of the 2016 P&l charge once the final RDEC claim for 2016 had been
submitted during the year {2016: £4,751,000} — which is then taxed at the prevaiing UK comoration tax rate. If the UK group
makes & taxable loss for the year, losses generataed by the RDEC claim can be reclaimed in cash from HMRC.

The principal element of the deferred tax charge recorded against equity refates to the reversal of previously recognised
deferred tax assets which were credited to squity. The reversal of the asset occurs predominantly as a result of the fall in
potential future tax deductions dug to the reduction in the Company's share price during the year.

Current tax assets

At 30 April 2016, thers are current tax assets receivablg in more than one year of £1.280,000 (2016: £889,000) and
receivable in less than one year of £1.014,000 (2016: £952,000}. The assets relate 1o prepayments of tax by overseas
subsidiaries.

Current tax liabilities

At 30 April 2017, there is a current tax liability due in less than one year of £6,058,000 relating to the Group's overseas
subsidiaries (2016 £1,480,000). The IRS audit in the US continues and focuses on the tax position related to the Group's
acquisition of MIPS in 2013. A determination has been raised by the authorities that the Group is appealing. 1t is expected
that the audit wilt conclude within the next financial year, and the provision made in respect of the audit has been reclassified
from a tax liability due in more than one year, to be included within the current tax liability noted above.,

At 30 April 2017 there 13 a currant tax liability due in mare than one year of £1,547,000 (2016: £4,583.000). The balance in
both years largely refates to a provision in the US.

Deferred tax
The mavement on the deferrad tax account 18 as follows:

Recognised in Recognised As at

incame statement in equity 30 Apri 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000

Tax losses 14,588 110.624) - 3,962
Share based payments jnote 241 2,206 1 799) 1150) 1,257
Other hming differences 284 203 19 98
Caprtal allowances 16.683) 1.484 - {5,219)
Cain on forsign exchange contract a7 147y - -
Acquisition of ntangble assets (10,229 (=11 - (10,840}
11 110,622) 1131) {10,742)




2017 RS

£'000 s
Deferred taxation has been presented on the balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax asset a8 12,8232
Daferrad tax liability (10,840} 112,912)
At end of the pericd {10,742} A

Given the uncertainty of future profit generation, and taking into account the factors discussea innote 1. management have
decided to raverse the UK deferrad tax assets at 30 April 2017. The remaining £93,000 asset relates to overseas territones
where profits are certain due 1o transfer pricing arrangements that are in place (2016: £12,923,000).

The deferred tax ability reducaed during the year to £10.840.000 {2016: £12.912.000) This movement was a rasult of the
amortization of intangible assets relating to previous acquistions.

None of the recognised tax assets or liabilities expire.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
there is a legally enforceable right 1o offsat,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
UK deferrad tax asssts of ©15.308,000 have been reversed during the year. These assets are still available 1o the Group.

The Group has Federal US tax losses of $680,082.000 (2016: $53,482.000), tax credits of $12,560.000 (2016: $10.211.000}
ang other temporary differences of 524,888,000 2016: $28,651,000). The Federal tax losses and tax credits expire
pregressively from 2020.

In addition the Group has State US tax losses of $59,938,000 (2016: $44,189,000). tax credits of $9,351.000 (2016
$8,813,000) and other temporary differences of $50,990,000 (2016: $59,915.000). The State tax losses expire prograssively
from 2017.

State research tax credits do not expire.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of the avalability of the above tax losses to be utilised
against future taxable profits arising in the US.

if the Group were able to recognise all US unrecognised deferred tax assets, an asset of £40,506.000 ($562.455.000) (2016:
of £32.734,000 ($47,831.0000 reported at the applicable tax rates, would be recognised.

AL 30 April 2017, there was no recogrised deferred tax liability (2016: $nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries. The Group has determined that undistributed profits of its subsidianes will not
be distributed in the foraseeable future.

Factors affecting future tax charge

The Finance Act 2016 reduced the rate of Corparation Tax from 1 April 2017 to 18% and by a further 2% to 17% from 1
April 2020. In addition, the Finance Act 2012 introduced the UK patent box regime which provides for an effective tax rate of
10% on certain UK profits from 1 April 2013 (phased in over 5 years). These changes have been substantively enacted at the
balance shest date and consequently are reflacted in these financial statements. The Group has not made an election in to
the UK Patent Box regime as at 30 April 2017, nor do the Directors consider it wilk be beneficial to do so in the short term.

No UK centric deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised, however if they were they would De raecognised at the main
rate of UK Corporation Tax of 17% with the exception of the deferred tax on share options. which would be expected to
largely reverse before 1 April 2020 and would therefore be provided at 19%.
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6 Earnings per share

From continuing and discontinuing operations

Loss aftroutlable o equity holders of the parent

Weighted average numper of shares in 1ssue
Less: Weignted average number of shares heid by Employee Benefit Trust / company registrars
Effect of dilutive shares: Emploves incentve schemes

Weaightad average numoer of shares potentially In issue

Basic

Loss per share
Dilutad

2017
£°000
{27,908)
2017
Shares
000
280,582 273,562
{3,560) {1.868)
16,159 15,279
293,181 286,973
2017 k]
(10.9p 29.81p
(10.1)p 29.8)p

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume
conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. Details of the schemes considered in arriving at the potentially dilutive
ordinary shares are set out in note 24, It should be noted that potentially diutive shares are not considered when a basic

loss per share has been calculated. A loss cannot be diluted.

Adjusted earnings per share

Adiusted (foss} / profit before tax — {see note 2}
Adjusted taxation (charge) / credit

Adjusted floss) / profit attribitabie to equity holders of the parenr

Weighted average number of shares in issue
Less: Weighted average number of shares held by Ernployee Benefit Trust / company registrars
Effsct of dilutive shares: Employes incentive schemeas

Weighted average numbsr of shares patantialy m ssus

Adjusted loss per share Basic
Ciluted

2017 2Ma
£'000 LneG
14,846 {27,108)
(17,240) 1.987
(2,394} 125,119}
2017
Shares
000
280,582 273.562
(3,560} {1.868)
16,159 15.279
293,181 286.97°3
2017 ey
{0.9)p 19.2)p
(0.9)p 19.2)0

Adjusted earnings per share is calculated using adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent which is derived

from the adjusted profit before tax described in note 2,



From continuing operations

2017 RO
£'000 T
L0ss aitrbutable to equity haders of the parant (16,080) 26,103,
2017
Shares
000
Weignted average number of shares In 1Issue 280,582 273.582
Less. Weigntsd average number of sharas held by Employes Benefit Trust / company registrars {3,560) 11,868)
Effect of dilutive shares: Employae ncentive schemes 16,159 15.279
Werghted average number of snares potentially in 1ssug 293,181 286,973
2017 2315
{Loss) / profit per share Basic {5.8)p 19.6)p
Diluted {5.8)p 2.8ip

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing
and discontinued operations.

From discontinued operations

2017 oo
Basic {4.3lp 120210
Loss per share Diluted (4.3)p i20.21p

94



7 Goodwill and other intangible assets

intangible assets

Software, patents

Goadwill from acquisitions” and trademarks Tatal
£000 £1000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 May 2015 63,351 71,406 17,292 152,048
Reclassification - - (138 1138)
Addtions - - 3.896 3.898
Disposals - - 11.154) 11,154)
AL 30 April 2016 £3.351 71.406 19,896 154,833
Ar 1 May 2016 63,351 71,406 19,896 154,653
Reclassification - - 133 133
Additions - - 2,685 2,685
Disposals 73 (73)
At 30 April 2017 83,351 71,406 22,641 157,398
Amortization
At 1 May 2015 3,517 25.492 13.821 42,820
Rectassification - - (20) 20)
Charge for the year - 8.230 1.436 9,666
Disposals - - 817 817
Impairment 11.081 481 - 11.542
At 30 Apnl 2018 14,578 34,203 14,420 63.201
At 1 May 2018 14,578 34,203 14,420 63,201
Feclassification - - 109 109
Charge for the year - 6,036 909 6,945
Disposals - - (a1) 41)
Impairment 57 - - 57
At 30 April 2017 14,635 40,239 15,397 70,271
Net bock value at 3G April 2016 48,773 37,203 5476 91.452
Net book value at 30 April 2017 43,716 31,167 7,244 87,127

* Intangible assats trom acquisitions are those assets; recognized when far walue accounting for the acquisitions of Feliosoft Inc. Caustic Graphies Inc. MIPS
Techneloges Inc 1since renamed imaginaticn Technclogies LLC). Posadge Inc inow guidated inte Imagination Tuchnologies LLE) and Kiscl Microelcctronics

AB {since renamed Imaginaticn Technologies AB) They arc enalvsed below.

Developed Customer
technology relationships Trade names Total
£'000 £'900 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 May 2015 80919 8,880 1.597 71.406
AL 30 Apnl 2016 60.919 8,830 1.597 71.406
At 1 May 2016 80,919 8,890 1,597 71,406
Transfer between asset categones - - - -
At 30 April 2017 60,919 8,890 1,597 71,406
Amortization
AT May 2015 23.062 2181 239 25,492
Charge for the year 7,060 1.083 107 8.230
impairment 531 - - 481
At 30 April 2016 30,603 3234 348 34.203
At T May 20165 30,603 3,254 346 34,203
Charge for the year 4,866 1,063 107 6,036
At 30 April 2017 35,469 4,317 453 40,239
Net book value at 30 Aprif 2016 30,318 5,636 1.251 37,203
Net book value at 30 April 2017 25,450 4,573 1,144 31,167




Goodwill was acguired through acquisibicrs and relates to aither PowerVR. MiPS, Ensigma or IMG Systems business units,
which are each considered to be single cash-gererating units. During the penod the Group tested its balance of goodwill for
impairmert in accordance with JAS 38 impaiment of Assets. The test was based or a calculation of the recoverable amount
based on value in use. using projected cash flows for the respective business units.

Goodwill has been allocated to the various cash generating business units as follows. with the following impairment(s) noted
In the period.

* Carrying value 1 May 2016 E Impairment Carrying value 30 April 2017
Business Unit : £000 | £'000 £'000
PowerVR 12,067 | - 12,087
[ MPS ; 23.236 | - 23.236
! Ensigma : 11.214 - 11414
IMG Systems : - - _ '
Pure : 58 : 56 —
| Total 48,773 56 48,717

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations applicable to all business units in FY16 were:

Period over which the directors have projected cashflows — a five year forecast peried 1s used which is based on
management forecasts of future profits, with an assumed terminal growth rate after 2021 of 1.9% per annum. The terminal
growth rate 1s assessed taking into account general economic conditions.

Forecast revenue growth — the revenue projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning
purposes.

Forecast operating margins — the operating margin projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial
planning purposes.

Discount rate — future cash flows are discounted at a rate of 8,.87%, 7.9% and 9.3% which represents a pra-tax rate that
reflects the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the risks specific to the PVR, Ensigma and MIPS business
units respectively. In previous years, the business viewed these collectively as one business unit; Technology business,

Discontinued operations — The Board has also considerad any potential disposal proceeds in making its assessment of
recoverabie amounts.

The diractors have considered the sensitivity of the assumptions used and do not believe that any reasonably foreseeable
changes to key assumptions would result in further impairment of goodwill, such is the margin by which the estimated fair
value exceeds the carrying value of the goodwilt,

As confirmed in the announcement on 22 June 2017 the group has received a number of offers from third parties for

the MIPS and Ensigma divisions. Based on these offers which remain conditional at the date of this report, the Directors
consider that the carrying valug of assats allocatad to these cash generating units are recoverable based on their carrying
value being less than their fair value less costs (o sell.

The Diractors have considerad the camying value of assets allccated to PowerVR and have determined that these are supported
by their fair value less costs to sell. In part. this is based on the ongeing negotiations for the sale of the entire group.

In making ther assessmeant, the Directors have considered the range of offers received and the conditions attached to them. For
both MIPS and PowerVR, the Directors consider that thera is no reasonably foreseeable scenario which would lead to the carrying
value being lower than the recoverable amount. For Ensigma, the range of offers received indicate that no impairment is required.
however, the headroom may be reduced or eliminated once the conditions of the offer have been fuffiled.
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land Leasehoid Plant and
and buildings improvements equipment Total
oo £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Al 1 May 2015 54,181 5,788 33.836 93.805
Reciassification betweaen asset class 112,313 - [1.750 114.063)
Additions 10.452 158 9.353 19.963
Disposals {141) 177 12,051 {2.269)
At 30 Apnl 2016 52,179 5.869 39.388 97 436
At 1 May 2016 52,179 5,869 39,388 97,436
Reclassification between asset class - (134) (134}
Additions 46 64 1,849 1,959
Disposals 149) (320) (2,151} (2,485)
At 30 April 2017 52,211 5,613 38,952 06,776
Dapreciation
A1 May 2015 2,239 3.390 18,175 24.804
Reclassification between asset class {380} - (1.501) 11.881)
Charge for the year 899 484 5,161 6.644
Disposals {1471} {45) {1,890) (2,176)
Impairment - - 393 393
At 30 April 2016 2617 3.826 21,238 27.684
At 1 May 2018 2,617 3,829 21,238 27,684
Reclassification betweaen asset class - {109) {109)
Charge for the year 883 505 5,295 £,684
Disposals {14) (300) {1,151) {1,465}
At 30 April 2017 3,486 4,034 25,274 32,794
Net book value at 30 April 2018 49,562 2,020 18,150 69,752
Net book value at 30 April 2017 48,725 1,579 13,678 63,982
2017
£'000

The net book value of freehold fand and buldings campnses:

Land 7,422 7,822
Buildings 41,303 42,140
48,725 49,562

Contained within Plant and Equipment is CAD eguipment with a net book value of £5,446 000 which 1s deamed to have
been acquired under a finance lease.

Included within Plant and Equiprment is £833,000 that s assets under construction and has not been depreciated.



9 Investment property

Cost basis

AT 1 May

Transfer from property, plant and equipment durrg tre year

Imparment during the year
Disposed of dunng the ysar

A 30 Apris

2017

£'000
5475 -
- 11,933
{975) (6,458)

{4,500)
- 5,475

During the year, the group's Investment progerty ~as disposed of for consideration of £4,500.000 in January 2017. An
impairment was recognized on October 2016 to reflect the fact that, at that date. the recoverable amount of the asset was

less than its previous carrying value.

The recoverable amount of the group’s investment property at 30 April 2018, and the resulting /mparment during that year.
was arrived at on the basis of a valuaticn carned out 1in February 2016 by independant vaiuers not connected with the

group. The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards. The imparment was determined using the investment
method of valuation. this showed that the recoverable amount was less than the cost and accordingly, an impairment was

recognised.

The investment property was measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated impairment losses in

the consolidated balance sheet.

10 Investments

Trade investments ciassified as availatle for sale

2017
£'000

5,097

2018
£1000

4,626

Movement in the carrying value of each of the Group's equity holdings during the perod is analysad below:

Fair value movement

during period
Increased Statement of Carrying value
% ot shares held Carrying value holding in Income comprehensive at 30 April
as at at 1 May 201§ investments Disposal staternent income 207
30 Aprit 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
rdigital Group plc 0.0% 109 1108} (1 - -
NetSpeed 3.8% 1,095 - - - 141 1,236
Atomos 20.7% 3422 - - - 439 3.861
Ineda” 8.1% - - - - -
Crca” 9.4% - - - - -
Blu-VWirgless” 6.0% - - - - - -
Total 4,626 - {108) {1) 580 5,007

7digital — The remaining shares that were not able to be sold last financial year due to certain critera meaning they were
being held in trust. were sold as soon as they were out of trust. There was a smail loss on disposai of £1.000.

NetSpeed - At the balance sheet date a gain of £141.000 arose due to forsign exchange movements and this has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Atomos - At the balance sheet date a gair of £439.000 arose due 1o foreign exchange movements ard this has been
recogrused in the consolidated statement of comprahensive Income.

T - The zamying salug of these trade investrment s has been fully irepairen to 22t

All gains and imparment charges relating to trade investments classified as available for sale relate to the

Corporate businass unit.

tels!



All Gairs and losses for the period recognised in the consolidated income statemart are ncludad within the "gan on
investments” and ‘impairment of investments rows within the corsolidated income statemenrt. All gains or lossas for the
penod recognised in other comprehensive income ars included within the “change in fair value of assets classified as
available for sale” row within the statement of comprehensive ircome.

The Group values thess investments (Level 3; using a comturatior of techniques. but primarily by reference 10 the latest
funding rounds. The Directors™ also consider other factors such as manragement accounts and latest forecasts in determining
whether there arg any mdicators of impairment.

Please see note 22 for further information surrounding fair value valuation principles, The directors have considersd the

sensitivity of the unobservable inputs used and do not believe that any reasonably foresesable changes to these inputs
would result a matenal change to fair value of the investments.

11 Inventories

2017 2018
£'000 00

Raw materials and components 22 48
Finished goods 54 172
76 220

No provisions (2018: £323,000) recognised in operating expenses were made against inventories. During the period,
£84,000 (2016: £1.444.000) of the provision against inventories was utilised for the write-down and write off of inventories.
As at 30 April 2017 the provision for obsolescence of inventories was nit (2016: £84,000}.

Raw materials, consurnables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as operating expenses in the
period amounted to £103,000 (2016: £77,000).

12 Trade and other receivables

2017 2019

£'000 o0

Trade receivables 16,081 10.452
Accrued income 28,423 29,895
Prepayments 3,508 3,933
Other receivables 2,204 1,956
R&D credit recaivable 9,678 8.080
59,894 54116

Prowisian for impairment of trade receivables as at 3C April 2017 was £44,000 {2016: £948.000). with the 2016 provision fully
utilised during the year, and the 2017 balance recognised in the income statement dunng the year.

During the year the Group received £424,000 {2016: £nil) against invoices that had previously been provided for. These ftems
waere recognised as a credit 10 the income statement. Other than the £44.0C0 provision noted above. therg were no further
bad debt write offs during the year (2016: £1,580,000).



13 Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2F

£'000 Do

Cash at bank - currem account 17,171 5.820

Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of fnancial positon 17,171 5820

Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 17,171 5.820

14 Trade and other payables

2017
£'000
Trade payables 7,144
Other taxes and social secunty 1,609
(Other payables 2,358
Accruals 16,403
Deferred income 11,661
Deferreq and contingent consideration -
39,175

There is £1,571.000 (2016: £1,713,000) refating to liabilities owed under a finance lsase that is due within 12 manths. The
corresponding asset has been identified and disclosed in note 8.

The deferred and cantingent consideration creditor related te the acquisitions of Posedge and Kisel in August and
December 2013 respectively. During the year the 2018 creditor was erther utilised (£1,180.000; or released (£1,046.000) as
appropriata. The three year anniversary of the acguisitions was the final crystallisation date for any deferred or contingent
considergtion.

15 Provisions

2017 ERE
£'000 B
Rastructurnng provision 20 B72
Onerous revenue contract provision 4,668 6.182
Other 2,830 3.775
7,518 10.829
Rostructuring Onerous revenue
pravision comtract provision Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 May 872 6,182 3,775 10,829
Additional provision required - 2,007 951 2,958
Releass of provision - - (803) 893)
Utlisaticn of prowisian (852) {3,521) {1,093) (5,466)
At 30 April 20 4,668 2,830 7,518

Restri:ctluring provisions relate to the expected costs of redundancies that were announced pnor to the year end. These will
be utilised in the next financial year.

Onerous revenue contracts relate to axpected iosses on specific customer contracts. The provision 1s based on the estmated
costs to complete exceeding the total contract reverue. ard therefore full prowision has been made for the expected loss. The
group expects all of the remaining defiverables on these contracts to be finalised in the next financial year.
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Other provisions include those for specific employes benefits and fegal costs.

Also ncluded in other provisions are onerous proparty provsions that poncipally relate to onerous lease contracts due to
empty office space created by the ongoing review and rationatisation of the Group’s property portfolio. Utilisation of the
provision will be over the anticipated iife of the leases or earfier if exited.

The Group does not consider that discounting of these amounts te be material based on the expected maturity profile of the
provisions.

Of the total amount provided, £400,000 (2016: £1,893,000) 15 expected {o fall due after more than one year and has shown
as a non-current liability.

16 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

2017 2005
£000 o
Current liabilities
gjxgit\!rg;i cradit facility - 16.000
3,861 22,789
Non-cyrrent |!abl|!t.le5 23,750 B
Revolving credit facility
17,992 -
Bank loan
45,603 38,789
Borrowings to be repaid within one year 3,861 38.789
Borrowings to be repaid between ong and five vears 41,742 -
Borrowings to be repaid aver five years = -
45,603 38,789

in February 2013, the Group drew down a $48.000.000 term loan which was used to part fund the acquistion of MIPS
Technologies, Inc. On 17 June 2014, the Group completed a re-negotiation of the terms of the above loar. Under the ravised
terms the remaining loan baiance is repayable in seven six monthly instaiments of $2,500.000 between December 2014

and December 2017, with a final bullet payment of $23,300,000 due in June 2018, The loan is currently sutiect 1o vanable
quarterly interest payments at a rate of 2.05% above 3 month LIBOR on the outstanding bafance.

At the balance sheet date the Group's bank loan equated to £3,861,000 (2016: £22,789,000). which is due within one year,
with £37,992,000 due after one year but less than five vears {20168: £mil due after one vear but less than five years).

The movernent of loans and barrowing year on year between current and non-current ligbilities is due to the fact that on

30 Aprit 2018, the Group breached one of the financial covenants associated with the terms of the lending agreement.
Accordingly, all comparative amounts were shown as current liabiiities. Subseguent to the prior year balance sheet date, the
lender agreed to waive the breach and reset the covenants.

The loan is secured by a debenture dated March 20713 which gives HSBC Bank ple a fixed and fioating charge over the
assets of the Company and its principal subsidiary Imagination Technologies Uimited. The bank also has a legal charge over
freehoid land and buildings owned by the Group, which have a net book value of £48.725,000 (2016 £55.037.000).

17 Other payables
Other non-current payables

2017 407

£'000
Other pavabies 4,742 5,305
Deferred ncome B30 853
Deferred and cantingent consideration - -
5,572 7158

Contained within other payables is £3,498,000 (2016: £4,956.000) due after 12 morths relating to liabilitics owed under a
finance lease. The corresponding asset has been identified and disclosed in note 8.



18 Assets and liabilities held for sale

Durirng the year, the trade ard assets of the IMGwarks BU were made availabie for sale. As at 30 April 2017, the relevant

assets and liabilities of IMGworks were reclassified as assets and #abilities beld for sale.

During the previous year the trade and assets of the Pure and IMG Systams BU's were made available for sale. As at 30 April
2018, the relevant assets and liabilites of these BU's were reclassified as assets and liabilities held for sale.

2017 2016
IMGworks Pure IMG Systems Total
£'006 £000 £'000 £:000
Assets held for sale

Intangible assets - software. patents & trademarks - 118 _ 118
Tangible assets — plant & sguipment - 249 B . %49
lwentories _ 2.613 - 2.613
Trade debtors _ 2.202 51 2253
Prepayments - 22 - 22
- 5,204 51 5,255

Liabilities held for sale
Trade crecitors - BB 99 Q45
Accruals 115 3.922 1,445 5.367
Other taxes and social securnty 129 - - _
244 4,768 1,544 6,312

The sale of the Pure BU completed on 30 September 20186 faor cash consideration of £2,724.000.

The assets and liabilities, and their respective book values, that were disposed of are shown below:

Intangible assets £107.000
Tangibie assets £177,000
Stock £3,340.000
Trade debtors & prepayments £1.,860,000
Trade creditors (£646,000)
Accruals £2.849,000

Bock value of net assets disposed £1,839.000

When the costs of disposal, and other costs relating to the discontinuation of the Pure business are taken into account, the

loss or disposal of the Pure Business Unit was £795,000.

19 Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital

Authorised Allotted. called-up and fully paid
N R N r T30 Rt Tor
At 1 May 2016 306.000.0C0 30.000 276,626,351 27.663
issued durng oenod - - 7.314.512 73t
At 30 Aprl 2017 300,000,000 30,000 283,941,363 28,394

The nghts attached to ordinary shares are as set cut in: the Directors’ report on page 27,
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Share capital and share premium
The movement on the share capital and share premium reserve in the period anses from the issue of 7,314,512 ordinary
shares as follows:

» Issue of 224.815 shares ralating to share options. Cash consideration of £391.000 was received in ieu of these options,
Share capital increased by £22,000 and share premium by £369,000 as a result.

* 5,300,047 fully paidt shares were issued at nil cost pursuant to the terms of various Employee Share Option Schemes.
£630,000 relating to these shares was debited to reserves.

* 733,414 shares wers issued during the year relating 1o the “free share’ element of the SIP award in July 2016, The shares
will be held in trust until at least July 2019 - the earliest date they are available to employees. £73.000 relating to these
shares was debited to reserves.

* 56,236 shares were issued during the year relating to the ‘matching’ element of SIP ‘partnership” shares purchased by
employees. £6.000 relating to these shares was debited 10 reserves.

Other capital reserve

The balance on the other capital reserve reflects the value of warrants issued in respect of the acguisition of Ensigma Limited
in March 2000,

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arose in the Group reconstruction in 1994 pnor 1o its flotation.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve comprises the cumuiative net change in the fair value of the trade investments classified as availabie
for sale until the investments are derecognised.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve refiects the exchange differences from retranslation of the opening net investments in overseas
subsidiaries to closing rate.

20 Operating leases

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Land and buldings Other
2017 2013 2017
£'000 v £000
Within one year 3,072 3.273 9,651 4.069
N two to five years 7,591 5.632 12,213 10.851
After five years 11 1,600 336 -
10,674 11,655 22,200 15,520

Gther operating leases include the rentar of software and vehicles.

21 Capital commitments

At 30 April 2017, the Group had contractual capital commitments of £318,000 (2016: £15,000}.

22 Financial instruments

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

* Market rigk
* Cradit risk
¢ Liquidity nsk



This note preserts informatior about the Group’s exposure to sach of the abeve risks. the Group's objectives. policies and
processes for measurirg ard managing rsk,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
frameawork.

Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the critena for recegnition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised In respect of each class of financial assets,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclesed in note 1 to the financial statements.

2017 2015
otas £'000 L0060
Financial assets
Loans and recevables
Trade and other receivables 12 28,164 23.726
Cash and cash equivalents 13 17,171 5,820
Assets heid for sale 18 - 5.255
Avallable for sale investments 10 5,007 4.626
Total financial assets 50,432 39,427
2017 20t
Nt £'000 T 000
Financal iabikties
Borawings 16 45,603 38,789
Trade and other payables 14 27,000 25.376
Liabifities held for sale 18 244 8.312
Nan-current payables i 5,572 5.427
Total financial liabilities 78,509 75,904

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptabie parameters. whilst optimizing the return on rigk.

Net financing expense

The net finrance expense in the Consciidated income statement 1s evidence of this nsk. The Group’s net finance expense for the
year ended 30 April 2017 was £5,426,000 (2016: £2,630.000). The increase of £2,797,000 is largely due to the movement in
the USD FX rats from 1.46812 at 30 April 2016 to 1.295 at 30 April 2017, on the transiatiocn of the Group's USD dencminated
term loan and finance lease balances, and the USD denominated interest charges on the term loan.

a) Foreign currency risk

The Group transacts licence and development agreements with customers in US Dallars and, therefore, the Group's eamings

are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure on a regular basis and, if
there is a material exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers it appropriate, the Group will reduce the risk by
currency hedging on net recaivable/payable balances. Forward exchange contracts are entered into with the objective of matching
their maturity with currency receipt. During the pericd the total value of currency contracts entered into amounted to $16,800,000
or £15,817,000 {2016; £36.041,000). As at 30 April 2017 the outstanding currency contracts amounted to £3.198,000

(2018: £8,827,000). The falr value of these cutstanding currency contracts was £109.000 gain (2016 £235,000 loss).

The movement in fair value of £344,000 has been recognised within finance income in the period.

The analysis of financial assets and liabilites by foreign currency is as follows irespective of the functonal currency of the
transacting entrty:
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30 April 2017 30 April 2016

£ $ €  Other Total £ 5 € Other Tolat

Tragle recevabiles 540 15,539 - 3 16,082 535 9.817 - - 10,452
Other receivables 10,733 457 9 883 12,082 12,269 340 2 663 13.274
Cash and cash equivalents 11,362 4,426 (83 1,466 17,171 2,897 142 911 1,870 5.820
Agsets held for sale - - - - - £.350 124 783 (2) 5,255
Avalabie for sale nvestments - 5,097 - - 5,097 109 4.517 - - 4,626
Trade payables (2,007) {4,852) {125) (160) (7,144) 2,139 13.428) 57 1107 5.731)
Other payables (11,588) (7,219) 12y  (1,127) {19,946) 16,889) (11.222) 121 (1.413)  119.,645)
Liabilities held for sale (244} - - - (244) (5.283) (598) 398 133) 6,312)
Borrowings (23,750) (21,853) - - {45,603) (16.000} (22,789) - - {38,789
Non-current payabies (53) (5,435) - 84) (5,572) - (5,427) - - (5,427)
(15,007) {13,840) (211} 981 (28,077} (10,151 (28.424) 1,120 978 (38.477}

The significant foreign exchange risks for the Group are USD receivables ot £8,173,000 held by Imagination Technologies
Limited and Imagination Technologies AB and the USD loan of £21.853,000 held by Imagination Technologies plc. The
majority of the other assets and liabilities are held within foreign subsidiaries in the respective local currencies.

The Group has a number of overseas business cperations and operates in a number of foreign currencies which give rise to
transactional and translational foreign exchange risk. The mast important foreign currency to the Group is the US Dollar.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group transacts a large proportion of its revenues and costs in US Dollars. Taking all income and expenditure in US
Dollars into account, management have appraised that for the financial year to 30 April 2017, each additionat one cent
increase or decreasa in the US Dollar exchange rate against Sterling would have decreased or increased revenues by circa
£1,127.000 (2016: £823,000) and profit by circa £774,000 (2016: £287,000).

b} Interest rate risk

The Group’s earnings may be affected oy changes in interest rates available on bank deposits. The Group aims to maximise
returns from funds held on deposit and uses market deposits with major clearing banks accordingly. With the current level of
bank deposits. the impact of a change in interest rales is not considered material.

N respect of income-earning financial assets and interest bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their

average effective interest rate at the repaorting date and the periods in which they mature or, if earier. reprice.

2017 2016
Effective < 1 year > 1 year Total Effective < 1 year > 1 year Total
interest rate £'000 £'000 £'000 interest rate £'000 £'000 £°000
Cash and cash equivalents
Sterling 11,363 - 11,363 2.897 - 2897
US Dollar 4,426 - 4,426 142 - 142
Euro (83) - &3 911 - 911
Japanese Yen o8 - 98 255 - 255
Indian Rupes 815 - 616 595 - 505
Chinese Yuan 247 - 247 310 - 310
Palish Zioty 101 - 101 102 - 102
New Zealand Doliar - - - 41 - 41
Australian Dollar 181 - 181 122 - 122
Swedish Krona 127 - 127 183 . 183
Korean YWon 43 - 43 538 - 58
New Taiwan Dollar 7 - 7 179 - 179
israeh Shekel 48 - 46 25 - 28
17,171 - 17,171 5.820 - 5.820
Fioating rate 0.0% 17,171 - 171471 0.0% 5.820 -
Fixed rate - - - - _
17,171 - 17171 5.820 - 5.820
Bank Loan
ROF draw down® 3.3% - {23,750) {23,750) 317 116,000 - (16.0001
Secured bank loan - USD” 3.3% 3861y (17.992) (21,853} 3% {22.789) - (22.789)
(3.851)  {41,742) (45,603} {38.789) - {38.789)
T AL fioating rate. See note 15 for detals.
Floahng rats cash cams interest based on LIBID 2quealents.

Shert torrs receivablas and payanles are not intor:st bearing wath the excoption of the short term elerant of the long fer- iean.
Tre loan floats at 2.05-F above guarserly LIBOR and the unexpired term is 1 vears and 2 manths,



Interest rate sensitivity analysis

in the financial year to 30 April 2017, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit would have been decreased by circa £1.013.000 (2016: decreased by circa £788.000}). Similarly,
if interest rates had been 100 basis points lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group’s profit would have
beer ncreased by circa £251,000 (2016: circa £412,600;.

Credit risk
Credit nsk is the risk of financial loss to the Group i a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractuai obligatiors. and arises principally from the Group's recaivables from customers and investment of liquid funds.

The Group Imits ts exposure to credit nsk by only investing in iquid securities and onty with counter parties that have a high credit rating.

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to cortinue as a going concern while
maximizing the return 1o stakeholders as weil as sustaining the future development of the business. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure. the Groug may consider the total amount of dividends paid to sharsholders. return capital to
shareholders. issued new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the
previous financiai year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 16, cash and cash equivalents
and equity aftributable to the parent. The latter compnses share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in note 18 and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The CFC regularty mionitors the capital risk on behalf of the Board.

Trade receivables

The exposure to credit risk is mitigated by selling to a diverse range of customers. The Group has implemented palicies that
require appropriate credit checks on potential customers prior to sales taking place. At the balance sheet date there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk either by customer or by geography. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Gross Impairment Tross IrPpament

2017 2017 2073 2015

Ageing of trade receivables: £°000 £:000 S0 Toon
Not past due 9,804 - 9,348 (747)
Past due 0-90 days 5,492 - 1.685 -
Past due greater than 90 days 785 - 230 1e4)
16,081 - 11.263 1811

Trade receivables that are less than three months overdue are generally not considered impaired. Receivables more than three
months overdue are considered on a line by line basis and a provision is made where recovery 1s considered doubtful.

No other financial assets are past due.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. To minimise this risk

the Group only invests funds in liquid securities. As a contingency, the Group maintains a £3 mifllion overdraft and £35 million
revolving credit facility.

The following table is drawn up based on undiscounted contractual maturities including both interest and principal cashflows.

Carrying Contractual Less than More than

amount cashflows 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
April 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 2'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loan 21,853 21,853 3,861 17,992 - _
RCF draw down 23,750 23,750 - 23,750 _ _
Trade and other payables 27,090 27,080 27,090 - _ _
Liabiiities held for sale 244 244 244 - _ _
Non-current payables 5,672 5,572 5,572 -

78,509 78,509 36,767 41,742 - -

Carrny Contractual

AmGunt cashflows -2 yedls 25 e

Apnl 2016 © oo £000 T o
Bank loan 22.789 22,789 - - -
RCF draw down 18,000 16.000 - -
Trade and other payables 25.376 25378 - - -
Liabulties held for sale 5.312 6.312 - -
MNon-current payables 5.427 5.427 - - -

75904 75.904 - - -
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Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value 1s defined as the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's fength transaction
between two informed and willing parties and is calculated by reference to market rates discounted to current value.

2017 ERDS
LCarrying amount and fair value Carrary anenrt o far saoe
Meises £'000 0
Financial assets:

Trade andg other recerables 12 28,164 23,726
Cash and cash eguivalents 13 17,171 5,820
Assets heid for sale - 5,255
Available for sale investments 10 5,007 4,628

Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 16 (45,603) (38.789)
Trade and other payables 14 (27,09Q) {25.376)
Liabilities held for sale 18 (244) 6.312)
Non-current payables 17 5,572) 5.427)

Assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments refiected in the table above:

Cash and cash equivalents
The fair value approximates 1o book value due to the short term maturity of thess instruments.

Available for sale investments

Fair value hierarchy
The Group measures the fair value of available for sale investments using the following hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used N making the measurement:

Level 1: Quoted market price {unadjusted) in an active market for an identical financial instrument.

Level 2 Va]uation techniques based on observable inputs, such as market prices for similar financial instruments.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using unobservable inputs which can have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.
The Group has applied the above hierarchy 1o its investments as follows:

7digital - the vaiuation is based on the quoted share price for 7digital Group plc on AIM. This investment is categorised as Level 1.

NetSpeed - the valuation is based on the purchase price of the investrment which was acquired during the year. This
investment is categorised as Level 3.

Atomos - the valuation is based or the purchase price of the investment. This investment is categorised as Level 3.

The following table analyses investments, measured at fair value at the reporting date. by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurement s categorised:

2017 2014

£'000 T a00

Level 1 - 109
tevel 2 - _
Lavel 3 5,097 4.517
5,097 4626




The following table shows a reconcttiatior from opening balances to the closing balances for far value measursments in
Levei 3 of the far value hierarchy:

£'000
At 30 Apnl 2016 4517
investment i the ysar -
Total gans and losses:

In income statement -

In other comprehersve ncome 580
Disposals -
At 30 April 2017 5,097

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value.

The valuation of NetSpeed and Atomos is based on the purchasa price of the investment at the most recent funding rounds
and any changes in the intervening period to 30 Aprl 2016 are not materially different to these valuations,

Long term berrowings
The fair value approximates to book value as this instrument is at a variable interest rata.

23 Contingent liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 30 April 2017 or 30 Apnl 2016.

24 Employee benefits

Pension
The Company participates in a group personal pension glan with defined contributions. The assets of the schemes are held
separately in independently administered funds. There were no cutstanding contributions at the balance sheet date.

Share-based payments

Share options

The following options have been granted under the Imagination Technologies Key Employee Share Option Schames, Savings
Related Share Option Scheme and Long Term incentive Plar and remain outstanding as at 30 Aprit 2017:

Date from

Year of Issue Qutstanding Exercise which first Expiry
at 30 April 2017 price exercisable date
2013 1755681 228p 2016 2017
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Date fram

Qutstanding Exercisa which first Expiry
Year of issue at 30 April 2017 price exercisable ciate
2008 25.000 Jp 2011 2018
2009 127.902 Op 2012 2017
2009 746,492 Op 202 2017
2010 180.976 Op 2013 2018
2010 12,816 Op 20mz2 2017
2010 6,861 Op 2013 2018
2011 341,344 Op 2014 2019
2011 364.551 Op 2014 2019
2012 410,011 Op 2015 2020
2012 148,865 Op 2015 2020
2012 540,701 ap 2015 2020
2013 570371 Op 20186 2021
2013 758,817 Op 2016 2021
2013 80,020 Oop 2016 2021
2014 1.136.516 Jp 2017 2022
2014 B8.000 Op 2017 2022
2014 731,706 Op 207 2022
2014 54,422 Op 2017 2022
2015 1,899,643 Op 2018 2023
2015 66,765 Op 2018 2023
2015 " 354,836 Op 2018 2025
2016 1,328,738 Op 2019 2024
2016 49,612 Op 2019 2024
2016 1,228.505 Jp 2019 2026
2016 1,487,862 Op 2019 2024
2016 128,653 Op 2019 2024
2016 3,066,771 Op 2019 2024
2016 124,267 Jp 2019 2024
2016 231578 Op 2019 2024
2016 161,403 Op 2019 2024
20186 18,000 Op 2019 2024
2016 43,846 Op 2019 2024
2016 494,149 Op 2019 2028
Sub-total of nil cast options 16,877.802
17,153,383
*Options granted under the tong Term Incentive Plan
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as fokows:
Weighted average Number wWeght=o avorage MNurr-ber
exarcise price of aptions IOICIST e ot ophicns
Year of lssue 2017 2017 205 2015
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 226p 597,839 213p 1,242,837
Exercised durng the period 174p (224,815) 55p 1283,053)
Granted durng the peried - - - -
Lapsed during the penod 285p {197,443) 305p (361,595}
Qutstanding at the end of the period 228p 175,581* 226p 597.839*
Exercisaple at the end of the perod 228p 175,581** 223p 185.519

The average share price during the year was 217.56p (2016: 197.71pl.

The options outstanding at the year end have an exercise prnce in the range of Op to 228p and a weighted average
contractual life of 1.2 years.

“Excludes 8 977202 nif cost aphons, Moverrants of which are shown with share awards below.



Employee Share Plan

The following awards have been granted under the imagiration Technologies Employee Share Plan and remain outstanding
at 30 Aprit 2017:

Date from
Qutstanding which first Expiry
Year of 1ssue at 30 April 2017 exercisable date
2014 308.584 2017 2017
2014 339.601 2017 2018
2015 576.123 2018 2018
2016 381.761 2019 2019
2014 463.233 2017 T MNona
2015 228907 2018 * None
2015 109.834 2018 * None
2018 109.484 2019 T Nonme
2018 394,556 2019 * None
2018 725,821 2019 2019
2018 B840.077 2019 2019
2016 155.000 2019 2014
2018 586.121 2019 “ None
2016 144 889 2020 " None
5,164,991
" These shares have been awarded under the Group's Share incentrve Plan ¢ SIP7,

The movements in nil cost share options and share awards are as follows:
Number of share Murmer ot sbare
awards and options wards ard apticns
Year of Issue 2017 2013
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 22,325,189 19,452,803
Exercised during the period {6,446,481) 13,433,827}
Granted during the penod 8,582,259 9.666.851
Lapsed during the pericd {2,318,174) {3.360.638)
Qutstanding at the end of the pericd 22,142,793 22,325.189
Exercisable at the end of the penod 4,294,527 5,691,605

As at 30 Aprit 2017 978.312 (2016; 1.867.924} shares are held by the Company's Employee Benefit Trust, and 2,582,073
shares (2016 1,945.009 shares) relating to the Company's Share Incentive Plan ('SIP} are held by the Company's registrars.

The Company has share option schemes and an employee share plan scheme, details of which are contained in the
Director's report on page 27.

In accordance with IFRS 2, the fair value of services received in return for share options and employse share plan awards
granted to employees is measured by reference to the fair value of share options and employee share plan awards granted.
The estimate of the fair value of the services is measured based on the Black-Scheies or Monte Carlo Simulation models,
financial models used to calculate the fair value of options and awards under the employee share plan.
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The assumptions used in the calculation of the farr vaiue of options are set out below:

Date of share option grant

Share prce at grant date {pence}
Exercise price (pence)

Expected volatility

Risk free intsrest rate

Time to maturity [years)

Fair value per option {pence)

Date of share option grant

Share price at grant date (pence}
Exercise price {pence)

Expected volatility

Risk free intarest rate

Time to maturity lyears)

Fair value per option {pence)

Date of share option grant

Share price at grant date {pencs)
Exercise price (pence)

Expected volatility

Risk free interest rate

Time to maturity {ygars)

Fair value per option (pence]

Date of share option grant

Share price at grant date {pence)
Exercise price (pence)

Expected volatility

Risk free interest rate

Time to maturity (years)

Fair value per aption {pence)

Jun 2012

<66.8

1.9%
38%

c

2y O

oG«

233,

Dec 2013

162.3

52.9%
0.85%

162.3

July 2015

223.0
52.1%
(.84%

3

223.0

July 2016
203.0
n/a

va

1-3"
203.0

Nov 2012

=670
381.2
01.0%
0.35%
3
233.0

Dec 2013

162.3
54.9%
0.85%

3
79.6

July 2015

223.0
52.1%
3.84%

3

130.0

July 2016
203.0

54.1%
J.15%
3
203.0

Dec 2012

409.2
50,772
3.39%

3

300.5

Jun 2014

224.8
55.8%
1.47%

3

2248

52.8%

135.0
Dec 2016

2410
/a
n'a

13"

241.0

Jun 2013
287.4

51.5%
G.62%
3

253

Jun 2014

2248
55.8%
1,47 %

3
1291

Dec 2615

1350
52.8%
0.85%

3
82.0

Dec 2016

241.0
54.1%
0.29%

3

241.0

Jun 2013
287 .4

51.5%
0.62%
3
287.4

Oct 2014

204.8

54.6%
111%
3
204.8

Jan 2016

136.0
54.8%
0.65%

3

138.0

Sep 2013

3512

52.8%
0.86%
3
262.0

Oct 2014

204.8
5.5%
1.00%

3
1435

Jae 2016

138.0

54.8%
0.65%

64.0

Sep 2013
3512

50.9%
1.33%

2611

Oct 2014

204.8
S5.1%
1.00%
3
1421

Feb 2016

143.0
54.6%
0.36%

3

143.0

Sep 2013
3512
57.3%
1.67%

3
351.2

Dec 2014
230.0

53.4%
0.73%

230.0

Feb 2015

143.0

54.6%
0.36%

98.0

The assumpticns used in the calculation of the fair vaiue of the employse share plan awards are set out below:

Data of ESP grant

Share price at grant date ipence;
Expectad volatifity

Risk free interast rate

Time to maturity (years)

Fair value per option (pence)

Date of ESP grant

Share price at grant date (pence)
Expectad volatility

Risk free intarest rate

Time to maturity {years}

Fair value per opticon (pence)

" One third of share awards will vest cach year on the annversary of the grant date n years 1-3.

Jdun 2012

466.6
51.2%
0.38%

3

3336

Dec 20t4

230.0
53.4%
0.73%

3

230.0

Oct 2012

456.6
54.0%
0.26%

2

3213

Dec 2014

2300
n/a
n:a

3

230.0

Qct 2012

456.6
51.1%
0.32%

3

3435

July 2015

223.0
52.1%
0.84%

3

2230

Dec 2012

409.2
50.7%
0.39%

3

300.8

July 2015

223.0
n/a
n/a

3

223.0

Jan 2013

464.5
51.1%
0.45%

3

284.0

Jan 2016

136.0
54.8%
(3.65%

3

136.0

Jun 2013

2874
51.5%
0.62%

3

287.4

Jan 2016

136.0
n'a
na

13"

136.0

Dec 2013

162.3
54.9%
0.85%

3

162.3

July 2016

203.0
n/'a
n/a

1-37

203.0

Jun 2014

2248
55.8%
1.47%
3
2248

Dec 2016

241.0
n'a
n/a

1-3

2410

Oct 2013

293.5
228.0
53.1%
0.78%
3
130.6

Dec 2014

230.0
53.4%
0.73%

3

143.2

Feb 2016

143.0
54.8%
0.36%

3
97.0

The expected volatility is based on the histarnc volatility. adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly

available information.



Share-based payments for the year

Share-based payments for the current and prior year are:

2017
Year of Award 000
2012.13 - 548
201314 1,560 2,062
2014/15 2,828 2.610
201518 4,821 2530
2016/17 3,473 -
12,682 7,750
The future estimated expense for share award schemes outstanding at 30 April 2017 is:
M7 2018
Year of Award £'000 e
To be ncurrad within ong year 9,778 8,459
To be incurred after ona year 7,463 5,146
17,241 14,605
A deferred tax asset of £1,257 000 (2016 £2,206,000} has been recognized relating share-based payments (note 5).
It arises from the potential future tax benefit on the exercise of incentives,
25 Related parties
Identity of related parties
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated an consolidation and ars not disclosed
in this note.
Transactions with stakeholders deemed to be related party under 1AS24
207 203
£'000 27000
Consolidated Income Statement -
Revenue — Ineda 175

Ravenue - Atomos 11.527)

Ravenue — Toumaz* {259_] 1,501
Operating expense - Orca (552) -
QOperating expense — Netspeed 164}
(365} 85

Statement of Financial Position
Trade Debtors - Atomos 193
Trade Debtors — Toumaz™ - 240
Trade Creditors - Netspeed (116) -
77 940

The above entities are deemed 1o be related parties under 1AS24 due to the sharsholding that Imagination Technclogies
Group plc has in these entities (see note 10).

" Following the disposal imagination's fngl shareholding in Toumaz during 20158, this enfity ceased to be a related party.

Transactions with key management personnel

Key managament personnel compnse the executive directors. In addition to their salaries. the Group also provides non-cash
benefits 1o executive directors and contributes to post-employment benefit schernes on ther behalf, Executive directors
also participate in the Group’s share incentive programmes. The share based payments are valued at their fair value at the
date of grant. Full details of executive directors’ compensation, inciuding post-employment benefits is given in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 46 to 64,
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The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

2017 2016

£°000 £'000

Emoluments 1,471 892
Pansion contributions 55 61
Share based payments’ 820 852)
2,346 99

* Qurng 2016, there was forfeiturs of share awarrds for key management porscrnel resulting in a cradit n the overall share based remuneration charge in the

cansalidated micome staterment

Additional details of all key managements interests in the Company’s shares and share options are set out in the Directors’

raemuneration report on pages 46 to 84,

26 Subsidiaries

Details of the Group's subsidiary undartakings. which are involved in the licensing of the design of multimedia technology and
the sale of multimedia products, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary undertaking

Address of registered office

Typs of shares

Imagination Technologies Limited Imagination House. Home Park Estate, Kings Ordinary
Langley, WD4 8LZ. UK

Imagination Technalogies GmiH Hansenweq 54, 60599 Frankfurt am Main, Germany Qrdinary

Imagination Technologies, Inc. 3201 Scott Blvd. Santa Clara, CA 95054, USA Crdinary

Irmagination Technologies KK AIOS Gotanda Annex Bidg 3F Ordinary
Tokyo 141-0022, Japan

Imagination Technologias india 2nd Floor, Baja) IT Tower, Building Baja) Brandview. Qrdinary
Private timited Survey no. 25. A/, Plot No. 38,
Wakdewadi, Shivajinagar. Pune. Maharashtra
411005, Incdha

Pure Australasia Pty Limited 9 Help Strest, Lavel 4, Chatswood, Ordinary
NSW 2067, Australia

Bristol Interactive Limited” Imaginaton House, Home Park Estate, Kings Ordinary
Langley, WD4 8.7, UK

Caustic Graphics. Inc. 3201 Scott Blvd. Santa Clara. CA 95054, USA Ordinary

HelloSoft. Inc. 3201 Scott Bivd. Santa Clara. CA 95054, USA Ordinary

Imagination Technologies AB Luntmakargatan 18, SE-111 37, Grdinary
Stockhaolm, Sweden

Imagination Technologies Hyderabad 3rd & 4th foors, Tower-A, Plot No 33, Ananth Ordinary
Private Limited Info Park, Madhapur,
Hyderabad 5000871, India

Imagination Technologies LLC. 3201 Scott Bivd. Santa Clara, CA 95054.U8 Ordinary

MIPS Technologias International Limited International Corporation Services Ltd Harbour Ordinary
Place, 2nd Floor PO Bax 472 103 South
Church Straet, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106,
Cayman Islands

Imagination Technologies Room 1711-1712, 333 Hual Hal Zhong Road, Ordinary
{Shanghay Co. Ltd Huangpu District. Shanghal 200021.China

Imagination Technaologies BV, Kabelweg57, Unit 1, 06.05 A. 1014 BA, Ordinary
{Netherlands) Amsterdam, Netherlands

Hellosoft Limited Imagination House, Home Park Estate. Ordinary
Kings Langley, WD4 8LZ. UK

MILL LINK T Larmited Imagination House., Home FPark Estate, Ordinary
Kings Langley, WD4 8L.7, UK

MILL LINK 2 Limitad Imagination House, Home Fark Estata, Orctinary
Kings Langley, WD4 8L7. UK

MILL LINK 3 Limited Imagination House, Home Park Estate. Ordinary

Kings Langley. WD4 8L7. UK

All of the above companies are included  the Group finanoial statements, *non-trading “indirect hoiding

**100% Percentage of issued
share capital held

100%

"100%
160%

100%

100%

~100%

“100%

" 100%,
100%
100%

"100%

“100°%
100

100%

100%

100%

“100%

100%

“100%



27 Subsequent events

After the balance sheet date. tre Group completed a deal which saw the employees of IMGworks and the System-on-Chip
development function they provide sold to Mill Link 1 Limitad for consideration of £1.

Mill Link 1 Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of Imagination Technologies Limited. As part of the IMGworks transaction,
the entire share capital of Mill Link 1 Limited was acquired by Sondre! (Haidings) Limited for consideration of €1.

When the costs of disposal. and other costs relating to the discontinuation of the IMGworks business are taken intc account,

the loss on disposal of the IMGworks Business Unit was £220,000.

As announced on 4 May 2017, the Directors are undartaking a further review of the group’s operations. This includes, but is
not limited to, a sale of its MIPS and Ensigma businesses. On 22 June 2017, the group anncunced it had received interast
from a number of parties for a potential acquisinon of the whole Group. The Board therefore decided to initiate a formal sale
process for the Group and is engaged in prelminary discussions with potential bidders,
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Imagination Technologies Group plc
parent company balance sheet

As at 30 Aprit a3t 1 Aprd
2017
Nutes £'000
Fixed assets
investment in subsidiary undertakings 3 152,259 142.050
Gurrent assets
Debtors (including 50,707,000 (2015: £42 416.000)
due after more than one year) 4 81,365 72,430
Cash 412 807
81,777 73.237
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts faling due within one year 5 {4,179) 23.517)
Net current assets 77,598 49,720
Total assets less current liabilities 229,857 191.770
Non-current liabilities
Creditors: amounts faling due after one year 5 {$7,992) -
Net assets 211,865 191,770
Cated up shers o 26,394 27,660
, 8 105,027 103,277
Share premium account
: 1,423 1,423
Other capital raserve
80,423 67,741
Share based payment reserve
. ’ (3,402) {8,331)
Retained sarmings
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 211,865 191,770

These financial statements were approved by the E}oaQof Directors on 4 July 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Guy Millward ’,.147 c_ - 2
Director f"? . N



Statement of changes in equity

AL1 May 2015

Profit for the financial year
Issue of new snares
Shares issued at nil cost
Share-based remungration

At 30 April 2018

AL 1 May 2016

Profil for the financial year
Issue of new shares
Shares issued at nil cost
Share-based remuneration

At 30 April 2017

Sriawe Dasoen

cayrent Foztaired ot

2Ar-rgs - ,f«“'

E'Dg(z R

101.876 1.£23 59.991 11,224 179.323

- - - 3,303 3.303

498 1.301 - - - 1.799

- - - - 4101 1410}

- - - 7.750 - 7.750
27,860 103,277 1,423 B7.741 (8.331} 191,770
27,660 103,277 1,423 67,741 (8,331) 191,770
- - - - 5,570 5,570

734 1,750 - - - 2,484

- - - - (641) (641)

- - - 12,682 - 12,682
28,394 105,027 1,423 80,423 {3,402} 211,865




1 Accounting policies

The parent company financial statements present imformation about the Comparty as a separate entity and not about
its Group.

The following accounting policies have been apolied consistently In daaling with items which are considered matenal in relation
to the financial statements,

There are no new accounting policies which would have a signficant impact n the current year.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Qisclosure
Framework ("FRS 101").

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measuremant and disclosure requirements
of Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards as adoptad by the EU {("Adopted IFRSs"). but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure
exemptions has been taken.

The following principal accounting palicies have been applied consistently throughout the peried and preceding year in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the Company’s financial statements. The financial staternents are prepared on a
going concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account, The Company made a profit for the year of £5,570,000 (2016: Profit £3,303,000).

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 181 in respect of the following
disclosures:

+ Cash Flow Statement and related notes;
 Disclosures in respect of fransactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;
* The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

As the consolidated financial statements of Imagination Technolegies Group pic include the equivalent disclogures, the
Company has alsc taken the exemptions under FRS 101 avatiable in respect of the following disclosures:

* [FR3 2 Share Based Payments in respact of group settled share based payments;

* Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosuras required by IFRS 7 Financial
instrument Disclosures.

The Company proposes to continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 in its next financial staterments.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Monétary assets
and liabilites denominatad in foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date and the gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

Investments in subsidiaries
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment.

Details of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are included in note 26 of the Group financial statements.

Share based payment

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee expensg with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date and spread over the period durng which the employees become unconditionally entitled to
the options. The fair vaiue of the options granted is measured using an option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditons upon which the options were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest except where forfeiture is only due to share prices not achisving the thrashold for vesting.



As the Compary grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidianes, in accordance with UITF 44, it
recognisas an increass in the cost of investment in its subsidiades equivalent to the equity-settied share-based payment
charge recognised in its subsidiary’s financial statements with the comresponding credit being recognised directly in equity.

Transactions of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust are included in the Group's financial statements. In particular, the
Trust's purchases and sales of shares in the Company are debited ard credited directly to equity.

The assets and labilities of the Trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the entity on the basis that the trust is
merely acting as an agent of the entity. Under this treatment, the accounting in the entity's separate financial statements is
the same as the accounting in the consolidated financial statements.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit or loss for the pericd and takes into account taxation deferred because of
timing differences between the treatrment of certain items for taxatiorn and accounting purposes.

Related parties

The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries (see note 26) and with its Board of Directors (see the
Directors’ Remuneration Repert on pages 46 to 64}. Details of Remuneration of Key Management Personnel are disclosed
in note 25.

2 Employees

The Company does not employ any staff,

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 46 to 64. The non-executive
directors are remunerated by the Group.

3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2017 El
2£'000 jiales]
Cost and net bock value
At beginning of perod 142,050 134 300
Disposais — Dormant subsidiaries {2,473) -
Addition - Share based payment to employees of subsidiary 12,682 7,750
At end of period 152,259 142 050
4 Debtors
2017 Eol]
£'000 o
Other debtors 36 27
Amounts owed Dy subsidiary undartakings 30,622 29,987
30,658 30,014

Additionally, £50.707 0G0 (2016: £42,416,000} is owed by subsidiary undertakings due after mors than one year. The
amounts in both years relate to inter-company loan notes which attract interest at rates betwesen 6.96% and 8.01%.

5 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2E

£'000 S

Bark loan 3,861 22789
Accruals and deferred income 54 471
Daferred and contingent consideration 264 257
4,179 23517

18



112

In February 2013. the Group drew down a $48,000.000 term lear which was used to part fund the acquistion of MiP5
Technologies. Inc. On 17 June 2014, the Group completed a re-negotation of the terms of the above faan. Under the revised
terms the remaining loan balance is repayable in seven six monthly instalments of $2.500.000 between December 2014

and Decembper 2017, with a final bullet payment of $23.300,000 due in June 2018. The loan s currently subject to variable
quarterly interest payments at a rate of 2.5% above 3 month LIBOR on the outstanding balance.

At the balance shest date the Group’s bank loan equated to £21,853.000 {2016: £22.788,000). of which £3,861,000 is due
within one year (2016: £22,789.000) and £17,952.000 due after one year but less than five years (2G16: £ni).

The loan is secured by a debenture dated March 2013 which gives HSBC Bark plc a fixed and floating charge over the
assets of the Company and its principal subsidiary Imagination Technolagies Limited. The bank alsa hias a legal charge over
freehcld land and buiidings owned by the Group. which have a net book value of £48,725,000 {(2016: £498,562.000).

6 Operating leases

At 30 Aprii 2017, the Company had no operating lease commitments (2016: Cnil).

7 Capital commitments
At 30 Aprii 2017, the Company had no capital commitments (2016: £nil},

8 Called-up share capital

Details of the Company’s called-up share capital are shown in note 19 of the Group financial statements.

9 Reconciliation of movements in equity
shareholders’ funds

2017 2013

£000 Tooe
Equity shareholders’ funds at the start of the period 191,770 179,336
Profit for the financiat year 5,570 3.308
Share-based remuneration 12,682 7,750
lssue of new shares 1,843 1,381
Equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the period 211,865 191.770




